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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark
One)

(x] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-31313

LB roadw

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @mart

Delaware 88-040916C
(State of or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)

47 East Chicago Avenue, Suite 332
Naperville, lllinois 60540
(Address of principal executive offict (zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area o@$€) 637-0315
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bh@fAct:None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct: Common Stock, $0.001 par value

Indicate by check mark whether the Regidtis a well-known seasoned issuer, as defin®ula 405 of the Securities Act of 1933. Yes
O No



Indicate by check mark if the Registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Sectidror 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. YesO No X

Indicate by check mark whether the Regigt(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the Registrarg vemuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementdife past 90 days. Yesl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oadtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted fumtsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of dtiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Y8s  No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledgegfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104H.

Indicate by check mark whether the Regittis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "large acceleréited" "accelerated filer* and "smaller reportiogmpany" in Rule 1212-of the Exchange Ac

Large accelerated file Accelerated filer Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting
O x (Do not check if a smaller reporting company
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Regitis a shell company, as defined in Rule 12b+thefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934. Yes
O No [x

The aggregate market value of the Regigsr&oting common stock held by non-affiliateslté Registrant, based upon the $2.80 per
share closing sale price of the Registrant's comstack on June 30, 2010 (the last business dayedRegistrant's most recently completed
second quarter) was approximately $204,543,259pEposes of this calculation, the Registrant'saars and executive officers and holders
of 10% or more of the Registrant's outstandihgres of voting common stock have been assumal affiliates, with such affiliates holding
aggregate of 33,789,921 shares of the Registnaotitsy common stock on June 30, 2010, and shatddlgesuch affiliates are not included in
this calculation.

Number of shares of Registrant's commoaokstpar value $0.001, outstanding as of March0112was 107,113,135.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant's Proxy Statenfier the Registrant's 2011 Annual Meeting of taiders are incorporated by reference in
Part Il of this Form 10-K.
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PART |
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains "forwaoaking statements"—that is, statements relatedttod, not past, events—as
defined in Section 21E of the Securities Excharg®®1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), tefi¢ct our current expectations regardi
our future growth, results of operations, finanaiahndition, cash flows, performance and businessgects, and opportunities, as well as
assumptions made by, and information currently latée to, our management. Forward-looking stateraémtlude any statement that does not
directly relate to a current or historical fact. Wave tried to identify forward-looking statemebysusing words such as "anticipate,"
"believe," "expect,” "intend," "will," "should," "ay," "plan” and similar expressions, but these vgoade not the exclusive means of identifying
forward-looking statements. These statements are basedaymation currently available to us and are sudijo various risks, uncertainties,
and other factors, including, but not limited tbpse discussed in Item 1A "Risk Factors" in Pat this Annual Report on Form 10-K that
could cause our actual growth, results of operagidimancial condition, cash flows, performance ddiness prospects, and opportunities to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iredlby, these statements. Our forwérdking statements may include or relate to thiofaing:

(i) our plans to continue to grow our business tigh organic growth and integration of previous datlre acquisitions; (ii) our beliefs with
respect to the sufficiency of our liquidity and qleins to evaluate alternate sources of fundingedessary; (iii) our expectations relating to
state, local and federal regulatory frameworks etfifeg the wind energy industry, including the egien, continuation or renewal of federal
incentives and grants and state renewable portfetémdards; (iv) our expectations relating to coastion of new facilities, expansion of
existing facilities and sufficiency of our existicgpacity to meet the demands of our customersapgort expectations regarding our growth;
(v) our plans with respect to the use of proceeas fiinancing activities and our ability to operadar business efficiently, manage capital
expenditures and costs effectively, and generatb flaw; (vi) our beliefs and expectations relatboghe economy and the potential impact it
may have on our business, including our customarsgur beliefs regarding the state of the windeegy market generally; and (viii) our
expectations relating to the impact of pendingydition as well as environmental compliance matt€mi should not consider any list of such
factors to be an exhaustive statement of all ofiles, uncertainties, or potentially inaccuratesamptions that could cause our curr
expectations or beliefs to change. Except as egpresquired by the federal securities laws, weartake no obligation to update such factors
or to publicly announce the results of any of thevard-looking statements contained herein to effature events, developments, or changed
circumstances or for any other reason.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

As used in this Annual Report on Form 1QH€ terms "we," "us," "our," "Broadwind," "Broadwd Energy," and the "Company" refer to
Broadwind Energy, Inc., a Delaware incorporated pany headquartered in Naperville, lllinois, andatsolly-owned subsidiaries.

Business Overview

Broadwind provides technologically advanbéh-value products and services to energy, miamgjinfrastructure sector customers,
primarily in the U.S. Our most significant preseigevithin the U.S. wind industry, where we believe are the only independent company
offers our breadth of products and services tariaeket. Our product and service portfolio provides customers, including wind turbine
manufacturers, wind farm developers and wind faprators, with access to a broad array of compamaahservice offerings. Outside of the
wind market, we provide precision gearing and sgigciveldments to industrial customers, particylanlthe energy, mining and infrastructure
sectors.
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We are well positioned to capture markgtaypunities associated with growth in wind energg ather industrial markets in the U.S. We
believe that growth in the U.S. wind energy maxkitbe driven by: (i) macroeconomic factors, indlng an economic recovery and increased
demand for electricity, rising energy prices andefal and state-level wind development incentii@sypgrades to existing transmission
infrastructure and increasing proliferation of sthard technology, and (iii) the maturation of teckogies and services within the wind
industry, including increased turbine efficiencidsyelopment of a coordinated global supply chauhienproved focus on equipment
maintenance and reliability. Given our significargtalled capital base, we believe we will be dblsubstantially grow revenues without
making significant investment in additional capggluipment or manufacturing capacity.

In December 2009, we revised our reporsiegment presentation into four reportable opera@gments: Towers, Gearing, Technical and
Engineering Services, and Logistics. Within our istigs segment the Company offered specializedgraration, permitting and logistics
management to the wind industry for oversize arehoeight machinery and equipment. In December @D20ur Board of Directors approv
a plan to divest our Logistics business segmeit,canMarch 4, 2011, we completed the dispositioowfLogistics business to a third party
purchaser. Consequently, this business unit isnepwrted as discontinued operations and we havsegwur segment presentation to include
three reportable operating segments: Towers, Ggaairtd Services (previously Technical and EngimgeServices). All current and prior
period financial results have been revised to cefleese changes. For additional financial infofomatelated to our segments, please refer to
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis n&Rcial Condition and Results of Operations” anteN® "Segment Reporting” in Item
in the notes to our consolidated financial stateméar a discussion of summary financial informatlyy segment.

The following is a description of produetsd services offered in each segment:
Towers

We manufacture towers for wind turbines. $fgecialize in heavier "next generation” wind tosvéirat are larger, more technically
advanced towers, designed for 2 megawatt ("MW") langer wind turbines. Since starting commercialduction in 2005, we have produced
approximately 800 towers. Our production facilitiedManitowoc, Wisconsin and Abilene, Texas arelyptced in close proximity to the
primary U.S. wind resource regions. The two faeiithave a combined annual tower production capatapproximately 500 towers,
sufficient to support turbines generating more th&90 MW of power.

Our towers for wind turbines are predomthasold to wind turbine manufacturers who utilaer products in the assembly of wind
turbines. Due to the customized nature of our petgjuhey are generally sold through our direasébrce following an evaluation,
qualification and testing period, which may occueioa number of months. We compete based on preaufdrmance, quality, price, location
and available capacity. We have periodically enténéo framework agreements under which we propidelucts to certain key customers c
multi-year periods. Our principal wind tower custenmare Gamesa, Nordex and Vestas. Within this segmwe also manufacture specialty
fabrications and heavy weldments for wind energy @tier industrial customers.

Gearing

We manufacture high precision gearing systéor wind turbines. We also manufacture custogirezered gearing systems and gearboxes
for energy, mining and other industrial custom¥ye. target niche markets and applications that reghe strict tolerances and high quality
standards of our processes.
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We produce to the highest industry qualtgndards, and we were the first U.S. gear manuracto achieve ISO 9001 certification. We
use an integrated manufacturing process, whicluited a machining process in Cicero, lllinois, & tre@tment process in Neville Island,
Pennsylvania and a finishing process in our Cicikréactory. These complex production processesnalls to manufacture custom products to
meet the stringent tolerances and high qualitydsteds of our customers.

Due to the highly specialized nature of gearing, it is generally sold through our diresdes force following an evaluation, qualifying
prototyping and testing period, which may occurrav@umber of months. We compete based on produftirmance, quality, price and
available capacity. We have periodically entered framework agreements under which we provide petgito certain key customers over
multi-year periods. Our most significant Gearingrsent customers include Clipper Windpower, Gardremver and General Electric.

Services

We offer technical and precision repair andineering services to manufacturers of windited and developers and operators of wind
farms. Our technical services business providestoaction support and operations and maintenanegcss to the wind industry. Our
precision repair and engineering services inclegair and refurbishment of the complex systemscantbonents of wind turbines, including
control systems, drivetrains and blades. Duringl2®d approved an investment of approximately #ianito develop a dedicated drivetrain
service center in Abilene, Texas, focused on sewyithe growing installed base of MW wind turbireessthey come off warranty. The drivetr
service center was dedicated and put into operatiéebruary 2011.

Sales contacts are typically initiated tlglo a small direct sales force, or through opegatinit managers located in our geographically
dispersed service locations. Sales are generalieraader individual purchase orders, although we tdanket purchase orders or multi-year
operations and maintenance agreements in placeselilet key customers. Our Services business cesipéth a number of independent
service providers in a highly-fragmented but grayimdustry. Our principal Services segment custenmaiude FPL Energy, NexGen Energy
Partners and Siemens Energy. Our primary servizaitms are in lllinois, California, South Dakotadal exas. Our vision is to become the
most comprehensive independent service providdrgdorth American wind industry.

Competitive Strengths

We believe our business model offers a remob competitive strengths that will contributeotiar commercial success and will enable us
to capitalize on significant opportunities for gtbwThese competitive strengths include the folltayvi

. Strong relationships with leading wind turbine manufacturers. We have strong relationships with major wind sect
manufacturers. For example, we provide, or haveigeal, products and/or services to the ten larg@st turbine manufacturers
currently selling in the U.S., including Acciondjgper Windpower, Gamesa, General Electric, MitshhiNordex, REpower,
Siemens Energy, Suzlon Wind Energy and Vestas. 8lleve our relationships with leading players reffleur strong product
guality and service capabilities and position udl teesell effectively to new customers. We intanccontinue to develop long-
term, multi-year contracts and strategic custorakationships across our businesses.

. Leading service platform. We are among the largest horizontally integraté@pendent service providers to the U.S. wind
industry. We believe that we are differentiatedhoy breadth of our offerings, which enables us ¢okwvith wind farm
developers throughout a project's lifecycle: cargtton support, commissioning of the wind farm, oimgg maintenance and
operational support services, precision repairggtades to existing installations. Our in-housarigeg

3
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system manufacturing expertise positions us toréhtemarket for drivetrain services, including e repair and
refurbishment which, for MW-scale turbines, haddrisally been performed by natemestic sources. We believe that our bl
service offerings and technical capabilities willba us to grow our services business significaasythe installed wind turbine
base grows and wind turbines come off warranty.

. Manufacturing and service capacity to support anticipated growth. We have made substantial investments in proert
equipment to position ourselves to grow in the N&merican wind industry and in the broader enemg infrastructure
sectors. We believe this capacity will allow ugjtockly respond to increased demand from our custsrand enable us to gain
share as market growth returns. We have investestautial capital in technology, engineering andhufiacturing capabilities
and capacity for wind turbine towers and gearinggeayps. We have also invested significantly to goowservice capabilities
through the addition of personnel and new techraadl precision repair and engineering service ioffisrand by investing in a
new drivetrain service center. We believe thesestments will allow us to realize significant ogérg leverage as we increase
our revenues with minimal capital expenditure.

. Horizontally integrated supply chain offering with strategically located operations. We believe that we have the leading North
American platform designed to provide an integraeldtion to the fragmented supply chain our custanfiace. Today, the
manufacture and production of wind turbines inveleeer 8,000 components and many of the key irgnatoth geographica
dispersed and lack integration. This results ifhignsportation costs and quality control issigesany developers and
manufacturers are forced to coordinate among nhalsipppliers. While we do not provide all key coments, our wind turbine
component production capabilities combined withlthead array of services we offer allows our cugtmsmo simplify
coordination for these increasingly complex windelepment projects. We believe the breadth of apabilities will prove
attractive to new entrants and incumbents by imipggpeed to market, increasing product reliabdityl reducing costs.
Additionally, our production facilities and serviofferings are strategically located near existingd centers, which allows us
to minimize our response time and reduce logistasts for our customers.

. I ndustry leading technology and manufacturing expertise. We utilize industr-leading technology and design capabilities
have wind product manufacturing expertise. We spieel in manufacturing "next generation" wind tosjeand we were the first
U.S. gear manufacturer to achieve ISO 9001 ceatificn. Our gearing systems production facilitieiag state-of-the-art Hofler
production centers. We are experienced in desigaimpgmanufacturing customized products to meetiffpeastomer needs.
We have diverse technical repair expertise anchéfeessary spare inventory to minimize costs amqbrese time and deliver
long-term value for the lifecycle of our customgnsdjects. We believe our ability to design and ofanture high quality
customized products and provide superior servieates high barriers to entry and allows us to mairdn advantage over our
competition.

. Experienced management team with decades of wind industry experience. Our senior management team has signifi
industry experience and proven expertise in wirdl @her energy sectors and holds leadership positioindustry
organizations such as the American Wind Energy éiasion ("AWEA"). Key areas of expertise includghitechnical
specification industrial manufacturing, operatioesécution in the wind industry, strategic busindgsgelopment, financial
planning and acquisition integration. Members af senior management team have held positions dinigglobal and national
wind and industrial sector companies including Aoei, Amoco Corporation, DMI Industries, FMC Teclowés, Federal
Signal, General Electric and Trinity Industries.
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Business and Operating Strategy

We intend to capitalize on the anticipageowth of the wind energy market in North Amerigagroviding our technologically advanced,
highly reliable, value-added products and companant customized services across the wind supply cWhile our focus will remain on the
wind energy sector, we also plan to take advantdgeowth opportunities by expanding our existimggence in other energy, infrastructure
and industrial markets.

Our strategic objectives include the foliog:

. Utilize our established platform to increase sales and improve capacity utilization and profitability As a result of significant
capital expenditures made in 2008 and 2009, we hearaufacturing capacity available that will potatiyi allow us to more tha
double our annual revenues. Tower and gear manufiagtand drivetrain refurbishment all require sfigant capital
investments which we have already made. Usingpthigorm to continue to penetrate the North Amearieand market, but also
to expand into other energy and infrastructureaseatill improve our capacity utilization and cadbtrte to improved financial
results.

. Continue to develop and grow our service businesses. We have established a network of service cesteasegically located
near key wind farm sites with technical service pretision repair and engineering capabilities. Wkeve that there is a
significant opportunity to provide more comprehgessupport to customers in the wind industry. Wimdbine components are
initially serviced by wind turbine manufacturersden applicable warranties. We believe that, asihe of the installed base
grows and ages, manufacturer warranties expirgrendomplexity and size of wind turbines increaged farm operators will
increasingly seek independent service providersamtain their assets. We intend to support outocnsrs' service strategies,
further develop our own service channels and tducaga share of the expanding service and aftemhatkpport business
through relationships with wind turbine manufactaravind farm operators and independent serviceigeos. To that end, we
have recently completed an investment in a newethdin service center that will service the inst@lbase of wind turbines.

. Continue to improve production technology and operational efficiency. We believe that the proper coordination and irgggn
of the supply chain are key factors that enablé bigerating efficiencies, increased reliability doer costs. Our
manufacturing facilities include state-of-the-agtippment and lean processes to help enhance otatmrel efficiency and
flexibility. We will continue to pursue strategigsfurther optimize our production processes toegate increased output,
leverage our scale and lower our costs while maiimg product quality.

. Broaden our product offerings. We believe that we offer one of the most compéetis of product offerings addressing the
needs of customers across the North American wipglg chain. We are dedicated to the identificatevelopment and
commercialization of new products that take adwgeiaf our scale in order to provide comprehensblet®ns for our
customers. Since a turbine may contain more tha®08;omponents, we plan to take advantage of densive expertise and
technological capabilities to develop the compleodpict offerings required to compete in the Northekican wind market.

. Diversify our customer base. In 2010, 78% of our sales were derived from fiustomers. We have expanded our sales force
and centralized our commercial organization in suppf expanding our customer base. We have tadgatpansion of U.S.
wind customers, as well as expansion into otherggnand infrastructure sectors, including miningl @enstruction.
Additionally, in July of 2010, we opened an officteHamburg, Germany focused on expanding relatisshith existing and
new European and Asian wind energy customers.
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COMPANY HISTORY

We were incorporated in Nevada in 1996 laslBoot Enterprises Inc. ("Blackfoot™). In Febry&006, Blackfoot completed a reverse
shell transaction with Tower Tech Systems Inc. &b Tech"), whereupon Blackfoot became a holdinggany for Tower Tech, and
subsequently changed its name to Tower Tech Haddimg In 2008, Tower Tech Holdings Inc. reincogded in Delaware and changed its
name to Broadwind Energy, Inc. Through our Octd8)7 acquisitions of R.B.A. Inc. ("RBA") and Braddie Gear Works, Inc. ("Brad
Foote"), and acquisitions of Energy Maintenance/iges, LLC ("EMS") and Badger Transport Inc. ("Badf) in January and June of 2008,
respectively, we expanded upon our core platformamd tower component manufacturer and estatlishe gearing systems, industrial
products, technical services, precision repairemgineering and logistics businesses. In Decenm®Hd,bur Board of Directors approved a
plan to divest Badger, which was sold to a thirdyppurchaser on March 4, 2011, and is now treated discontinued operation. Effective
February 1, 2011, EMS changed its name to Broad®emdices, LLC, and effective March 1, 2011, ToWwech changed its name to
Broadwind Towers, Inc.

SALES AND MARKETING

Our sales and marketing strategy is to kdgvand maintain long-term relationships with oustomers and to offer a comprehensive suite
of products and services to them. We pursue thasegty by working closely with our customers in eleping and designing customized
product, manufacturing, and service solutions. W8e mtend for our offerings to fulfill needs thaur customers may consider non-core and do
not desire to provide for within their organizatoiWe attempt to base-load our manufacturing f&sliby negotiating long-term agreements,
under which we supply our customers with geariagietrs or industrial products. Similarly, we seelestablish long-term relationships to
provide services to our customers, which may béestito framework agreements or undertaken on g@irby project basis. Within the wind
industry, our predominant focus, our customer lwasesists of wind turbine manufacturers who supplg-asers and wind turbine developers
with completed wind turbines, as well as wind fatevelopers and wind farm operators themselves.ikikie wind industry, we have long-
standing relationships with customers, engaginmthevarious levels from key account managemetetnisanagement, research and
development, product design and manufacturing lggtéor management.

COMPETITION

We do not believe that any competitorstetkiat have developed a similar suite of produnts services for the North American wind
industry as those offered by our businesses. Homeaeh of our businesses faces competition frotih domestic and international compan
and some of our customers maintain internal cajpi@sithat compete with our offerings. For our Tesveegment, the largest North American
based competitors are Trinity Industries and DMiustries. Additionally, we face competition fronrmamber of smaller tower producers,
including Katana Summit, Ameron International and®&, as well as imports from a number of Asian towaanufacturers.

We are a major North American supplier afdvenergy gear sets, but do not manufacture campksarboxes for this segment. Wind
gearbox manufacturers include Winergy (affiliateithviemens), Bosch-Rexroth, Moventas and Hansanshnissions (affiliated with Suzlon
Energy). Because wind gearbox manufacturers oftarce all or a portion of their gear sets fromdtparties, these companies are also
potential customers for Broadwind. The competitaug participating to provide industrial gearingnsre fragmented, comprised of a large
number of privately held gearing manufacturers.sehgearing manufacturers compete based upon ptieéty, location, available capacity,
and several other factors.
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The market for independent technical argirezering services is highly fragmented, and ineBidompanies such as enXco (affiliated \
EDF), Outland Energy Services and UpWind Solutions.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE

Our operations are subject to numerousréégdstate, and local environmental laws and reguia. While it is our objective to maintain
compliance with these respective laws and regulatith may not be possible to quantify with certyithe potential impact of actions regarding
environmental matters, particularly remediation atiter compliance efforts that we may undertakthénfuture. Many of our facilities have a
history of industrial operations and contaminaraeehbeen detected at some of our facilities. Refétem 3 "Legal Proceedings" for further
discussion of environmental regulation and comgkan

BACKLOG

We sell our towers and gearing under eiktveg-term supply agreements or individual purchaskers, depending on the size and the
duration of the purchase and sale commitment. Sufrtteese supply agreements are structured as frarkeagreements, whereby customers
commit to purchase a certain fixed quantity or shafrtheir annual requirements from us, and wervesa portion of our manufacturing
capacity to meet these requirements. Under thaseefivork agreements, we receive purchase ordersmamthnly or other periodic basis based
upon our customer's forecast of production voluevels. These long-term agreements have varioustdrum generally range from several
months to three years with some contracts carrgirtgmatic renewal provisions. For our Services sggnpurchases are based either on
individual purchase orders or longer-term operatiand maintenance contracts. As of December 31,20& dollar amount of our backlog
believed to be firm under our supply agreements;lmse orders and service contracts was approXin®ga6 million, of which $116 million
is expected to be delivered during 2011. Delivedigsng 2011 may be subject to change as a rekattyofuture modifications to our existing
customer framework agreements or purchase orders.

SEASONALITY

The majority of our business is not affddby seasonality. Within our Services segment tobarebe some seasonality as project
completions are typically heaviest in the fourtladar, and the provision of services can be negitiaffected by weather related constraints,
typically during the first quarter of the year.

EMPLOYEES

We had 850 employees at December 31, 25Mhich 684 were in manufacturing, service anttfiupport related functions and 166
were in administrative functions. Approximately 28%wour employees are covered by two collectiveghsring agreements with local unions
in Cicero, lllinois and Neville Island, PennsylvanCollective bargaining agreements with our Nevidland and Cicero unions are schedul
remain in effect through October 2012 and Febr28d4, respectively. We consider our union and eyggaelations to be satisfactory.

RAW MATERIALS

The primary raw material used in the carctton of wind towers and gearing products is sieg¢he form of steel plate, forgings and
castings. Although we are generally responsiblgofocurement of the raw materials, in some caseswustomers source and retain title to s
plate which we convert into finished wind towers.
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We operate a multiple supplier sourcingtsigy and source our raw materials through vasopgliers located throughout the U.S. and
abroad. We do not generally have long-term supglgements with any of our raw materials suppliewd @osely match terms with those of
our customers to limit our exposure to commoditggfluctuations. We believe that we will be aldeobtain an adequate supply of steel and
other raw materials to meet our manufacturing nespents, although from time to time we have fademitages of specific grades of steel,
which may limit our ability to meet customer demamdi cause manufacturing inefficiencies.

QUALITY CONTROL

We have a longtanding focus on processes for ensuring the metunéaof high quality products. To achieve higmstards of productio
and operational quality, we implement strict anteegive quality control and inspection throughaut production processes. We maintain
internal quality controls over all core manufaatgrprocesses and carry out quality assurance itisps@t the completion of each major
manufacturing step to ensure the quality of oudpobs. The manufacturing process at our Gearingatipa, for example, involves
transforming forged steel into highly technical gfieation gears through rough machining, hobbirgnforcing thermal treatment, fine
machining and fine grinding. We inspect and tesat meaterials before they enter the assembly procedsst the raw materials after rough
machining, test the functioning of gear teeth amies after thermal treatment and accuracy tedtdimguts for product specifications. We
believe our investment in industry leading heaatimeent, high precision machining, specialized grigdechnologies and cutting edge welding
has contributed to our high product reliability ahd consistent performance of our products uneering operating conditions. Our Gearing
segment is ISO 9001:2000 certified. Our tower maatufring plant in Manitowoc, Wisconsin has receil®® 9001:2008 certification, and our
Abilene plant is currently in the certification pess.

CUSTOMERS

We manufacture products for and provideises to a variety of customers in the wind eneailyand gas, mining and other infrastructure
industries. The majority of our wind industry cusigr base consists of wind turbine manufacturers, supply wind farm operators and wind
farm developers with completed wind turbines. la dither industrial sectors, we sell our produatsugh our trained sales force or through
manufacturers' representatives to a wide varietgustomers. The wind turbine market is very coneget. According to AWEA's 2009
industry data, the top ten wind turbine manufactioenstituted over 99% of the North American marks a result, our concentration with a
limited number of customers accounted for the nitgjaf our revenues. Sales to each of Gamesa aner@kElectric represented an amount
greater than 10% of our consolidated revenueshfoyear ended December 31, 2010 and the loss affdhese customers could have a
material adverse effect on our business. Thiswendiopom 2009 when sales to each of four customegeasented an amount greater than 1C
our consolidated revenues for the year. We intermbhtinue to diversify our customer base as wevgror business.

Our current portfolio of key customers us: Clipper Windpower, Gamesa, Gardner Denvanet@ Electric, NexGen Energy Partne
Nordex, Siemens and Vest:

WORKING CAPITAL

Our primary customers are wind turbine nfacturers, wind farm developers and wind farm ofmesa The industry has historically
entered into customized contracts with varying teamd conditions between suppliers and customepgrdling on the specific objectives of
each party. Our practices mirror this historicalustry practice for negotiating agreements on a-tgscase basis. As a result, working capital
needs, including levels of accounts receivableianentory, can vary
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significantly from quarter to quarter based ondbetractual terms associated with that quartel&ss sauch as whether we are required to
purchase and supply steel pursuant to such conalaetrms.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Our principal executive office is locatadi@ East Chicago Avenue, Suite 332, Napervilleg0540. Our phone number is (630) 637-0315
and our website addressasvw.bwen.com.

OTHER INFORMATION

On our website aww.bwen.comwe make available under the "Investors" menuctiele, free of charge, our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Curieaports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these sefiled or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as ssoreasonably practicable after such reports ondments are electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange CommigSBEC"). Materials that we file or furnish to tB&€C may also be read and copied at the
SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, M/Eshington, DC 20549. Information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room may
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Aflse SEC maintains an Internet sitevatw.sec.gothat contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information thatfile electronically with the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business

Our businesses, and therefore our results of operations and financial condition, may continue to be adversely affected by dislocation in the
global credit markets and economic uncertainty.

The disruption in the global credit markee® re-pricing of credit risk and the deteriavatof the financial and real estate markets
generally in recent years, particularly in the La8d Europe, have all contributed to a reductiocoimsumer spending and a contraction in
global economic growth including the wind energgtee The recession has had negative effects oraderor alternative sources of energy
and consequently for our product and service offgxi Although there is a growing confidence thatdlobal economies have resumed growth,
there remains risk that the recovery may not b&swed or that the recovery may not include theigtdes or markets in which we conduct our
business. In addition, because there is a longtieselbetween orders for wind products and delivérgre is generally a lag before the impact
of changed economic conditions affects our resalid,an improvement in economic conditions maybeoteflected in our financial results of
operations in a corresponding manner. Any detefmran economic conditions could have a materiblease effect on our business in a
number of ways, including lower sales and exterréegwal cycles if there is a reduction in demandivimd energy, and such deterioration
could have a material adverse effect on our ligujdesults of operations and financial condition.

In particular, risks we might face couldlude potential declines in revenues in our busisegments due to reduced orders or other
factors caused by economic challenges faced byustomers and prospective customers, and an ityatoilfinance our operating needs on
reasonable terms.

The U.S. wind industry isreliant on tax and other economic incentives and political and governmental policies. A significant changein these
incentives and policies could negatively impact our results of operations and growth.

Our business segments are focused on sngmyoducts and services to wind turbine manufactuand owners and operators of wind
energy generation facilities. The U.S. wind indussrdependent upon federal tax incentives ane séatewable portfolio standards and may
be
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economically viable absent such incentives. Ther&dyovernment provides economic incentives tmthirers of wind energy facilities,
including a federal production tax credit, an inwesnt tax credit and a cash grant equal in valubéonvestment tax credit. The production
credit was extended by the American Recovery andv@stment Act ("ARRA") in February 2009 and prosscthe owner of a qualifying wind
energy facility placed in service before the en@@f2 with a ten-year tax credit against the overfederal income tax obligations based on the
amount of electricity generated by the qualifyinmavenergy facility and sold to unrelated thirdtpes. Alternatively, wind project owners may
(i) elect to receive an investment tax credit eqod&80% of the qualifying basis of facilities place service before the end of 2012 or (ii) for
facilities placed in service in 2009 through 20ad, {f construction begins before the end of 2(Qdlaced in service before the end of 2012),
apply to receive a cash grant from the Departmefte@asury, equal in value to the investment taditr

These programs provide material incentteadevelop wind energy generation facilities anetéy impact the demand for our
manufactured products and services. The increasmmauiad for our products and services resulting fiteencredits and incentives may continue
until such credits or incentives lapse. The failof€ongress to extend or renew these incentivgsrgktheir current expiration dates could
significantly delay the development of wind eneggneration facilities and the demand for wind tnelsi towers, gearing and related
components. In addition, we cannot assure youaimaisubsequent extension or renewal of the praglutix credit, investment tax credit or
cash grant program will be enacted prior to itsietjon or, if allowed to expire, that any extersiar renewal enacted thereafter would be
enacted with retroactive effect. It is possiblet thase federal incentives will not be extendedobeytheir current expiration dates. Any dela
failure to extend or renew the federal productendredit, investment tax credit or cash grant paogin the future could have a material
adverse impact on our business, results of opasgtitmancial performance and future developmeiatrisf

State renewable energy portfolio standgedeerally require or encourage state-regulatedraledilities to supply a certain proportion of
electricity from renewable energy sources or dewotertain portion of their plant capacity to reable energy generation. Typically, utilities
comply with such standards by qualifying for renbleeenergy credits evidencing the share of elattribat was produced from renewable
sources. Under many state standards, these rereeesdlgy credits can be unbundled from their aatetienergy and traded in a market
system, allowing generators with insufficient ctedo meet their applicable state mandate. Theselatds have spurred significant growth in
the wind energy industry and a corresponding irséa the demand for our manufactured productsie@tly, the majority of states and the
District of Colombia have renewable energy portfatandards in place and certain states have \asjuntility commitments to supply a
specific percentage of their electricity from remdbe sources. The enactment of renewable enerdfplmistandards in additional states or
changes to existing renewable energy portfoliodseas, or the enactment of a federal renewableygrmartfolio standard or imposition of
other greenhouse gas regulations, may impact timaude for our products. We cannot assure you thargonent support for renewable ene
will continue. The elimination of, or reduction istate or federal government policies that supparéwable energy could have a material
adverse impact on our business, results of opasgtitmancial performance and future developmeitrisf

We could incur substantial costs to comply with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and to address violations of or
liabilities under these requirements.

Our operations are subject to a varietgrofironmental laws and regulations in the jurigdits in which we operate and sell products
governing, among other things, air emissions, weater discharges, the use, handling and dispodazdrdous materials, soil and
groundwater contamination, employee health andysaded product content, performance and packagWfgcannot guarantee that we will at
all times be in compliance with such laws and ratiohs, and if we fail to comply with
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these laws and regulations or our permitting ahéotequirements, we may be required to pay filvag, production at our facilities or be
subject to other sanctions. Also, certain enviromt@daws can impose all or a portion of the cdsheestigating and cleaning up a
contaminated site, regardless of fault, upon arey@rmore of a number of parties, including theeniror previous owner or operator of the
site. These environmental laws also impose lighdit any person who arranges for the disposakatrirent of hazardous substances at a
contaminated site. Third parties may also makendaigainst owners or operators of sites and u$elisppsal sites for personal injuries and
property damage associated with releases of hazaldstances from those sites. Many of our fesslhiave a history of industrial operations,
and contaminants have been detected at some éddilities.

We are aware of an investigation commergethe United States Attorney's Office, Northerstiict of lllinois, for potential violation of
federal environmental laws. On February 15, 20ffigials from the United States Environmental Patien Agency ("USEPA") conducted a
search of one of our facilities in Cicero, lllinoislso on February 15, 2011, we received a subpoemaesting production of certain documents
relating to the facility's compliance with cert@nvironmental regulations relating to the genemtibischarge and disposal of wastewater from
certain of our processes from 2004 to the presemf-ebruary 23, 2011, we also received an additgntapoena requesting production of
certain documents relating to certain of our empésyand environmental and manufacturing proceggeslo not currently have information
to when the investigation may be concluded, ané@mgealso conducting an internal investigation of poassible noncompliance. At this time,
we have not been formally notified that we are lajett or target of the investigation and no finepenalties have been suggested. There c
no assurances that the conclusion of the invegiigatill not result in a determination that we hawelated applicable laws. If we are found to
have violated such laws, we could be subject tesfirivil penalties and criminal penalties. In cection with this investigation, we have
recorded a liability of $675 at December 31, 2640ich represents the low end of our estimate ofscasd expenses that have been incurred,
or which are expected to be incurred during 201de B the preliminary nature of the investigatibims reasonably possible that our estimat
the obligation may change in the near term.

The assertion of further claims relatingte or off-site contamination, the discovery oéyiously unknown environmental liabilities, or
the imposition of unanticipated investigation cgarhiup obligations could result in potentially sfipaint expenditures to address contamination
or resolve claims or liabilities. Such costs angenditures could have a material adverse effecumrbusiness, financial condition or results of
operations.

Changes in existing environmental laws @aglilations, or their application, could causeaumtur additional or unexpected costs to
achieve or maintain compliance. Our facilities egnéenhouse gases which may be subject to pendiinguoe environmental laws or
regulations, which could cause us to incur additiam unexpected costs to achieve and maintain tange.

Our financial and operating performanceis subject to certain factors which are out of our control, including prevailing economic conditions
and the state of the wind energy market in North America.

As a supplier of products and servicesitwdvwurbine manufacturers and owners and operaforsnd energy generation facilities, our
results of operations (like those of our customars)subject to general economic conditions, aedifipally, to the state of the wind energy
market. In addition to the state and federal gowent policies supporting renewable energy descritede, the growth and development of
the larger wind energy market in North Americaubject to a number of factors, including, amongeothings:

. the availability of financing for the estimated glime of wind development projects;
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. the cost of electricity, which may be affected byumber of factors, including government regulatipower transmission,
seasonality, fluctuations in demand, and the codtaavailability of fuel and particularly naturalga

. the development of new power generating technotwgydvances in existing technology or discoverpmfier generating
natural resources;

. the development of electrical transmission infractture;

. state and federal laws and regulations, partiquthdse favoring low carbon energy generation a#gves;
. administrative and legal challenges to proposediwievelopment projects; and

. public perception and localized community resportsagind energy project:

In addition, while some of the factorsdigtabove may only affect individual wind projectdi®pments or portions of the market, in the
aggregate they may have a significant effect orstloeessful development of the wind energy market whole, and thus affect our operating
and financial results.

We are substantially dependent on a few significant customers.

The wind turbine market in the U.S. is veoncentrated, with ten manufacturers controllimgxcess of 99% of the market. Like us, these
customers were adversely affected by the recenttlowin the economy and the wind energy market,va@ have seen, and may continue to
see, a decrease in order volume from such custoMmterically, the majority of our revenues arghily concentrated with a limited number
customers. In 2010, two customers—Gamesa and Qdflecdric—each accounted for more than 10% ofaansolidated revenues and our
five largest customers accounted for 78% of ousobidated revenues. Our customers periodically lexypeessed their intent to scale back,
delay or restructure existing customer agreemavitish has led to reduced revenues from these ceswand which may occur again in the
future. As a result, our operating profits and grosrgins have been negatively affected by a deatiproduction levels, which has created
production volume inefficiencies in our operati@ml cost structures.

Additionally, if our relationships with sidicant customers should change materially, itiddae difficult for us to immediately and
profitably replace lost sales in a market with sachcentration, which would materially adverselfeaf our results. We could be adversely
impacted by decreased customer demand for our ptodud services due to (1) the impact of currefiitnre economic conditions on our
customers, (2) our customers' loss of market sfetactempetitors of theirs that do not use our praesiuend (3) our loss of market share with our
customers. We could lose market share with ouocusts to competitors or to our customers themsgeshesild they decide to become more
vertically integrated and produce our productseiver our services internally. Finally, most ofraustomers do not purchase all of our
products and services, so if some of our custogeirsmarket share, it could impact our mix of pradiand services among our segments.

In addition, even if our customers contitmielo business with us, we can be adversely &ifidoy a number of other potential
developments with our customers. For example:

. our customers may not comply with their contracpetment or volume obligations. The inability oildee of our customers t
meet their contractual obligations could have aemaltadverse effect on our business, financiaitippsand results of
operations;

. our customers have in the past sought, and inutiveef may seek, to renegotiate the terms of cuagrgements or renewals.

example, some customers have sought payments dor glaims despite contractual limits that preewur obligation to mal
payments for such claims;
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. although our subsidiary companies operate indepelyda dispute between a significant customerwasdr one of our
subsidiaries could have a negative effect on tisinless relationship we have with that customersscoor entire organization.
Among other things, such a dispute could lead towamall decrease in such customer's demand foprmgiucts and services or
difficulty in collecting amounts due to one or marfeour subsidiaries that are otherwise not rel&veslich dispute; and

. a material change in payment terms for accountsivable of a significant customer could have a mi@tadverse effect on ol
short-term cash flows.

Our customers may be significantly affected by disruptions and volatility in the economy and in the wind energy market.

Current market disruptions and regular raaolatility may have adverse impacts on our augtis' ability to pay when due the amounts
payable to us and could cause related increasms working capital or borrowing needs. In additionr customers have in the past attempted
and may attempt in the future to renegotiate thmgeof contracts or reduce the size of orders wstlas a result of disruptions and volatility in
the markets. Our backlog is significant, but werzarpredict with any degree of certainty the amafrdgur backlog that we will ultimately st
to our customers.

Market disruptions and regular market ititatmay also result in an increased likelihoodonir customers asserting warranty or
remediation claims in connection with our produmtservices that they would not ordinarily assetd imore stable economic environment. In
the event of such a claim, we may incur costs ifteeide to compensate the affected customer argage in litigation against the affected
customer regarding the claim. We maintain prodiatility insurance, but there can be no guarartiaeguch insurance will be available or
adequate to protect against such claims. A suadedafm against us could result in a material agdgesffect on our business.

We may have difficulty raising additional financing when needed or on acceptable terms and there can be no assurances that our operations
will generate cash flows in an amount sufficient to enable usto pay our indebtedness.

We rely on banks and capital markets asuace of liquidity for capital requirements notiséiéd by cash flows from operations. While
anticipate that our current cash resources andgasérated through our operations and credit litiebe adequate to meet our liquidity needs
for at least the next twelve months, our committedrces of liquidity may be inadequate to satisfy @perational needs. If we are not able to
access capital at competitive rates, the abilityplement our business plans may be adverselgtafieIn the absence of access to capital
resources, we could face substantial liquidity peois and might be required to dispose of matesis¢ts or operations at times when the prices
for such assets are depressed. In such event, waahae able to consummate those dispositionsh&umore, the proceeds of any such
dispositions may not be adequate to meet our debice obligations when due.

Additionally, our ability to make schedulpdyments on our existing or future debt obligatiand fund operations will depend on our
future financial and operating performance. Whike lvelieve we will continue to have sufficient cdielws to operate our businesses, there can
be no assurances that our operations will genstdtieient cash flows to enable us to pay our rerimgj indebtedness or to fund our other
liquidity needs. If we cannot make scheduled paytsien our debt, we will be in default and, as alteamong other things, our debt holders
could declare all outstanding principal and intete$e due and payable which could force us taidigte certain assets or substantially
restructure or alter our business operations or aleligations. Moreover, if we are unable to obtadiditional capital or if our current sources
financing are reduced or unavailable, we will likee
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required to delay, reduce the scope of, or elinsitmair plans for expansion and growth and this cafflett our overall operations.

Growth and diversification through acquisitions and internal expansion may not be successful, and could result in poor financial
performance.

To execute our business strategy, we mely eacquire new businesses. We may not be aldiemdify appropriate acquisition candide
or successfully negotiate, finance or integrataugsitions. If we are unable to make acquisitions,may be unable to realize the growth we
anticipate. Future acquisitions could involve nuonesrrisks including difficulties in integrating tloperations, services, products and personnel
of the acquired business, and the potential losepemployees, customers and suppliers of theimtjbusiness. If we are unable to
successfully manage these acquisition risks, futaraings may be adversely affected.

We may also grow our existing businessupoincreased production levels at existing faesiand through expansion to new
manufacturing facilities and locations, such asregently completed drivetrain service center inlée, Texas. Such expansion and any ft
expansion will require coordinated efforts acrdes€ompany and continued enhancements to our ¢unpenating infrastructure, including
management and operations personnel, systems aipiveant, and property. Difficulties or delays imjaing and effectively integrating any
new facilities may adversely affect future perfonoe. For example, we recorded higher costs in 20@8nnection with the startup of
production at our Abilene, Texas tower manufacyfarcility. Moreover, if our expansion efforts dotradequately predict the demand of our
customers and our potential customers, our futareiegs may be adversely affected.

We face competition from industry participants who may have greater resources than we do.

Our businesses are subject to risks agsdcigith competition from new or existing induspgrticipants who may have more resources
and better access to capital. Many of our compstaod potential competitors may have substantigtiater financial, customer support,
technical and marketing resources, larger custdrases, longer operating histories, greater nanognéon and more established relationsl
in the industry than we do. Among other thingssthimdustry participants compete with us based ypice, quality, location and available
capacity. We cannot be sure that we will have éseurces or expertise to compete successfullyeifutiure. Some of our competitors may ¢
be able to provide customers with additional besefi lower overall costs to increase market sh&eecannot be sure that we will be able to
match cost reductions by our competitors or thatwllebe able to succeed in the face of currenfuture competition. In addition, we may face
competition from our customers as they seek to beemertically integrated and offer full serviceckages. Some of our customers are also
performing more services themselves.

We have generated net losses and negative cash flows since our inception.

We have experienced operating losses fdr ehthe years during which we have operateddtitin, in light of current economic
conditions and the state of the wind energy mark#te U.S., we anticipate that losses and peradaegative cash flow may occur in the
foreseeable future. We have incurred significast£on connection with the development of our besges, and there is no assurance that we
will achieve sufficient revenues to offset anti¢gzhoperating costs. Although we anticipate degvievenues from the sale of our products and
services, no assurance can be given that thesagisoahd services can be sold on a profitable bdsi® achieve profitability, we cannot give
any assurance that we would be able to sustaimcoease profitability on a quarterly or annual basithe future.
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We may not be able to identify alternative uses, sell or otherwise dispose of our wind tower manufacturing facility in Brandon, South Dakota.

In the first quarter of 2010, we completeastruction of a third wind tower manufacturingifidy in Brandon, South Dakota, but as of the
date hereof, we have not commenced productioriafability. Following the Company's strategic phémg meetings that took place in the
fourth quarter of 2010, we determined that duénéodversupply of capacity in the U.S. tower mag the significant level of towers
imported from Asia, it would be difficult or impdbge to operate this facility in a profitable orsteeffective manner. We are currently
exploring alternative uses for the building andipment comprising this facility. In connection withis determination, during the fourth
quarter of 2010, we recorded an impairment chaf@d8.3 million. We may elect to sell or otherwiispose of the facility and equipment, or
use them for a different business purpose. If veeuaiable to find an alternative use or are unabtell or otherwise dispose of the facility and
equipment, we would continue to incur significaretl costs associated with ownership of the facilithere can be no assurance that we will
be able to identify alternate uses, sell or othsevdispose of the facility and equipment on tereented to be commercially reasonable by us.

Our future operating results and the market price of our common stock could be materially adversely affected if we are required to take
additional write downsto the carrying value of long-lived assets associated with any of our operating segmentsin the future.

We review our long-lived assets, includinangibles, for impairment whenever events or gegrin circumstances indicate the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverablev&ability is measured by a comparison of thetaSsarrying amount to their expected
future undiscounted net cash flows. If such asmetsonsidered to be impaired, the impairment trebegnized is measured based on the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteds its fair value.

In addition to the impairment related to Buandon, South Dakota wind tower manufacturirglitg, during the fourth quarter of 2010\
performed a review of other long-lived assets amtttuded that the projected fair value of the Smwisegment assets was less than the
carrying value. As a result, we recorded an impaiticharge of $22.9 million related to intangibhel @ther long-lived assets.

In the future, if our projected undiscouhtash flows associated with our operating segnmtsot exceed the carrying value of their net
assets, we may be required to record additionaévddwns of the carrying value of intangible assetsther long-lived assets associated with
any of our operating segments and our operatingtseand the market price of our common stock maynaterially adversely affected.

Disruptionsin the supply of parts and raw materials, or changesin supplier relations, may negatively impact our operating results.

We are dependent upon the supply of certainmaterials used in our production process,these raw materials are exposed to price
fluctuations on the open market. Raw material cfisttems such as steel, the primary raw matersed by us, have fluctuated significantly
and may continue to fluctuate. To reduce price caksed by market fluctuations, we have genenatlgrporated price adjustment clauses in
our sales contracts. However, limitations on avidlity of raw materials or increases in the costa® materials (including steel), energy,
transportation and other necessary services magdhqur operating results if our manufacturing basses are not able to fully pass on the
costs associated with such increases to their cégpeustomers. Alternatively, we will not realizeaterial improvements from declines in s
prices as the terms of many of our contracts pethat we pass through these costs to our customers
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In addition, we may encounter supplier ¢ists, be unable to maintain favorable suppliearegements and relations or be affected by
disruptions in the supply chain caused by suchsva@nnatural disasters, power outages and latikesstin the event of significant increase
decreases in the price of raw materials, partibuiteel, our margins and profitability could begagvely impacted.

If our projections regarding the future market demand for our products and services are inaccurate, our operating results and our overall
business may be adversely affected.

We had previously made significant cagitabstments in anticipation of rapid growth in th&5. wind energy market. However, the
growth in the U.S. wind energy market has not lggmte with the expectations we had when some oé tbasital investments were made, and
there can be no assurance that the U.S. wind emeagiet will grow and develop in a manner consistéth our past expectations. The
expansion of our internal manufacturing and sereagabilities has required significant up-fronefixcosts. If market demand for our products
and services does not increase at the pace weanéiegpated and align with our expanded manufaetudapacity, we may be unable to offset
these costs and to achieve economies of scalewanmperating results may continue to be adveraiécted as a result of high fixed costs,
reduced margins and underutilization of capacitylight of these considerations, we may be forcetporarily idle existing capacity or sell
to third parties manufacturing capacity that werzdnutilize in the near term. Alternatively, if veeperience rapid demand for our products and
services in excess of our estimates, or we hawgestlour manufacturing capacity, our installed tegiquipment and existing workforce may
be insufficient to support higher production volenehich could harm our customer relationships @retall reputation. In addition, we may
not be able to expand our workforce and operatio@stimely manner, procure adequate resourcdecate suitable third-party suppliers, to
respond effectively to changes in demand for oistieng products and services or to the demandédear products and services requested by
customers, and our business could be adverselgtadfeOur ability to meet such excess customer ddmauld also depend on our ability to
raise additional capital and effectively scale manufacturing operations.

If our estimates for warranty expenses differ materially from actual claims made, or if we are unable to reasonably estimate future warranty
expense for our products and services, our business and financial results could be negatively affected.

We provide warranty terms generally randietyveen one and seven years to our tower, geandgervices customers depending upon
the specific product or service and terms of tre@mer agreement. We reserve for warranty clairsedan industry experience and estimates
made by management based upon a percentage ailesrsvenues related to such products or senficem time to time, customers have
submitted warranty claims against us. However, axgeha limited history on which to base our warraggiimates for certain products that we
manufacture and services that we provide. Our agsans could be materially different from the adtparformance of our products in the
future and could exceed the levels against whiclhawe reserved. In some instances our customeesihgrpreted the scope and coverage of
certain of our warranty provisions differently fravar interpretation of such provisions. The expsrassociated with remediation activities in
the wind energy industry can be substantial, ameeifire required to pay such costs in connectioim ascustomer's warranty claim we could be
subject to additional unplanned cash expenditufesir estimates prove materially incorrect, owd are required to cover remediation
expenses in addition to our regular warranty cayerave could be required to incur additional expsrend could face a material unplanned
cash expenditure, which could harm our financia aperating results.
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Material weaknesses or other deficienciesin our internal controls over financial reporting, including potential failure to prevent or detect
errorsor fraud, could affect the accuracy of our reported financial results.

We are required to design, implement anthtai effective controls over financial reportirgmaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal controleoyinancial reporting such that there is a reablEnpossibility that a material misstatement of
a company's annual or interim financial statemwiiltsnot be prevented or detected on a timely basis

As referenced in Item 9A, "Controls anddeaures” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, mamaget of the Company has determined
that as of December 31, 2010, the Company mairdaffective controls over financial reporting. Hoxge, in each of 2008 and 2009
management concluded that the Company had mates&gdnesses over its internal controls over findmeorting. While we have now
remediated these past material weaknesses angé#iiat we have designed and implemented procetiurasaintain effective controls over
financial reporting, we cannot be certain that wit ot in the future have material weaknessesgmicant deficiencies in our internal
controls over financial reporting, or that we vallccessfully remediate any weaknesses or defi@eiioat we find. Internal control weaknesses
or deficiencies in the future could affect our @pito complete our financial reporting on a timélgsis or report accurate numbers. If we an
able to maintain the requirements of Section 40thefSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes-Oxlgy8 timely manner or with adequate
compliance, we may be subject to sanctions or tigetson by regulatory authorities. This type ofiao could adversely affect our financial
results or investors' confidence in our company @ndability to access capital markets, and coalase our stock price to decline.

Trade restrictions may present barriersto entry in certain international markets.

Restrictions on trade with certain inteimal markets could affect our ability to expantbithose markets. In addition, the existence of
government subsidies available to our competitokertain countries may affect our ability to contepen a price basis.

We may be unable to keep pace with rapidly changing technology in wind turbine component manufacturing.

The global market for wind turbines is dipievolving technologically. Our component manddging equipment and technology may not
be suited for future generations of products béiegeloped by wind turbine companies. For exampleeswind turbine manufacturers are
using wind turbine towers made from concrete instfasteel. Other wind turbine designs have reddledise of gearing or eliminated the
gearbox entirely through the use of direct or cochplaive technologies. To maintain a successfuirtass in our field, we must keep pace with
technological developments and changing standdrdgracustomers and potential customers and meetd¢bnstantly evolving demands. If»
fail to adequately respond to the technologicahges in our industry, or are not suited to prowddmponents for new types of wind turbines,
our net worth, financial condition and operatinguiés may be adversely affected.

We rely on unionized labor, the loss of which could adversely affect our future success.

We are dependent on the services of urganiazbor and have collective bargaining agreemaitkscertain of our operations workforce at
our Cicero and Neville Island gearing facilitiehi€lloss of the services of these and other pergomhether through terminations, attrition,
labor strike, or otherwise, or a material changeuncollective bargaining agreements, could haneterial adverse impact on us and our
future profitability. Collective bargaining agreente have been ratified by collective bargainingsiim place at our Cicero, lllinois and Nevi
Island, Pennsylvania facilities and expire in Feloyur014 and October 2012, respectively. As of Démer 31, 2010, our collective bargaining
units represented approximately 23% of our workdéorc
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We need to hire additional qualified personnel, including management personnel, and the loss of our key personnel could harm our
business.

Our future success will depend largely tom gkills, efforts and motivation of our executofficers and other key personnel. Our success
also depends, in large part, upon our ability tcaat and retain highly qualified management andp&rsonnel throughout our organization.
During 2011, we will likely need to hire additionarsonnel, including management, engineering ales personnel, to fill in our organizati
We face competition in the attraction and retentbpersonnel who possess the skill sets that wk. $e addition, key personnel may leave
company and subsequently compete against us. Shefdhe services of any of our key personneburrfailure to attract and retain other
qualified and experienced personnel on acceptabtest could have a material adverse effect on osinkss, results of operations, or financial
condition.

Our ability to comply with regulatory requirementsis critical to our future success and our current level of controls cannot guarantee that we
are in compliance with all such requirements.

As a manufacturer and distributor of wimdl ather energy industry products we may be or imecsubject to the requirements of federal,
state and local or foreign regulatory authoritlesaddition, we are subject to a number of industandard-setting authorities, such as the
American Gear Manufacturers Association and the #aaa Welding Society. Changes in the standardseguairements imposed by such
authorities could have a material adverse effeaiorin the event we are unable to meet any sartdatds when adopted, our business could
be adversely affected. We may not be able to olatdimegulatory approvals, licenses and permits ey be required in the future, or any
necessary modifications to existing regulatory appls, licenses and permits, or maintain all regfliregulatory approvals, licenses and
permits.

There can be no guarantee that our busieese in full compliance with such standards aogdirements. We continue to develop our
internal controls with a goal of providing a greadegree of certainty that our businesses arermptiance with applicable governmental and
regulatory requirements, but our current levelntéinal control may fail to reveal to us matenwtances of non-compliance with such
requirements, and such non-compliance could hawatarial adverse effect on our business.

Our principal stockholder hasthe ability to influence our affairs significantly.

Tontine Capital Management, L.L.C. ("TCMTpntine Capital Overseas GP, L.L.C. ("TCO"), TastManagement, L.L.C. ("TM"),
Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C. ("TOA"), ToatDapital Overseas Master Fund II, L.P. ("TCP Mntine Assets Associates, L.L.C.
("TAA"), Tontine Power Partners, L.P. ("TPP") andriine Associates, L.L.C. ("TA," and collectivehtiv TCM, TCO, TM, TOA, TCP II,

TAA and TPP and their affiliates, "Tontine") owrngpaoximately 18.3% of our outstanding common stddthough Tontine currently does r
have any representatives on our Board of Direcawatine has, and for so long as they hold at 188%t of our then issued and outstanding
common stock will continue to have, the right teideate two individuals on our Board of Directotsguant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement entered into with Broadwind in August 208s a result, Tontine may have the ability tanffigantly influence our policies,
business and affairs, and the outcome of any catpdransaction or other matter, including mergawasolidations and the sale of all, or
substantially all, of our assets. Tontine's sigaifit ownership level may have the effect of delgydeterring or preventing a change in control
that otherwise could result in a premium in the@f our common stock. In addition, the action3 @fitine may have the effect of influencing
changes in control or changes in management, difgrthe ability of our other stockholders to appe transactions that they may deem to be
in their best interest.
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We may not have the technical expertise and we may be unable to secure the necessary patents or other intellectual property rights needed to
successfully market new products that we may develop.

A key element of our business and operattrafegy is to exploit our technological abilitydesign new manufacturing and service
processes and products to take advantage of tlogpated growth in the North American wind markdistorically, we have not developed
patented technology or engaged in technical desak on a significant scale. If we are unable teedep new manufacturing and service
processes and products that are attractive toumtomers and potential customers, or if we are lertabsecure the necessary patents or other
intellectual property rights needed to preventaampetitors from developing and marketing subsadigtsimilar products, we could experiel
a material adverse effect on our business andtsesubperations.

We cannot insure against all potential risks and may have difficulty insuring our business activities or become subject to increased insurance
premiums.

Our business is subject to a number osrisicluding inherent risks associated with manwfiéicg and service and construction suppor
wind turbines. To mitigate the risks associatedwitir business, we have obtained various insurpoliges. However, our insurance policies
have high deductibles in certain instances andal@over losses as a result of certain events asi¢arrorist attacks. In addition, our insurance
policies are subject to annual review by our ingiend these policies may not be renewed at a@haimilar or favorable terms. If we were to
incur a significant uninsured loss or a loss inemscof the limits of our insurance policies, thautes could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openat

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located ipeialle, lllinois, which is a suburb located we$tChicago, lllinois. In addition, our
subsidiaries own or lease operating facilities,clibare presented by operating segment as follows:

Operating Segment anc Owned / Approximate
Facility Type Location Leased Square Footage
Towers

Tower Manufacturing Manitowoc, WI Lease! 200,00t
Tower Manufacturing Abilene, TX Ownec 146,00(
Tower Manufacturing Brandon, SD(1 Ownec 146,00(
Specialty Structure Manitowoc, WI Lease! 45,00(
Specialty Structure Clintonville, W1 Ownec 63,00(
Gearing

Gearing System Manufacturi—Finishing Cicero, IL Ownec 198,00(
Gearing System Manufacturi—Machining Cicero, IL Lease! 301,00(
Gearing System Manufacturi—Heat Treatmer Neville Island, PA  Ownec 70,00(
Services

Service and Maintenan Gary, SD Leasel 25,00(
Service and Maintenan: Abilene, TX Leasel 297,00(
Service and Maintenan: Howard, SD Ownec 25,00(
Service and Maintenan Tehachapi, C/ Lease! 5,00(
Corporate

Administrative Naperville, IL Leasel 6,80(

@ Construction of the tower manufacturing facilitgéted in Brandon, South Dakota was completed itfitbiequarter of
2010. We have not begun production at this facifgllowing the Company's strategic planning megtithat took place
in the fourth quarter of 2010, we determined thatauld be difficult or impossible to operate tfégility in a profitable o
cost-effective manner. As such, we are currentplaring alternative uses for the building and equemt comprising this
facility, and recorded an impairment charge of $18illion in the fourth quarter 2010 related tostfacility.

We consider that our facilities are in gamhdition and are adequate for our present andduteeds.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 11, 2011, a putative clas®adtias filed in the United States District Count fiee Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division, against Broadwind and certain of its emtror former officers and directors. The lawssiipurportedly brought on behalf of
purchasers of our common stock between March 109 206d August 9, 2010. The complaint seeks to aliegt the defendants violated
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10bebnuigated thereunder, and Section 20(a) of thé&xge Act by issuing a series of
allegedly false and/or misleading statements cariegrour financial results, operations, and prospencluding with respect to the January
2010 secondary public offering of our common std#tween February 15, 2011 and March 9, 2011, thuéative shareholder derivative
lawsuits were filed in the United States Districtu@ for the Northern District of Illinois, EasteBivision, and one putative shareholder
derivative lawsuit was filed in the Circuit Couft@ook County, lllinois, Chancery Division, agairmsrtain of our current and former officers
and directors, and certain Tontine entities, saptdnchallenge alleged breaches of fiduciary duty,
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waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichmegitiding in connection with the January 2010 seaongublic offering of our common stoc
One of the lawsuits also alleges that certain tirscviolated Section 14(a) of the Exchange Aatdnnection with our Proxy Statement for our
2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Because ofttediminary nature of these lawsuits, we are ¢ 0 estimate a loss or range of loss,
but based on currently available information weestgghat any liability resulting from these claimsuld be substantially covered by our
insurance policies.

We are aware of an investigation commefnmethe United States Attorney's Office, Northerstict of Illinois, for potential violation of
federal environmental laws. On February 15, 20fficials from the USEPA conducted a search of oheun facilities in Cicero, lllinois.
During the search, officials interviewed a numbkowr employees and seized documents relatingetdatility's compliance with certain
environmental laws and regulations. Also on Felyrd&r, 2011, we received a subpoena requesting ptioduof certain documents relating to
the facility's compliance with certain environmeéntgulations relating to the generation, dischange disposal of wastewater from certain of
our processes from 2004 to the present. We afeeiprtocess of responding to this subpoena, whiporese is currently due on March 24,
2011. On February 23, 2011, we also received aitiadal subpoena requesting production of certaiouients relating to certain of our
employees and environmental and manufacturing pesse We are in the process of responding to thisaena, and have requested an
extension of the time allotted to respond. Suckmsibns are generally granted as a matter of rubiat we have not yet received a new date
by which such response will be due. We do not cilyéhave information as to when the investigatioay be concluded, and we are also
conducting an internal investigation of any possitbncompliance. At this time, we have not beem#&ily notified that we are a subject or
target of the investigation and no fines or peaaltiave been suggested. There can be no assuttaaicd® conclusion of the investigation will
not result in a determination that we have violapglicable laws. If we are found to have violasedh laws, we could be subject to fines, civil
penalties and criminal penalties. We have recoediability of $675 at December 31, 2010, whichresgnts the low end of our estimate of
costs and expenses that have been incurred, ohwehgcexpected to be incurred during 2011 in catimregvith this matter. Due to the
preliminary nature of the investigation, it is reaably possible that our estimate of the obligatrmy change in the near term.

We are also a party to additional claima kgal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowfseusiness. Due to the inherent uncertainty of
litigation, there can be no assurance that thdutso of any particular claim or proceeding woulot have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial position or ligityd It is possible that if one or more of the neastdescribed above were decided against us, the
effects could be material to our results of operetiin the period in which we would be requiredeoord or adjust the related liability and
could also be material to our cash flows in thequr we would be required to pay such liability.

ITEM 4. RESERVED
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PART I

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Prior to April 9, 2009, our common stocksapuoted on the OTC Bulletin Board ("OTCBB") untlee symbol "BWEN.OB." Our
common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Globaé&aWlarket ("NASDAQ") on April 9, 2009 under thenslyol "BWEN."

The following table sets forth the rangenigh and low bid quotations as reported by the 8BQor the first quarter of 2009 and for the
second quarter for the period of April 1 throughrih®, 2009. Quotations on the OTCBB reflect intiraler prices, which do not include retail
mark-up, mark-down or commissions, and may notesgmt actual sale prices. For the second quar29G¥ since April 9, 2009 and for all
subsequent quarters, the table sets forth thearigHow bid prices of our common stock traded aN\SDAQ Global Select Market.

Common Stock

High Low
2010
First quarte $ 8.47 $ 4.0
Second quarte 4.57 2.1t
Third quartel 3.8¢ 1.4z
Fourth quarte 2.4z 1.5¢
High Low
2009
First quarte! $ 54t $ 2.6C
Second quarte 11.4¢ 4.0t
Third quartel 12.4¢ 7.1¢
Fourth quarte 9.92 5.01

The closing price for our common stock BMarch 1, 2011 was $1.51. As of March 1, 2011reheere 82 holders of record of our
common stock.

We have never paid cash dividends on ommgon stock and have no current plan to do so irfidieseeable future. The declaration and
payment of dividends on our common stock are stiltjethe discretion of our Board of Directors ame further limited by our credit
agreements and other contractual agreements wénavayin place from time to time. The decision of Board of Directors to pay future
dividends will depend on general business condstitime effect of a dividend payment on our finahectadition, and other factors the Board of
Directors may consider relevant. The current potitpur Board of Directors is to reinvest cash gatesl in our operations to promote future
growth and to fund potential investments.

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed "soliciting material" diléd" under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, eaciin@ended, nor shall such information be incorpeddty reference by any general
statement incorporating by reference this Annugdreon Form 10-K into any filing under such A&gcept to the extent that the Company
specifically incorporates it by reference into sditimg.

The following graph compares cumulativerehalder returns for our common stock as compaiiddtive S&P 500 and the Clean Edge
Global Wind Energy Index for the period from Amil 2009 (the date our common stock began tradinh®NASDAQ Global Select Market)
to December 31, 2010. The graph assumes an investh$100 as of April 9, 2009 and that dividendsrevreinvested.
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At December 31, 2010, the Company changed the inded in the performance graph to the Clean EdgbabWind Energy Index from the
PowerShares Global Wind Energy Index, which hadhhesed in the prior year, as we believe it willsbleetter representation of the overall
wind market in future periods. The historical réswabtained from using the Clean Edge Global WindrBy Index are materially consistent
with those obtained from using the PowerShares &@dlind Energy Index.
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Repurchases

We did not engage in any repurchases otommon stock during the year ended December 31).20
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

There were no unregistered sales of egeaityrities during the fourth quarter or for therye@ded December 31, 2010.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

See Part lll, Item 12 "Security OwnershifCertain Beneficial Owners and Management andtRel&tockholder Matters” of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for information as of DecemBg&y 2010 with respect to shares of our common deekmay be issued under our
existing share-based compensation plans.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical consotethfinancial and other data are qualified in tlegitirety by reference to, and should be read in
conjunction with, our consolidated financial stagens and the related notes thereto appearing etseviterein and Part I, Iltem 7
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarnC@idition and Results of Operations.” Our selestatement of continuing operations ¢
set forth below for each of the years ended Dece®be2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006, and thenbalsheet data as of December 31, 2
2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006, are derived from ousadrated financial statements. The selected s&téonf continuing operations data
excludes the results of our Badger subsidiary, wismow reported as discontinued operations.

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Selected Statement of Operation
Data
Revenue! $ 136,89¢ $ 184,79¢ $ 207,34¢ $ 29,80: $ 4,02t
Gross profit (loss 1,94¢ 11,90 31,69¢ 3,93¢ (799
Gross profit (loss) percenta 1.4% 6.4% 15.2% 13.2%  (19.9%
Impairment charges(: $ 40,777 $ 82,21! $ 2,40¢ $ — $ —
Intangible amortizatiol 2,992 9,52¢ 10,64t 1,75(C 21
Operating los: (69,227  (112,25) (21,879 (3,53  (2,32))
Loss from continuing operatiol (69,759 (107,026 (25,27%) (3,362) (2,735
Net loss per sha—basic and
diluted:
Loss from continuing operatiol (0.6€) (2.17) (0.2¢) (0.09) (0.0¢)

Cash dividends per common sh — — — — —

As of December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Selected Balance Sheet Da
Assets:
Property and equipment, r $ 106,31° $ 129,61¢ $ 136,131 $ 58,89( $ 2,79¢
Total asset 183,50¢ 231,48t 380,60¢ 205,81¢ 3,89¢
Liabilities:
Total lon¢-term debt, net ¢
current maturitie 9,671 13,39¢ 24,397 17,62( 807

Total stockholders' equity (defici 126,19¢ 155,59! 262,15¢ 124,53t (5,319

For the Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Selected Other Dat—Non GAAP

Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA(2) $ (9,837) $ 1,91 $ 2,42C $ 10z $ (1,649
Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage( (7.2% 1.C% 1.2% 0.3% (40.9%

Q) See Note 8 "Goodwill and Intangible Assets" in Pdrtitem 15 in the notes to our consolidated ficiahstatements for
further discussion of the impairment charges festhyears.

(2 For any period, earnings from continuing operatibefore interest, taxes, depreciation, amortizatéon share-based
compensation ("Adjusted EBITDA") are calculatethassented below. We believe that Adjusted EBITDAasticularly
meaningful due principally to the ro
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acquisitions have played in our development. Hisadly, our growth through acquisitions has resiiite significant no-
cash depreciation and amortization expense beeasigmificant portion of the purchase price of aoquired businesses
is generally allocated to depreciable fixed asamtslong-lived assets, which primarily consist obdwill and
amortizable intangible assets. Please note thatstelj EBITDA should not be considered an altereattiy nor is there
any implication that Adjusted EBITDA is more meagfl than, any measure of performance or liquigitymulgated
under accounting principles generally acceptetiénd.S. ("GAAP"). Additionally, the calculation 8djusted EBITDA
excludes the effect of any goodwill, intangible dodg-lived asset impairment charg:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Loss from

continuing

operations $ (69,757 $ (107,02¢) $ (25,27¢) $ (3,362) $ (2,73%)
(Benefit)

provision

for income

taxes (160) (9479) 1,09¢ (1,039 —
Interest

expense,

net 1,172 2,17¢ 2,104 83¢ 411
Impairment

charges 40,77 82,21 2,40¢ — —
Depreciation

and

amortizatic 16,46 22,69¢ 20,09 3,52: 32¢
Share-basec

compensa 1,66¢ 2,80¢ 1,99¢ 142 358

Adjusted
EBITDA $ (9839% 191t $ 242($ 10% $ (1,649

3) Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage is equal to AtgdsEBITDA divided by total revenu
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion below contains "forward-looking esta¢nts," as defined in Section 21E of the Exchaagehat reflect our current
expectations regarding our future growth, result®perations, cash flows, performance and busipesspects and opportunities, as well as
assumptions made by, and information currently labée to, our management. We have tried to ideftifward-looking statements by using
words such as "anticipate,” "believe," "plan,” "eq," "intend,” "will," and similar expressions, tilnese words are not the exclusive means of
identifying forward-looking statements. These stegets are based on information currently availableis and are subject to various risks,
uncertainties, and other factors, including, but fimited to, those matters discussed in Item 1i&KRactors" in Part | of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, that could cause our actual grow#sults of operations, cash flows, performance arginess prospects and opportunities to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iragdlby, these statements. Except as expressly eelgoyrthe federal securities laws, we
undertake no obligation to update such factorsoopiblicly announce the results of any of the fodMaoking statements contained herein to
reflect future events, developments, or changemlimistances, or for any other reason.

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thengetwe,
Broadwind Energy, Inc. and its whc-owned subsidiaries.

us,” "our,"” "Broadwind," "Broadwind Eneyyand the "Company" refer to

(Dollars are presented in thousands unless otherwise stated)
Business Overview

Broadwind Energy provides technologicalyanced high-value products and services to enengyng and infrastructure sector
customers, primarily in the U.S. Our most signifitpresence is within the U.S. wind industry, wheeebelieve we are the only independent
company that offers our breadth of products andiges to the market. Our product and service photfirovides our customers, including
wind turbine manufacturers, wind farm developerd wind farm operators, with access to a broad asfaymponent and service offerings.
Outside of the wind market, we provide precisioargey and specialty weldments to industrial custanearticularly in the energy, mining &
infrastructure sectors.

The Company was built primarily through aisifions made in 2007 and 2008. Beginning in 2368, the severe impacts of the global
economic downturn and banking crisis significartyacted the wind energy business in general anddvind in particular. The recession
and lack of adequate capital to fund new wind fdewelopments caused new equipment order intakeofm dontributed to pressure on proc
margins and reduced service opportunities. Althowghad a number of multi-year framework agreeminggace with key customers, their
purchase requirements dropped sharply which neatssirenegotiations of volume commitments andegrin certain instances. Accordingly,
the decline in production levels across our busingsts has created production volume inefficiesi@ithin our operations and cost structures,
which has had a negative effect on our operatinfjtprand gross margins.

We have taken a number of steps to redpeeating costs, repay debt and improve our findpasition and product offerings. As such,
we believe we are weflositioned to capture market opportunities assediatith growth in wind energy and other industdamand in the U.!
We believe that growth in the U.S. wind energy rneamkill be driven by: (i) macroeconomic factors;linding economic recovery and increa
demand for electricity, rising energy prices andefal and state-level wind development incentifi@sypgrades to existing transmission
infrastructure and increasing proliferation of sthgard technology, and (iii) the maturation of teckogies and services within the wind
industry, including increased turbine efficienciagsoordinated global supply chain and
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improved focus on equipment maintenance and rétiabbiven our significant installed manufacturiagd service platform, we believe we
will be able to substantially grow revenues withmaking significant investment in additional capagquipment or manufacturing capacity.

We review our goodwill balances for impaémmh on at least an annual basis and review oungitiéee and other long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circuroegimdicate that the asset's carrying value anmoagtnot be recoverable. During the
second quarter of 2010, the Company identifiedggéring event associated with the continued detation in the financial performance
within our Services segment. This triggering ewequired a revision of the Company's projectiofutdfire operating results and cash flows for
this segment in light of the continued economic kvess in the wind energy industry. We performedreuiew of goodwill based on the
carrying value of these assets as of June 30, 20ithe estimate of fair-value for each of ourrapeg segments was based primarily on
projected future results, cash flows and otherrapsions. As a result of this review, we recordegbadwill impairment charge of $4,561 at
June 30, 2010 in our Services segment. Duringabeh quarter of 2010, the Company identified tedag events associated with the
Company's current period operating losses, it®hisif continued operating losses and its revigejeptions of operating results and cash
flows developed as part of the strategic plannirg@ss. As a result, our review of other long-liasdets indicated that the carrying values of
customer relationships, trade name and propertyegogpment at our Services segment were also ieghadtccordingly, we recorded an
impairment charge during the fourth quarter of 822, In addition, we determined that our BrandaytB Dakota tower manufacturing faci
was impaired and recorded an impairment chargxed fassets of $13,326.

In connection with our December 2010 decisd divest our Badger Transport, Inc. subsid{@Badger"), which formerly comprised our
Logistics segment, we have classified Badger dsauntinued operation. The assets and liabilitteBamlger have been classified as "Assets
held for sale" and "Liabilities held for sale" inrConsolidated Balance Sheet. In connection vkighréclassification to assets held for sale, we
recorded an impairment charge of $10,020 to wigerdthe assets to their net realizable value. Tpairment charge is included in "Loss
from Discontinued Operations” in our Consolidateat&ment of Operations.

In connection with our annual goodwill inmpaent analysis as of October 31, 2009, we detezththat the goodwill balance attributabli
our Gearing segment was impaired due to a detéioarm financial performance during 2009 and assult of the subsequent fourth quarter
revision in our projection of future operating rigsand cash flows in light of the effect of thentoued economic downturn on the wind
gearing industry. Additionally, we determined tha carrying value of our RBA trade name was ingzhiis a result of the merger of the
operations of our subsidiary R.B.A. Inc. ("RBA"}Ydénour Towers segment in December 2009 and that'®RBu#stomer relationship intangible
was impaired due to a revision in projected reveraral cash flows associated with this custometioekhip. We recorded goodwill and
intangible impairment charges of $24,269 and $57, 8dspectively, to properly reflect the carryirajue of these assets.

In the future, if our projected discountash flows associated with our operating segmemtsotiexceed the carrying value of their net
assets, we may be required to record additionaéwowns of the carrying value of intangible assetsther long-lived assets associated with
any of our operating segments, in which event garating results, and the market price of our comstock may be materially adversely
affected.

Summary of Recent Events:

. On January 21, 2010, we completed a public offeoinfompany common stock at an offering price af7f$5er share, raisir
net proceeds of approximately $53,300. A portiothefproceeds from the offering was used to red#®yQ¥6 of outstanding
indebtedness under our

27




Table of Contents

Bank of America debt agreements and $3,066 of auttitg indebtedness under our line of credit withestors Community
Bank ("ICB").

. On March 1, 2010, we announced plans to expangeanox refurbishment capabilities through investhire a dedicated MV
drivetrain service center in Abilene, Texas. Thalifg became fully operational in February, 20¥idaffers refurbishment
capacity and full-load testing for gearboxes uf3 tdW, with an annual capacity of approximately 500/.

. On September 10, 2010, we announced the appointwhdasse E. Collins, Jr. as executive vice presided chief operatin
officer of the Company. Mr. Collins is a wind indrysveteran with over 15 years of manufacturing apdrations experience,
and most recently held the position of group prsicit Broadwind, responsible for the towers agistecs business units.

. On September 29, 2010, we entered into Accountiagie Agreements with Wells Fargo Business Crediityigion of Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Wells Fargo"). The aggregatelitgdimit under these agreements is $10,000. Rwants have been drawn
under the agreements.

. On December 1, 2010, Peter C. Duprey became presade chief executive officer of the Company andeanber of our Boar
of Directors. Mr. Duprey has extensive renewablergy industry experience, most recently as chietative officer of Accioni
Energy North America Corporation. Mr. Duprey regdc. Cameron Drecoll, who retired, and will previdchnical advice and
transition support to the Company under a conguligreement.

. On December 28, 2010, our Board of Directors apgday plan to divest the Company's investment irgBadn connection
with this decision, we have classified the busireesa discontinued operation and recorded a $1@28irment charge. On
March 4, 2011, we completed the sale of BadgermtblLBgistics, LLC ("BTI Logistics"). Proceeds frothe sale included
$1.0 million in cash, a $1.5 million secured prosoiy note and 100,000 shares of Broadwind comnarkdteld by the buyer.
In addition, BTI Logistics assumed approximately@illion of debt and capital leases, plus apprately $1.6 million of
operating lease obligations. The purchase prisaligect to final working capital adjustments.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2009

The summary of selected financial datagtdigllow should be referenced in connection witévéew of the following discussion of our
results of operations for the year ended Decembg?@10 compared to the year ended December 39, 200

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 vs. 2009
2010 % of Total 2009 % of Total $ Change % Change
Revenue: $ 136,89¢ 100.(% $ 184,79¢ 100.(% $ (47,900 (25.9%
Cost of sale: 134,95( 98.€%  172,89: 93.€% (37,949 (21.9%
Gross profil 1,94¢ 1.4% 11,90¢ 6.4% (9,95¢) (83.1%
Operating expenst
Selling, general and
administrative
expense: 27,40« 20.(% 32,42 17.5% (5,01¢) (15.5%
Impairment charge 40,775 29.8% 82,21 44.5% (41,43 (50.9)%
Intangible
amortization 2,99; 2.2% 9,52¢ 5.2% (6,532 (68.6)%
Total operating
expense: 71,17: 52.(% 124,15 67.2% (52,989 (42.1%
Operating los! (69,22)) (50.6% (112,25) (60.8%  43,02¢ (38.9%
Other (expense)
income
Interest expense, n (1,172 (0.99% (2,174 (1.2% 1,002 (46.1)%
Other, ne 48€ 0.4% 6,454 3.5% (5,96¢) (92.5%
Total other
(expense) incom
net (68€) (0.5)% 4,28( 2.2% (4,96¢€) (116.0%
Net loss fromr
continuing
operations before
benefit for income
taxes (69,919 (51.% (107,97) (58.5%  38,06( (35.29)%
Benefit for income
taxes (160) (0.2)% (947) (0.6)% 787 (83.1%
Loss from continuing
operations (69,759 (51.0% (107,029 (57.9% 37,27 (34.9%
Loss from
discontinued
operations, net of
tax (15,429) (11.9% (3,099 1.97% (12,329 398.6%
Net loss $ (85,179 (62.9%%$ (110,119 (59.6%$ 24,94« (22.1%

Consolidated

Total revenues decreased $47,902 or 269 $184,798 during the year ended December 31,,200136,896 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in revenues waariyi attributable to an 18% decline in our Towsegment revenue due mainly to a
reduction in the price of the steel component idetliin the overall tower section price comparethéprior year. Our Gearing segment
experienced decreases in wind and industrial ggaemenues of 21% and 29%, respectively, due pilyrtarreduced or delayed production
orders in 2010 from key customers. Revenues irbewvices segment decreased 56% due to the abdemézrge blade program completed in
2009, and an overall reduction in technical sesvig®vided in 2010.

Total cost of sales decreased $37,944 @, 22bm $172,894 during the year ended Decembe2@29, to $134,950 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in cost of sategwveiur Towers segment was primarily attributabl¢he 18% decline in revenues as
compared to the prior year, as well as the absehstrt-up and production costs for our new winmiér manufacturing facility in Abilene,
Texas in 2009. The decrease in cost of sales withirGearing segment was
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primarily due to the 24% decline in revenues coragdo the prior year as well as enhanced produeffficiencies during the second half of
2010. The decrease in cost of sales in our Sergegsent was due to lower direct labor costs &d fiechnicians as a result of the 56% de:
in revenues compared to the prior year.

Selling, general and administrative expsrgecreased from $32,422 during the year endedniieere31, 2009, to $27,404 during the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was prima#triljutable to cost reduction initiatives, namtilg reduction of third party professional
fees, implemented during 2010 to mitigate the ¢ffe€ an overall decline in production volumes, #ifbsence of charges incurred in 2009
associated with amendments to our credit agreemigmBank of America and reserves established imeation with a customer dispute in
2009.

We review our goodwill balances for impaémmh on at least an annual basis and review oungitiéee and other long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurostimdicate that the asset's carrying value anmoagtnot be recoverable. During the
second quarter of 2010 the Company identifiedggéiing event associated with the continued detgran in the financial performance witt
our Services segment. This triggering event requireevision of the Company's projection of futaperating results and cash flows for this
segment in light of the continued economic weakiresise wind energy industry. We performed our egwf goodwill based on the carrying
value of these assets as of June 30, 2010, arattimeate of fair value for each of our operatingrsents was based primarily on projected
future results, cash flows and other assumptiossa fesult of this review, we recorded a goodwilbairment charge of $4,561 at June 30,
2010 in our Services segment. During the fourthrigunaf 2010, the Company identified triggering etgeassociated with the Company's
current period operating losses, its history oftemed operating losses and its revised projectifregerating results and cash flows develc
as part of the strategic planning process. As @tresur review of other long-lived assets indichteat the carrying values of customer
relationships, trade name and property and equipmiginin our Services segment were also impaireztokdingly, we recorded an impairme
charge during the fourth quarter of $22,890. Initald, following the Company's strategic planningetings that took place in the fourth
quarter 2010, we determined that our Brandon, Sba#tota tower manufacturing facility was impairediaecorded an impairment charge to
fixed assets of $13,326.

Our 2009 impairment analysis indicated thatfair value of our goodwill and intangible asselated to our Gearing segment was less
than the carrying value of these assets. Our asadjso indicated impairment to our customer retahip and trade name intangible assets in
our Towers segment as a result of the merger ofnolurstrial weldment business into our Towers sagrireDecember 2009, and due to a
revision in projected revenues and cash flows aatatwith these customer relationships. Accordingle recorded goodwill and intangible
impairment charges of $24,269 and $57,942, respygtito properly reflect the carrying value of $keeassets.

Intangible amortization expense decreasmd $9,524 during the year ended December 31, 200,992 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily@acb6,015 reduction in amortization expense in@esring segment as a result of the
impairment in 2009 to its customer relationshimigibles. In addition, amortization expense in 8ervices segment decreased $427 due t
impairment of its intangible assets as of Octoldgr2®10.

Total other income, net, was $4,280 dutirggyear ended December 31, 2009, compared to exipense, net, of $686 during the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was prinadtrilyutable to the recognition of $5,082 in in@mmelated to an escrow agreement
settlement with the former owners of Brad Footdriuthe second quarter of 2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2009eperted a benefit for income taxes of $947, caegpéo a benefit for income taxes of $160
during the year ended December 31, 2010. The dezirancome tax benefit for 2010 compared to 2089 primarily attributable to a
reduction in

30




Table of Contents

our deferred income tax liabilities in connectioithithe goodwill impairment charge recorded dur2@§9.

Net loss from continuing operations deceelafsom $107,026 during the year ended Decembe2@®19, to $69,753 during the year ended
December 31, 2010, primarily as a result of théoimcas described above.

Net loss from discontinued operations,aféax was $3,093 during the year ended Decemhge2(®19, compared to $15,422 during the
year ended December 31, 2010. The 2010 loss intlmdgairment charges of $10,0:

Net loss decreased from $110,119 duringy&tze ended December 31, 2009, to $85,175 durmgehr ended December 31, 2010,
primarily as a result of the factors as descrildsava.

Towers Segment

The following table summarizes the Towegmsent operating results for the years ended Deeefih 2010 and 2009:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue! $ 76,15( $ 93,31¢
Impairment charge 13,32¢ 1,91¢
Operating los! (11,43¢) (499
Operating margi (15.0% 0.5%

Towers segment revenues declined $17,168 $93,316 during the year ended December 31,,200976,150 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The reduction in sales is attliie to a 3% decline in tower section productiod lower average tower prices reflecting,
in part, 20% lower average steel costs.

Towers segment operating loss increasebllBy937, from a loss of $499 during the year eridecember 31, 2009, to a loss of $11,436
during the year ended December 31, 2010. The isetklwss from operations was primarily attributabla fixed asset impairment charge of
$13,326 related to our investment in the Brandauitls Dakota tower facility. Additionally, a lessofitable sales mix resulted in margin
degradation of $2,819 as well as $965 in highesrd@osts mainly associated with premium costs aafficiencies that were incurred to
support the increased production volume duringdlieth quarter. These items were partially offsgthie absence of $3,350 of start-up costs
incurred in 2009 associated with our wind tower afanturing facility in Abilene, Texas and a nonureiing impairment charge with respect to
a customer relationship and trade name intangibtee aggregate amount of $1,916 taken in 2009 ef®aperating margins deteriorated from
(0.5%) during the year ended December 31, 20095%] during the year ended December 31, 2010resudt of these factors.
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Gearing Segment
The following table summarizes the Geagagment operating results for the years ended Deeegi, 2010 and 2009:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue! $ 48,99¢ $ 64,51¢
Impairment charge — 80,29t
Operating los: (13,679 (97,059
Operating margi (27.9% (150.9%

Gearing segment revenues decreased $15t682$64,518 during the year ended December 319 2@ $48,996 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in revenues waarjlyi attributable to 21% and 29% declines in wiyghring and industrial revenues,
respectively, due mainly to reduced or delayed petidn orders from key customers. The manufactéirgired turbine gearing, which typically
accounts for the majority of our gearing revengesitinued to be negatively affected by reducedeteyged production orders from our key
gearing customers, predominantly in the first lodlfhe year, as well as ongoing challenges in timelwdustry.

Gearing segment operating loss decreas&@®)380, from $97,058 during the year ended Deeerdb, 2009, to $13,678 during the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in opetasagvas largely attributable to the absence oaimpent charges of $80,295 recorded
during 2009. As a result of the 2009 impairmenbrded, the corresponding amortization expense dseteby approximately $6,000 in 2010
compared to 2009. These two factors were partidfset by the establishment of an environmentadmes of approximately $675 in 2010.
Gearing operating margin was (150.4%) during ther yeded December 31, 2009 compared to (27.9%)gltlie year ended December 31,
2010, due to these factors.

Services Segment
The following table summarizes the Servieegment operating results for the years endedrleee31, 2010 and 2009:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue! $ 12,09( $ 27,57t
Impairment charge 27,45 —
Operating los: (34,74) $ (610
Operating margi (287.9% (2.2%

Services segment revenues decreased $15d86$27,575 during the year ended December 329 2to $12,090 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in revenues waariyi the result of the absence of a large bladgm@am completed in 2009, a reduction in
services provided in 2010 to two large clients ohupart to their divestiture of wind farm sites doder outsourced project activity overall.

Services segment operating loss increa3é4d.37, from $610 during the year ended Decembg?@19, to $34,747 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The operating margin declineah f{2.2%) in 2009 to (287.4%) in 2010. The detation in operating loss and operating
margin were primarily attributable to the $5,100@ade effect of reduced sales, a goodwill impairnodiarge of $4,561 recorded in the second
quarter of 2010, an impairment charge of $22,8%ied to customer relationships, trade name anplgoty and equipment taken in fourth
guarter of 2010, less favorable labor utilizatieamidg the first half of the year and start-up costated to the Company's drivetrain service
center in Abilene, Texas.
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Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other operating loss decte$4¢720 from $14,086 during the year ended Dece®be2009, to $9,366 during the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in opetasagvas primarily attributable to a $2,930 redurcin professional fees associated with
tax, accounting and legal services, as well agisence of costs associated with an acquisitiodisvaot complete during 2009. In addition,
the decrease in operating loss was attributabfleet@bsence of a $1,200 expense related to a ceistbspute incurred in 2009.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Endé2kcember 31, 2008

The summary of selected financial datagdi@low should be referenced in connection witbvéew of the following discussion of our
results of operations for the year ended Decembg2@09 compared to the year ended December 38, 200

For the Year Ended December 31,

% of % of 2009 vs. 200
Total Total
2009 Revenue 2008 Revenue $ Change % Change
Revenue: $ 184,79¢ 100.% $ 207,34¢ 100.(% $ (22,55)) (10.9%
Cost of sale: 172,89: 93.€% 175,65! 84.71% (2,759 (1.©%
Gross profil 11,90¢ 6.4% 31,69¢ 15.2% (19,799 (62.9%
Operating expenst
Selling, general and
administrative
expense! 32,42 17.5% 40,51¢ 19.5% (8,099 (20.0%
Impairment charge 82,21 44.5% 2,40¢ 1.2% 79,80: 3312.%
Intangible amortizatiol 9,52¢ 5.2% 10,64¢ 5.1% (1,121 (10.5%
Total operating
expense: 124,15 67.2% 53,57( 25.8% 70,581 131.8%
Operating los! (112,25 (60.9% (21,879 (10.5% (90,379 413.2%
Other income (expens
Interest expense, n (2,174 1.2% (2,109 (2.0% (70 3.3%
Other (expense), n 6,45¢ 3.5% (204) (0.1)% 6,65¢ (3263.7)%
Total other incom
(expense), ne 4,28( 2.3% (2,309 (1.2)% 6,58¢ (285.9%
Net loss from continuin
operations before
(benefit) provision for
income taxe: (107,97 (58.9% (24,187 (11.6% (83,799 346.5%
(Benefit) provision for
income taxe: (947) (0.€)% 1,09¢ 0.6% (2,049 (186.9%
Loss from continuing
operations (107,02¢) (57.9% (25,279 (12.2% (81,749 323.%
Loss from discontinued
operations, net of ta (3,099 1.7% @) 0.C% (3,08¢) 44085.%
Net loss $ (110,119 (59.6%$ (25,28Y) (12.2)%$ (84,839 335.%
Consolidated

Total revenues decreased $22,551 or 116 $207,349 during the year ended December 31,,2008.84,798 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease in revenues waarjlyi attributable to a 38% decline in gearingaewes, which was the result of a
reduction in wind turbine gearing production as paned to the prior year. Revenues in our Serviegment decreased 12% due to the
completion of a large blade refurbishment projbet did not recur during 2009. These declines aréally offset by a 29% increase in wind
turbine tower revenues as a result of new
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customer orders and increased manufacturing cgpassbciated with our wind tower manufacturinglfgcin Abilene, Texas in January 2009.

Total cost of sales decreased $2,759, 85,653 during the year ended December 31, 200, %2,894 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The change in cost of saleprimsirily the result of 30% and 10% declines intafssales within our Gearing and
Services segments, respectively. The decreasestro€seales in our Gearing segment was primartiyoattable to the 38% decline in revenues
as compared to the prior year. The decrease ino€asties in our Services segment was due to lowect labor costs for field technicians as a
result of a 12% decline in revenues as comparéuketprior year. The decrease in cost of sales wafafly offset by an increase in cost of s¢
of 49% in our Towers segment. The increase in absales within our Towers segment was primaritsitautable to a higher percentage of <
included in the selling price of wind turbine towenanufactured, an increase in production cosasaeto higher production volumes and the
inclusion of start-up and production costs for wind tower manufacturing facility in Abilene, Texas

Selling, general and administrative expsrgecreased from $40,516 during the year endedniieere31, 2008, to $32,422 during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was prira#trilyutable to cost reduction initiatives implemted during 2009 across all reportable
segments to mitigate the effects of an overallidedh production volumes. These cost reductiotidtives were partially offset by an $806
increase in sharbased compensation expense as a result of an secireeestricted stock units granted and profess$ifaes and costs of $1,2
associated with amendments to our credit agreemigmBank of America.

Our annual test of goodwill impairment &©atober 31, 2009 indicated that the fair valu®af goodwill and intangible assets related to
our Gearing segment was less than the carryinggvafithese assets. Our analysis also indicatediimpat to our trade name and customer
relationship intangible assets in our Towers sedragm result of the merger of our industrial wedtrbusiness into our Towers segment in
December 2009 and due to a revision in projecteemees and cash flows associated with this custoatetionship. Accordingly, we recorded
goodwill and intangible impairment charges of $89,2nd $57,942, respectively, to properly reflaettarrying value of these assets.

Intangible amortization expense decreasmd $10,645 during the year ended December 31,,20089,524 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarilyaaebtl,203 reduction in amortization expense in@egring segment as a result of the
impairment in 2009 to its customer relationshi@igibles.

Total other expense, net, was $2,308 dutirg/ear ended December 31, 2008, compared to iotteme, net, of $4,280 during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The increase was prinatiijputable to the recognition of $5,082 in inarelated to an escrow agreement
settlement with the former owners of Brad Footédrdyuthe second quarter of 2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2008eperted a benefit for income taxes of $947 congbéwea provision for income taxes of
$1,096 during the year ended December 31, 2008intinease in income tax benefit for 2009 compaoe2l008 was primarily attributable to a
reduction in our deferred income tax liabilitiescionnection with the goodwill impairment chargeareted during 2009.

Net loss from continuing operations incezhBom $25,278 during the year ended Decembe2@®18, to $107,026 during the year ended
December 31, 2009, primarily as a result of théoi@cas described above.

Net loss from discontinued operations,aféax increased from $7 during the year ended Béee 31, 2008, to $3,093 during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The effects of the ecandawnturn on the wind industry and competitivecimg pressure negatively affected the
2009 results.
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Net loss increased from $25,285 duringytser ended December 31, 2008, to $110,119 duringdhr ended December 31, 2009,
primarily as a result of the factors as descrilmova.

Towers Segment

The following table summarizes the Towergrsent operating results for the years ended Deee1h 2009 and 2008:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2009 2008
Revenue! $ 93,31t $ 72,56
Impairment charge 1,91¢ 2,40¢
Operating (loss) incom (499) 5,81
Operating margi (0.5)% 8.C%

Towers segment revenues increased $20iiB6,$72,561 during the year ended December 318,200$93,316 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. Approximately 21% of the incedasevenues was attributable to an increase benmats included in the selling price of
wind turbine towers manufactured. Additionally, eeves increased by approximately 28% in conneegtitnnew customer agreements and
the corresponding increase in production volumesiatManitowoc, Wisconsin and Abilene, Texas faieisi.

Despite higher revenues, the segment iaduan operating loss of $499 due in part to theaimpent charge with respect to a customer
relationship and trade name intangible in the aggeeamount of $1,916. The trade name intangibmirment charge was attributable to the
merger of our specialty weldment operations into awers segment in December 2009, and the custmetaionship intangible impairment
was due to a revision in projected revenues and fbaws associated with this customer relationshipe decrease in operating income and
operating margin was also due to production in&fficies and increased travel and administrativeesgs of approximately $3,350 associated
with the start-up of our wind tower manufacturirgifity in Abilene, Texas, and our operating masgivere negatively impacted by
approximately $4,200 due to less profitable custocoatracts as compared to the prior year.

Gearing Segment

The following table summarizes the Geasagment operating results for the years ended Disee®1, 2009 and 2008:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2009 2008
Revenue! $ 64,51¢ $ 104,55
Impairment charge 80,29¢ —
Operating los: (97,059 (6,619
Operating margi (150.9% (6.9%

Gearing segment revenues decreased $40r085$104,553 during the year ended December 318,20 $64,518 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease in revenues waariyi attributable to 46% and 27% declines in wighring and industrial revenues,
respectively. The manufacture of wind turbine gegrivhich typically accounts for the majority ofr@earing revenues, continued to be
negatively affected by reduced or delayed prodaadi@ers from our key gearing customers.

Gearing operating loss increased $90,444n $6,614 during the year ended December 31, 200897,058 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase in operating l@sslargely
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attributable to impairment charges of $80,295 rdedrduring 2009. The impairment charges were thgltref a revision in our estimates of
future results of operations and associated cas¥sftiue to a decline in production volumes. Addailby, the increase in operating loss was
also the result of a continued decline in wind geaproduction volumes, which resulted in diredtdaand manufacturing overhead
inefficiencies and under-absorption of fixed opiegtosts. Material costs were $3,972 higher dusdttitional product rework costs and scrap
associated with specification adjustments for namdvgearing production orders. The increase inajpay loss was also impacted by higher
depreciation expense of $1,792 associated withitalapvestments made in 2008, and expenses anafé&is201 incurred in connection with
the negotiation of amendments to our credit facikitth Bank of America, partially offset by loweutside service expenses associated with a
reduced level of activity and lower selling, gehenad administrative expenses due to cost reduatitintives. Gearing operating margins
deteriorated from (6.3%) during the year ended Ddoggr 31, 2008 to (150.4%) during the year endeceBer 31, 2009, as a result of these
factors.

Services Segment
The following table summarizes the Servieegment operating results for the years endedrbleee31, 2009 and 2008:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2009 2008
Revenue! $ 27,578 $ 31,24¢
Impairment charge — —
Operating los: (610 (1,822
Operating margi (2.2% (5.9%

Services segment revenues decreased $3;6if$31,249 during the year ended December 318,20 $27,575 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease in revenues waariyi the result of 9% and 16% declines in ouhteécal services and precision repair i
engineering service revenues, respectively, duting/ear ended December 31, 2009. The declineriteghinical services revenues was the
result of a continued slowdown in operations anéhieaance services performed for wind farm ownexd @perators, particularly in the fourth
guarter of the year. The decline in engineeringises revenues primarily relates to a decision oy of our large service customers to in-
service work which was previously contracted to us.

Services segment operating loss improved1®l from $1,822 during the year ended Decembg@18, to $610 during the year ended
December 31, 2009. The operating margin improvechf5.8%) in 2008 to (2.2%) in 2009. The improveiséan operating loss and operating
loss margin were primarily attributable to costuetibn initiatives to align our administrative afield technicians cost structures as a result of
the reduction in service contracts during the ysated December 31, 2009.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other operating loss imprdd&d 65, from $19,251 during the year ended Dece®be2008, to $14,086 during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in opetasagvas primarily attributable to a $4,279 redurcin professional fees associated with
due diligence and acquisition-related costs inclimeconnection with acquisitions we did not cont@lduring 2008 and also related to
Sarbanes-Oxley and other compliance initiativegddition to an $882 reduction in bad debt expense.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The methods, estimates and judgments thatse in applying our critical accounting policies/e a significant impact on the results that
we report in our financial statements. Some ofamoounting
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policies require us to make difficult and subjeetjudgments, often as a result of the need to ratimates regarding matters that are
inherently uncertain.

We have identified the accounting polidisted below to be critical to obtain an undersitagdf our consolidated financial statements.
This section should also be read in conjunctiomwibte 1 "Description of Business and Summary ghiicant Accounting Policies" in
Part IV, Item 15 in the notes to our consolidatedricial statements for further discussion of thease other significant accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earningsegsois complete and when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, transfer of title has
occurred or services have been rendered, theggltine is fixed or determinable, collectabilityresasonably assured and delivery has occurred
per the terms of the contract. Customer deposdsotimer receipts are deferred and recognized wierevenue is realized and earned.

In some instances, products are sold uteders included in bill and hold sales arrangem#rasresult in different timing for revenue
recognition. We recognize revenue under these geraents only when the buyer requests the bill ahd &rrangement, a fixed schedule for
delivery exists, the ordered goods are segregated ihventory and not available to fill orders ahd goods are complete and ready for
shipment. Assuming these required revenue recognitiiteria are met, revenue is recognized uponptetion of product manufacture and
customer acceptance.

Warranty Liability

We provide warranty terms that generallygefrom one to seven years for various produdasimg to workmanship and materials
supplied by us. In certain contracts, we have resmprovisions for items that would enable recovesyn third parties for amounts paid to
customers under warranty provisions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket. We have recorded a reserve for exdesssb over market value in our inventory
allowance. Market value of inventory, and managetegumdgment of the need for reserves, encompassesderation of other business factors
including physical condition, inventory holding fmet, contract terms, and usefulness. Inventoriesralued based on an average cost method,
which approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFGdis.

Inventories consist of raw materials, workprocess, and finished goods. Raw materials sbp$icomponents and parts for general
production use. Work-in-process consists of labat @verhead, processing costs, purchased subcomgoaad materials purchased for
specific customer orders. Finished goods consisbofponents purchased from third parties as wetbagponents manufactured by us that
be used to produce final customer products.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost taiemarket value of identifiable net assets aepithrough business purchases. We perform
our annual goodwill impairment test during the tbuguarter of each year, or more frequently wheanevor circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of our assets may not be recovahégtest intangible assets for impairment when essentircumstances indicate that the
carrying value of our assets may not be recovéreelvaluating the recoverability of the carryinduaof goodwill and other intangible assets,
we must make assumptions regarding the fair valweioreporting units. Our method of determining fhir value is based upon our estimate
of the projected future discounted cash flows afreporting units.
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If our fair value estimates or related asgtions change in the future, we may be requireeéd¢ord additional impairment charges related
to intangible assets.

Long-Lived Assets

We review property and equipment and oliveg-lived assets for impairment whenever event@roaumstances indicate that carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If such eventhamges in circumstances occur, we will recognizergairment loss if the undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated bysbetare less than the carrying value of the blagset. The impairment loss would adjust the
asset to its fair value.

In evaluating the recoverability of longdd assets, we must make assumptions regardimgegstl future cash flows and other factors to
determine the fair value of such assets. If ourfalue estimates or related assumptions changesifuture, we may be required to record
impairment charges related to property and equipraed other long-lived assets.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes based uporssetand liability approach. Deferred tax assedsliabilities represent the future tax
consequences of the differences between the fiabsteitement carrying amounts of assets and ligsilversus the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Under this method, deferred tax assetsrecognized for deductible temporary differsnead operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recagu for taxable temporary differences. Deferredassets are reduced by a valuation allow.
when, in the opinion of management, it is moreljikban not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. The impact
of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets arititiezbis recognized in the year that the charggeriacted.

In connection with the preparation of oansolidated financial statements, we are requbegbtimate our income tax liability for each of
the tax jurisdictions in which we operate. Thisqess involves estimating our actual current inctemesxpense and assessing temporary
differences resulting from differing treatment eftain income or expense items for income tax tappand financial reporting purposes. We
also recognize the expected future income tax litsr@fnet operating loss carryforwards as defemedme tax assets. In evaluating the
realizability of deferred income tax assets assediaith net operating loss carryforwards, we coasiamong other things, expected future
taxable income, the expected timing of the reverstkxisting temporary reporting differences, #melexpected impact of tax planning
strategies that may be implemented to prevent diengial loss of future income tax benefits. Chanige among other things, income tax
legislation, statutory income tax rates, or futizeable income levels could materially impact oaluation of income tax assets and liabilities
and could cause our income tax provision to vagpificantly among financial reporting periods.

We also account for the uncertainty in meataxes related to the recognition and measureafentax position taken or expected to be
taken in an income tax return. We follow the apgihie pronouncement guidance on derecognition, ifitegfon, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, andgiton related to the uncertainty in these incomepositions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The following is a listing of recent accdng standards issued by the Financial Accountitag&ards Board (the "FASB") and their effect
on the Company.

In January 2010, the FASB issued AccounBtandards Update ("ASU") 2010-0&ir Value Measurements and Disclosu(&spic 820)
ASU 2010-06 provides additional disclosure requigata related to fair value measurements. ASU 2@Li3-6ffective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@88ept for the disclosures about purchases,,satemnces and
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settlements in the roll forward of activity in Ldw&fair value measurements. Disclosure requiremapplicable to Level 3 transactions are
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb®&r 2010 and for interim periods within those disgears, with early adoption permitted. The
portion of ASU 2010-06 that was effective beginnaitgr December 15, 2009 did not have a materdatebn our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. Additionally, we do noticipate that the disclosure requirements applecebLevel 3 transactions that are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2@ilDhave a material effect on our financial pasitj results of operations or cash flows.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2089Revenue Recognitidifopic 605). ASU 2009-13 provides additional guidamelated to
the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangersdntaccount for products or services (delivergtdeparately rather than as a combined unit
and eliminates the residual method of allocatio8lUA2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenuamgements entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after epiber 15, 2010, with early adoption permitted. Wendt anticipate that the provisions of
ASU 2009-13 will have a material effect on our fic&al position, results of operations or cash flows

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2010, cash and cash earitatotaled $15,331, compared to our cash andezpsgialents which totaled $4,701 at
December 31, 2009. In January 2010, we sold teliomihewly issued shares of our common stock focpeds of approximately $54,625, net
of underwriting discounts. Additionally, the comiie of our equity offering enabled us to use aiparof these proceeds to reduce our
outstanding indebtedness. In January 2010, wedepastanding indebtedness due to Bank of Amemnckl@B in the amounts of $16,076 and
$3,066, respectively. The repayment of this indeiss reduced our future debt service requirementseliminated subsidiary-specific
financial covenant requirements and asset liensu¥ed the remainder of these proceeds for genpesating purposes and specific capital
expenditures, specifically to help us start ouvetriain service center.

In September 2010, the Company's domestisidiaries ("Subsidiaries") entered into accowntpase agreements (the "AP Agreemet
with Wells Fargo. The aggregate facility limit ofet AP Agreements is $10,000. At December 31, 206a@mounts were drawn under the AP
Agreements, and we had the ability to borrow u$16,000, subject to maintaining a month-end minintatal cash balance of $5,000.

Our ability to make scheduled payments wndebt and other financial obligations will depemdour future financial and operating
performance. However, if sales and subsequentatimlies from several of our large customers, as agHlevenues generated from new
customer orders, are not materially consistent wmiihagement's expectations, we may encounter kaglafd liquidity issues. Additional
funding may not be available when needed or ongexceeptable to us. Furthermore, if we are unabbdtain additional capital, we will likel
be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliteiour plans for expansion and growth, and thigdcaffect our overall operations. Any
additional equity financing, if available, may bitutive to stockholders, and additional debt finiaugg if available, will likely require financial
covenants or other restrictions. While we beliehat ive will continue to have sufficient cash floiwsoperate our businesses and meet our
financial debt covenants, there can be no assuwahaeour operations will generate sufficient casthat credit facilities will be available to
in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay ouebtddness or to fund our other liquidity needs.
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Sources and Uses of Cash
Operating Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31, 201i0cah flows used in operating activities total&d,807, compared to net cash provided by
operating activities of $4,611 for the year endest@nber 31, 2009. The decrease in net cash prolbidegerating activities as compared to
the prior year was primarily attributable to anrgese in our inventory balances. The increasevienitories was the result of replenishing raw
material inventories to meet current productiondsee

I nvesting Cash Flows

During the years ended December 31, 2082809, net cash used in investing activities éatdi5,015 and $11,952, respectively. The
decrease in net cash used in investing activisesoapared to the prior year was primarily attrétle to a reduction in capital expenditures
to the completion of certain capital projects ati¢id in prior years. During the year ended Decer8hbeP009, we made capital expenditures
totaling $11,271, which primarily related to thenstruction of our wind tower manufacturing facility Abilene, Texas. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we made capital expenditura8rtgt$6,893, primarily related to equipment puszgsfor our newly constructed wind
tower manufacturing facility in Brandon, South D&kand purchases related to our drivetrain seacger in Abilene, Texas. Cash flows fr
investing activities also increased $1,840 durimyytear ended December 31, 2010, due to the redéassecurity interest as part of the
conversion of the Construction Loan into the Gk&aistern Term Loan (as such terms are defined below)

Financing Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31, 201i0cah provided by financing activities totaled &7, compared to net cash used by
financing activities of $2,326 for the year endegtBmber 31, 2009. The increase in net cash prowgdidancing activities as compared to
prior year was attributable to the equity offerimg completed in January 2010, in which we sold Q@800 newly issued shares of our
common stock for approximately $54,625, net of umaliging discounts. Partially offsetting the inceeain net cash provided by financing
activities was higher payments on lines of credd aotes payable. The decrease in lines of cradinates payable was primarily due to the
repayment of outstanding indebtedness due to BhAknerica and ICB in the aggregate amount of $18,bdJanuary 2010.

Credit Facilities
Bank of America Debt (Repai

In connection with our acquisition of Bradote in October 2007, we assumed outstandingatebavailable lines of credit totaling
approximately $25,500 under various secured deiiitfes (the "BOA Debt Facilities") with Bank ofAerica. As of December 31, 2009, the
total principal amount outstanding under the BOADIacilities was approximately $15,964, and thieative per annum interest rate was 7%.
On January 22, 2010, (i) Brad Foote repaid alhefautstanding principal and interest under the Bi®ht Facilities in the aggregate amour
approximately $16,076 from proceeds of the pulfierlng of common stock; and (ii) the BOA Debt Has were terminated.

Investors Community Bank Credit Line (Expired Matéh 2010}

In October 2007, Tower Tech obtained a tiine of credit (the "ICB Line") from ICB in th@emount of $2,500, which was subseque
increased to $5,500 on March 21, 2008. On Marct2@89, ICB agreed to extend the maturity date efi@B Line to March 13, 2010.
Pursuant to a Master Amendment dated as of Dece®ih@009 among ICB, Tower Tech and Broadwind (esantor)
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(the "Master Amendment"), the amount of the ICBd.imas increased to $6,500, subject to borrowing baailability. Tower Tech repaid all
of the outstanding indebtedness under the ICB lririee amount of $3,066 on January 26, 2010, aleavet the ICB Line to expire on
March 13, 2010.

Investors Community Ba—Notes

On April 7, 2008, RBA executed four (4) prigsory notes with ICB (the "ICB Notes") in the agggate principal amount of approximately
$3,781, as follows: (i) a term note in the maximpiimcipal amount of approximately $421, bearingiast at a per annum rate of 6.85%, with
a maturity date of October 5, 2012; (ii) a termeniot the maximum principal amount of $700, bearitigrest at a per annum rate of 5.65%,
with a maturity date of April 25, 2013; (iii) a tarnote in the maximum principal amount of $928 rlvepinterest at a per annum rate of 5.6!
with a maturity date of April 25, 2013; and (iv)ime of credit note in the maximum principal amooht1,732, bearing interest at a per annum
rate of 4.48% until May 1, 2008 and thereaftehatltondon Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus3%, with a maturity date of April 5,
2009 (the "Line of Credit Note"). The Line of Crebliote was subsequently modified on March 13, 200&tend the maturity date to
March 13, 2010 and to change the interest rateagteater of (A) 5% or (B) prime. The ICB Notesyde for multiple advances, and were
secured by substantially all of the assets of RBA.

Pursuant to the merger of RBA into Toweciien December 31, 2009, Tower Tech became thessacby merger to RBA's interest in
the loans from ICB to RBA evidenced by the ICB Notether than the Line of Credit Note, which wasaid in full in January 2010). Pursuant
to the Master Amendment, Tower Tech agreed to raiairst minimum debt service coverage ratio in additd certain other requirements. The
Master Amendment was amended as of December 30, #D1o delete the requirements that Tower Teelntain a collateral account as
security for the obligations under the ICB Noted #mat no additional loans or leases would be edtérto by Tower Tech without the prior
approval of ICB, and (ii) to replace the requiremiiat Tower Tech maintain its primary deposit agds with ICB with the requirement that
Tower Tech maintain with ICB a depository relatibipsof not less than $700, with such funds to beodéed into a money market account or
certificate of deposit by no later than Januarg07,1. As of December 31, 2010, (i) Tower Tech wasompliance with all covenants under its
credit facilities with ICB, (ii) the total amount outstanding indebtedness under the remainingNB&s was $1,371 and (iii) the effective per
annum interest rate under the remaining ICB Notas 581%.

Great Western Bank Loan

On April 28, 2009, Tower Tech entered iatGonstruction Loan Agreement with Great WestemkBaGWB"), pursuant to which GWB
agreed to provide up to $10,000 in financing (tBeristruction Loan") to fund construction of Towesch's wind tower manufacturing facility
in Brandon, South Dakota (the "Facility"). Pursumé Change in Terms Agreement dated April 5, 28dtveen GWB and Tower Tech, the
Construction Loan was converted to a term loan'(@reat Western Term Loan") providing for monthigyments of principal plus interest,
extending the maturity date to November 5, 201éuceng the principal amount to $6,500, and changfiegper annum interest rate to 8.5%.
Tower Tech was required to pay a 1.0% originatemdpon the conversion.

The Great Western Term Loan is secured firngtamortgage on the Facility and all fixturesdgoroceeds relating thereto, pursuant to a
Mortgage and a Commercial Security Agreement, éatlveen Tower Tech and GWB, and by a Commerciat&iya from the Company. In
addition, the Company has agreed to subordinatataicompany debt with Tower Tech to the Great M@sTerm Loan. The Great Western
Term Loan contains representations, warrantieccamdnants that are customary for a term financirgngement and contains no financial
covenants. As of December 31, 2010, the total antBhg indebtedness under the Great Western Tean was $5,750.
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Wells Fargo Account Purchase Agreements

On September 29, 2010, the Subsidiarieredtnto AP Agreements with Wells Fargo. UnderAlReAgreements, Wells Fargo will
advance funds against certain receivables arisorg $ales of the Subsidiaries' products and sesvloeconnection with the entry into the AP
Agreements, the Company and each Subsidiary ha@ited guaranties (including cross-guarantiesywoif of Wells Fargo. With respect to
the Subsidiaries, the AP Agreements contain pronsproviding for cross-defaults and cross-coliization. In addition, each Subsidiary has
granted to Wells Fargo a security interest agaitisinanced receivables and related collaterabrRo entering into the AP Agreements, there
was no material relationship between the CompdmeySubsidiaries and Wells Fargo.

Under the terms of the AP Agreements, Wedigo will advance approximately 80% of the faakie of eligible receivables to the
Subsidiaries. Wells Fargo will have full recoursehe Subsidiaries for collection of the financedaivables. The aggregate facility limit of the
AP Agreements is $10,000. For Wells Fargo's sesviteler the AP Agreements, the Subsidiaries hanez=ddo pay Wells Fargo (i) a floating
discount fee of the then-prevailing LIBOR plus 34’per annum, (ii) an annual facility fee of 1% lo¢ taggregate facility limit, and (iii) an
annual unused line fee of 0.042% on the portiothefcredit facility which is unused. The initiatre of the AP Agreements ends on
September 29, 2013. If the AP Agreements are text@ihprior to this date, an early termination féamto 3% of the aggregate facility limit
may apply. At December 31, 2010, no amounts weae/diunder the AP Agreements, and the SubsidiaadsHe ability to borrow up to
$10,000, subject to maintaining a month-end minintatal cash balance of $5,000.

In connection with the sale of Badger thiad party purchaser on March 4, 2011, the AP &grent between Badger and Wells Fargo and
the guaranty provided by Badger to Wells Fargo wépect to the other AP Agreements were eachneted, pursuant to an Omnibus
Amendment to Account Purchase Agreements and Giliesatated as of March 4, 2011, by and among threg@ay, the Subsidiaries and
Wells Fargo.

Selling Shareholder Notes

On May 26, 2009, the Company entered irdetdement agreement (the "Settlement Agreemeuith)the former owners of Brad Foote
(the "Selling Shareholders"), including J. CameBaacoll, who served as our Chief Executive Offiaad a member of our Board of Directors
until December 1, 2010. The Settlement Agreemdatae to the post-closing escrow established imeotion with our acquisition of Brad
Foote. Under the terms of the Settlement Agreenzengng other terms, we issued three promissonsriotthe Selling Shareholders in the
aggregate principal amount of $3,000 (the "Selftgreholder Notes"). The Selling Shareholder Notatire on May 28, 2012 and bear
interest at a rate of 7% per annum, with interaghpents due quarterly. The Selling Shareholder Mstged to Mr. Drecoll in the principal
amount of $2,320 and pursuant to the terms of #igeBnent Agreement is deemed by us to be a refstdy transaction. As of December 31,
2010, principal of $3,000 and accrued interest# ere outstanding under the Selling Sharehold¢ed We have accounted for the Selling
Shareholder Notes as long-term debt in our conatgitibalance sheets as of December 31, 2010.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth, as of Detem31, 2010, minimum future cash payments duercwi@ractual obligations, including,
among others, our debt and credit agreements, ancetable operating and capital lease agreemedtguanhase commitments as follows:

2016 &
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total

Debt and credi
agreements (1 $ 1577 $ 455C $ 1,33C $ 1,47¢ $ 1,47¢ $ 1,437 $ 11,24¢
Estimated interest

payments (2 78E 558 33C 232 14¢ 54 2,104
Operating lease

obligations 4,27(C 3,66¢ 2,46¢ 2,14: 1,601 3,91¢ 18,06:
Capital least

obligations (3 1,172 1,05¢ 90¢ — — — 3,13¢
Purchase

commitments 2,61(C — — — — — 2,61(C

Total contractual
cash obligation $ 10,41« $ 9,827 $ 5,03¢ $ 3,551 $ 2,92¢ $ 540¢ $ 37,15¢

1) Debt and credit agreements represent the minimdumefyrincipal payments due under our outstandargractual obligations.

2) Interest payments represent an amount calculategkfiected interest payments due under our outistguaiétbt and credit agreements.
Assumptions used to derive these amounts were hgmadcurrent interest rates as of December 310,2@fuired minimum principal
payments due, and maturity of our debt and crepigeanents per our contractual agreements. Acttexeist payments could vary
materially from those set out in this table.

3) Capital lease obligations include both the futuiagipal and interest payments related to theseeagents

Debt and Credit Agreements.Debt and credit agreements include outstanblamgowings under our lines of credit, term notdatesl to
vehicle and equipment purchases, and notes paselbted to an escrow agreement settlement andcagse agreement for manufacturing
equipment. See Note 10 "Debt and Credit AgreementBart IV, Item 15 in the notes to our consokdhfinancial statements for further
discussion of our outstanding indebtedness andt@greements.

Operating Lease Obligations. We lease a number of our facilities and ceréajnipment under operating leases expiring at uardates
through 2023. Lease terms generally range fromIbtpears with renewal options for extended teffh& amounts in the table above repre
future minimum lease payments for non-cancelabégatng leases.

Capital Lease Obligations. We have capital lease obligations related ttaoemanufacturing equipment and vehicles expidghgarious
dates through 2013. As of December 31, 2010, tlenba of our outstanding capital lease obligatiwas approximately $3,134, which
includes accrued interest of approximately $366.

Purchase Commitments.Purchase commitments represent remaining pagnaeie on equipment purchase contracts relatdteto t
construction of our Brandon, South Dakota wind tomanufacturing facility as well as equipment pas orders associated with our
drivetrain service center located in Abilene, Texas

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During April 2009, Tower Tech entered iatsale-leaseback agreement with Varilease, Findmce|"Varilease"), whereby Tower Tech
sold certain equipment to Varilease in exchang&®®35 in cash and agreed to lease the equipraektflom Varilease for a certain period of
time. The primary purpose of this arrangement wazévide additional liquidity for meeting workirggpital
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requirements. The lease agreement is for a thraeperiod with rental payments of $85 due monthiyaddition, the sale of the assets resulted
in a gain on disposition of $40, which is being atized to other income in our statement of operetiover the life of the operating lease.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to financial market risksictv include changes in interest rates on our béieate obligations (of which we have none
outstanding as of December 31, 2010), credit riskaccounts receivable and raw material price tlkatons.

Interest Rate Exposure

As of December 31, 2010, all of our thiatty borrowings under our debt and credit agreemear annual interest at fixed interest rates;
therefore we had no interest rate exposure. Thetanding borrowings under variable rate obligatimese $10,601 as of December 31, 2009.

Credit Risk Exposure

We are exposed to credit risk on our actoreceivable balances and cash balances. Hidtgrioar accounts receivable are highly
concentrated with a select number of customersinQuhe years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009iveuargest customers accounted for
approximately 78% and 73%, respectively, of comsaéd revenues. Additionally, as of December 31028nhd 2009, our five largest
customers comprised approximately 79% and 65%entsely, of our outstanding accounts receivablaf@es. We are also exposed to
potentially significant credit risk as our cash dgifs often exceed the federally insured amourdsaddress this we adhere to a formal
investment policy which requires us to invest egaeash in efforts to diversify our cash away framg aingle financial institution.

Commodity Risk Exposure

We are dependent upon the supply of certainmaterials used in our production processeastlase raw materials are exposed to price
fluctuations on the open market. The primary ravtemal we use is steel. To reduce price risk calsecharket fluctuations, we have
incorporated price adjustment clauses in certdessaontracts. Management believes a hypothet@ ¢hange in the price of steel and other
raw materials would not have a significant effectonr consolidated results of operations or cashiflbecause these costs are generally passe
through to our customers.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
The financial information required by Itéhis contained in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annuag®rt on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procesifas defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15@¢wutine Exchange Act) that are designed to
ensure that information required to be discloseauinreports filed under the Exchange Act is reedrgrocessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sud@ad forms. This information is also accumulated a
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communicated to management, including our Chiefchtiee Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Our management,uthdesupervision and with the participation of @lrief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectivenesshef design and operation of our disclosure conmtsprocedures as of the end of the most
recent fiscal quarter reported on herein. Basethahevaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andeElrinancial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

As of December 31, 2009, management detexinihat, we did not maintain effective internahtrol over financial reporting due to the
previously reported material weakness related teroatine revenue transactions, and the related aticmutreatment of those transactions
not appropriately reviewed to ensure compliancé aicounting principles generally accepted in th®. ('GAAP") at our Gearing segment.

We have made enhancements to our inteomdta structure to address our previously disdosaterial weakness. We hired additional
experienced and qualified financial professionalsttengthen our accounting and financial contiurtstions, implemented enhancements to
our monthly financial reporting, developed enhaneets to our overall reporting procedures and coetinto enhance our control environme
Enhancements included improved procedures fortaking and reconciliation of revenue transactiand enhanced due diligence by
corporate personnel over month end reporting. We lagso upgraded our enterprise resource planwiftey@e and server databases. These
changes were tested during the fourth quarter ¥02thd were found to be effective.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

The management of the Company, includieg@bmpany's Chief Executive Officer and Chief FziahOfficer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrobotver financial reporting (as defined in Rul&ail5(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act).

The management of the Company, includieg@bmpany's Chief Executive Officer and Chief FiahOfficer, assessed the effectiven
of the Company's internal control over financigdaging as of December 31, 2010. Management béddedssessment on criteria for effective
internal control over financial reporting describiedinternal Control—Integrated Framework" issumdthe Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on this assessment, management die¢erthat, as of December 31, 2010, our internatrobover financial reporting is effective.

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent regéstgaublic accounting firm, who audited our consatiédi financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also audited tifecéfeness of our internal control over financigborting as stated in its report.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

45




Table of Contents

PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE
Directors and Executive Officers

With the exception of the description of @ode of Ethics and Business Conduct below, tfanmation required by this item is
incorporated herein by reference from the discussiwer the headings "Directors and Director Corapton," "Corporate Governance" and
"Other Matters—Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershgpBrting Compliance" in our definitive Proxy Statamhto be filed in connection with
our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2@ttxy Statement”).

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Basi@®nduct that applies to all of our directorgaeive officers and senior financial officers
(including our principal executive officer, prin@bfinancial officer, principal accounting officarontroller, and any person performing similar
functions). The Code of Ethics and Business Conduatailable on our website wtvw.bwen.cominder the caption "Investors" and is
available in print, free of charge, to any stockleolwho sends a request for a paper copy to Broablgmergy, Inc., Attn: Investor Relations,
47 East Chicago Avenue, Suite 332, Naperville,0b40. Broadwind intends to include on our websitg @amendment to, or waiver from, a
provision of our Code of Ethics and Business Cohthat applies to our principal executive officgrincipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons perforg similar functions, that relates to any elenwithe code of ethics definition enumerated
in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding director and execaittompensation is incorporated by reference frardibcussion under the headings "Directors
and Director Compensation" and "Compensation D&onsand Analysis” in the 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain of the information required by théem is incorporated herein by reference fromdiseussion under the heading "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Holders and Managethin the 2011 Proxy Statement.
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The following table provides information@sDecember 31, 2010, with respect to shares nEommon stock that may be issued under

our existing equity compensation plans:

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

() (b) (c)
Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issuances under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding

outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in

Plan Category warrants, and rights warrants, and rights column (a))

Equity compensation plans

approved by stockholde 1,630,09/(1)$ 6.71 3,514,04(2)
Total 1,630,09 $ 6.71 3,514,041

Q) Includes outstanding stock options to purchaseeshafrour common stock and outstanding restridicksawards pursuant to the
Broadwind Energy, Inc. Employee Incentive Plan P'BJ which was approved by our Board of Director®ictober 2007 and by our
stockholders in June 2008. The EIP was further aieein June 2009 to increase the number of sh&@mumon stock authorized for
issuance under the EIP.

(2) As amended, the EIP reserves a maximum amoun560%00 shares of common stock for grants to aicgirectors, consultants a
other key employees.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference from the discussiater the headings "Certain Transactions and
Business Relationships" and "Corporate Governaimcelir 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference from the discussimter the heading "Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public ActiognFirm" in our 2011 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
1. Financial Statements
The financial statements listed on the kgeFinancial Statements (page 49) are filed asqdahis Annual Report.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

These schedules have been omitted beca@seduired information is included in the consaté financial statements or notes thereto or
because they are not applicable or not required.

3. Exhibits
The exhibits listed on the Index to Extslppages 93 through 98) are filed as part of thiewal Report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Broadwind Energy, Inc.

We have audited Broadwind Energy, Inc.'Bétaware Corporation) internal control over finehceporting as of December 31, 2010,
based on criteria establishediiernal Control—Integrated Framewoirksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission (COSO). Broadwind Energy, Inc.'s managenis responsible for maintaining effective indroontrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on BroadwinceEjy, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Broadwind Energy, Inc. mained, in all material respects, effective intéuntrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on the criteria establishaternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Broadwind Energy,dnd subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and, 20@ the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equitycaisth flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2010 and our report
dated March 16, 2011 expressed an unqualified opini

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

GRANT THORNTON LLP
Chicago, lllinois
March 16, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Broadwind Energy, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitlhalance sheets of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (avieda corporation) and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related coiasetl statements of operations, stockholders'yeguod cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2010. Tiresecial statements are the responsibility of @menpany’'s management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Broadwind Energy, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Ddmmm31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of theiratip;s and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31 @0conformity with accounting principles genéraccepted in the United States of
America.

We also audited, in accordance with thaddads of the Public Company Accounting Oversighafd (United States), Broadwind
Energy, Inc.'s internal control over financial retpy as of December 31, 2010, based on critete@bishedn Internal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regatted March 16, 2011
expressed an unqualified opinion.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

GRANT THORNTON LLP
Chicago, lllinois
March 16, 2011
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

As of December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 15,331 $ 4,701
Restricted cas 17C 2,01(
Accounts receivable, n 21,42] 21,48
Inventories, ne 17,73¢ 8,82t
Prepaid expenses and other current a 3,47¢ 4,54¢
Assets held for sal 6,847 2,004
Total current asse 64,99( 43,57¢
Property and equipment, r 106,317 129,61¢
Goodwill — 4,561
Intangible assets, n 10,07: 32,40:
Long-term assets held for se 17,99:
Other asset 2,12¢ 3,33¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 183,50¢ $ 231,48t
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Lines of credit and notes payal $ 14C $ 10,717
Current maturities of lor-term debi 1,43 7,782
Current portions of capital lease obligatic 96¢€ 882
Accounts payabl 22,34 14,49¢
Accrued liabilities 6,51¢ 6,67¢
Customer deposit 8,881 10,19¢
Liabilities held for sal¢ 4,221 1,98¢
Total current liabilities 44,50: 52,74:
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 9,671 13,39¢
Long-term capital lease obligations, net of currentipog 1,802 2,74¢
Interest rate swap agreeme — 25%
Deferred income tax liabilitie — 403
Long-term liabilities held for sal — 4,40¢
Other 1,33¢ 1,941
Total lon¢-term liabilities 12,80¢ 23,15
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 sterthorized; no shar
issued or outstandir — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 stardrized
107,112,817 and 96,701,127 shares issued and rditsgeas of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti 107 97
Additional paic-in capital 356,54!  300,77¢
Accumulated defici (230,45¢) (145,28)
Total stockholders' equit 126,19¢  155,59!
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 183,50¢ $ 231,48t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Revenue! $ 136,89¢ $ 184,79¢ $ 207,34
Cost of sale: 134,95( 172,89: 175,65:
Gross profil 1,94¢ 11,90¢ 31,69¢
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Selling, general and administrati 27,40¢ 32,42: 40,51¢

Impairment charge 40,773 82,21 2,40¢

Intangible amortizatiol 2,997 9,524 10,64¢

Total operating expens: 71,17: 124,157 53,57(

Operating los! (69,227) (112,25) (21,879
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, net:

Interest expense, n (,172) (2,179 (2,109

Other income (expense), r 48€ 6,45¢ (204)

Total other (expense) income, | (68€) 4,28( (2,309)

Net loss from continuing operations before (beh

provision for income taxe (69,919 (107,979 (24,187
(Benefit) provision for income taxe (160) (947) 1,09¢
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (69,759 (107,029 (25,279
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NET

OF TAX (15,427 (3,099 @)
NET LOSS $ (85,179 $ (110,119 $ (25,28H
NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE—BASIC AND

DILUTED:
Loss from continuing operatiol $ (0.66 $ (1.1) ¢ (0.29
Loss from discontinued operatio (0.19 (0.09) —
Net Loss $ (080 % (1149 $ (0.29
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES

OUTSTANDING—Basic and diluted 106,27: 96,57« 89,89¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Interest in
Shares Additional Variable
Issued and Issued Paid-in Accumulated Interest
QOutstanding Amount Capital Deficit Entity

Total

BALANCE,
December31, 2007 76,260,991 $ 76 $ 133,03 $ °.87) $ 1,30¢ $

Stock issued for

restricted stocl 7,50( — — — —
Stock issued for the

acquisition of

Energy

Maintenance

Service, LLC 1,629,83: 2 13,81¢ — —
Stock issued for th

acquisition of

Badger Transport

Inc. 581,95¢ 1 5,99¢ — —
Stock issued for the

conversion of

relatec-party note: 3,333,33. 3 24,997 — —
Stock issued in

private equity

placements, net ¢

costs of $33¢ 14,656,87 14 117,37¢ — —
Shar-basec

compensatiol — — 1,99¢ — —
Reclassification o

variable interest

entity — — — — (1,309
Net loss — — — (25,285 —

124,53t

13,82

6,00(

25,00(

117,38¢

1,99¢

(1,309
(25,28¢)

BALANCE,
December31, 200¢  96,470,41 $ 96 $ 297,220 $ (35,167 $ — $

262,15t

Stock issued under

stock option plan 91,94( — 67& — —
Stock issued for

restricted stocl 129,71* 1 — — —
Stock issued undt

defined

contribution 401

(k) retirement

savings plar 9,057 — 76 — —
Shar~-basec

compensatiol — — 2,80¢ —
Net loss — — — (110,119 —

67¢

1

76

2,80¢
(110,119

BALANCE,
December31, 200¢  96,701,12 $ 97 $ 300,77¢ $ (145,28) $ — $

155,59!

Stock issued under

equity offering

(net of offering

costs of $1,278 10,000,00 1C 53,331 — —
Stock issued fo

restricted stocl 126,71( — — — —

Stock issued under
defined

53,341



contribution 401(k)
retirement saving

plan 284,98( — 684 — — 684
Share-based

compensatiol — — 1,74¢ — — 1,74¢
Net loss — — — (85,175 (85,179
BALANCE,

December31, 201C 107,112,81 $ 107 $ 356,54! $ (230,45¢) $ — $ 126,19

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (85,179 $ (110,119 $ (25,28Y
Loss from discontinued operatio 15,42 3,09: 7
Loss from continuing operatiol (69,759 (107,02¢) (25,27¢%)
Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided (used )rby operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expel 16,46: 22,69¢ 20,09(
Impairment charge 40,77 82,21: 2,40¢
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreés (259) (330) 194
Deferred income taxe 1,33¢ (819) 53t
Stocl-based compensatic 1,74¢ 2,80¢ 1,99¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun (1,147 24¢ (1,675
Loss on disposal of asst 70 16& 11z
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 1,20z 13,92¢ (16,479
Inventories (8,919 32,89¢ (28,24¢)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,072 162 (1,26¢)
Accounts payabl 7,56t (24,55¢) 21,64¢
Accrued liabilities (332) (5,317) 2,44;
Customer deposi (1,317) (10,627) 19,67«
Other noi-current assets and liabiliti 672 (1,83¢) (612)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activiifsontinued operatior (10,807 4,611 (3,907
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash rece — — (23,12
Purchases of property and equipm (6,897) (11,277 (79,097
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipt 38 82¢ 4C
Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢ 1,84( (1,510 —
Net cash used in investing activities of continopérations (5,01%) (11,959 (102,17")
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuance of st 53,347 67E 117,39(
Common stock issued under defined contribution KOdlan 684 7€ —
Payments on lines of credit and notes pay (21,23) (11,810 (5,604
Payments on related party notes pay: — — (1,365)
Proceeds from lines of credit and notes pay 70C 5,952 9,07¢
Proceeds from sé-leaseback transactio — 2,98( —
Proceeds from deposits on equipm — 66% —
Principal payments on capital lea: (862) (864) (307)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activibégontinued operatior 32,637 (2,326 119,18
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operating cash flow (2,66¢€) (1,687) 1,75¢
Investing cash flow (119) (56¢) (4,519
Financing cash flow (3,009 1,49¢ 877)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opena (5,782 (757) (3,640
Add: Cash balance of discontinued operations, Iméginof perioc 127 1,24¢ —
Less: Cash balance of discontinued operationspepériod 53C 127 1,24¢
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT S 10,63( (9,305) 8,22¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 4,701 14,00¢ 5,782
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year $ 1533 $ 4,701 $  14,00¢
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of capitalized inter $ 1,171 $ 191 $ 3,25¢
Income taxes pai $ 38 $ 50t $ 28
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued for acquisitic $ — — 19,82:
Conversion of related party notes payable to ec $ — 3 — $  25,00(
Issuance of restricted stock gra $ 80 $ 93¢ $ 214
Common stock issued under defined contribution Kodlan $ 684 $ 7€ $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

55




Table of Contents

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

Broadwind Energy Inc. (the "Company") paasé technologically advanced high-value productssamvices to energy, mining and
infrastructure sector customers, primarily in th&Urhe Company's most significant presence isimvttie U.S. wind industry, where the
Company believes it is the only independent comghayoffers its breadth of products and serviogfié market. The Company's product and
service portfolio provides our customers, includimigd turbine manufacturers, wind farm developerd wind farm operators, with access to a
broad array of component and service offeringssidatof the wind market, the Company provides jgienigearing and specialty weldments
to industrial customers, particularly in the enengining and infrastructure sectors.

In December 2009, the Company revisecepp®rting segment presentation into four reportaplerating segments: Towers, Gearing,
Technical and Engineering Services, and Logistit®ecember of 2010, the Company's Board of Dinscapproved a plan to divest its
Logistics business segment; consequently, thigieasiunit is now reported as a Discontinued Operatnd the Company has revised its
segment presentation to include three reportaldeatipg segments: Towers, Gearing, and Servicevifarsly Technical and Engineering
Services). All current and prior period financiesults have been revised to reflect these chaBgesNote 19 "Segment Reporting" of these
consolidated financial statements for further déston of reportable segments.

Liquidity

The Company has a limited history of ogerat and has incurred operating losses since icepthe Company anticipates that current
cash resources and cash to be generated from ioperat 2011 will be adequate to meet the Compdiquiglity needs for at least the next
twelve months. As discussed further in Note 10,8d Credit Agreements" of these consolidateahfiial statements, the Company is
obligated to make principal payments on outstandilyf totaling $1,577 during 2011, and is obligdtethake purchases of $2,610 under
purchase commitments described in Note 12, "Comaritsiand Contingencies” of these consolidated ilshstatements. If sales and
subsequent collections from several of the Comgdayye customers, as well as revenues generat@difew customer orders, are not
materially consistent with management's plansCibpany may encounter cash flow and liquidity issdelditional funding may not be
available when needed or on terms acceptable tGdhgpany, which could affect its overall operatiosy additional equity financing, if
available, may be dilutive to stockholders, anditioithl debt financing, if available, will likelyequire financial covenants or other restrictions
on the Company. There can be no assurances thedbgtafforts to obtain sufficient cash flow wi# successful.

Towers

The Company manufactures towers for wimblites, specifically the large and heavier windeoswthat are designed for 2 megawatt
("MW") and larger wind turbines. Production fadés, located in Manitowoc, Wisconsin and Abilenexas, are situated in close proximity to
the primary U.S. wind resource regions. The twdlifaes have a combined annual tower productionacity of approximately 500 towers,
sufficient to support turbines generating more that0 MW of power. This
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

product segment also encompasses the manufactapedifilty fabrications and heavy weldments forda¢nergy and other industrial
customers.

Gearing

The Company manufactures high precisiomiggaystems for wind turbines and custom-engiregegearing systems and gearboxes for
energy, mining and other industrial customers. Thenpany uses an integrated manufacturing procdsshvwncludes machining processes in
Cicero, lllinois, heat treatment in Neville IslarRennsylvania and a finishing process in the Citactory.

Services

The Company offers technical and precisepair and engineering services to developers padators of wind farms and manufacturers
of wind turbines. Technical services offerings ud# construction support and operations and maintanservices for wind farm developers
and operators. Precision repair and engineeringcgsrinclude repair and refurbishment of complgstems and components of wind turbines,
including control systems, drivetrains and bladése Company's primary service locations are indi, California, South Dakota and Texas.
During 2010, the Company approved an investmeappfoximately $7 million to develop a dedicated/ériain service center in Abilene,
Texas, focused on servicing the growing installagebof MW wind turbines as they come off warrafitye drivetrain service center was pla
into operation in February 2011.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presemta

These consolidated financial statementsidecthe accounts of Broadwind and its whallyned subsidiaries. All significant intercompe
transactions and balances have been eliminateghsotidation. The results of operations of all aseibusinesses have been consolidated for
all periods subsequent to the date of acquisition.

Reclassification:
Where appropriate, certain reclassificatibave been made to prior years' financial statesrierconform to the current year presentation.
Management's Use of Estima

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally epted in the U.S. ("GAAP") requires
management to make certain estimates and assumphiatnaffect the reported amounts of assets abdities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financial statetseand reported amounts of revenues and expensesg the reported period. Significant
estimates, among others, include revenue recogniiibure tax rates, inventory reserves, warraaggerves, stock option fair values, allowance
for doubtful accounts, and allocation of purchaseepto the fair value of net assets and liabgiEquired in connection with business
combinations.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Although these estimates are based upon managsrbest'knowledge of current events and actiongtiea€ompany may undertake in the
future, actual results could differ from theserasties.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents primarily cordistish balances and money market funds. Cashashdequivalents were $15,331 and $4,701
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively Cldrepany's policy is to invest excess cash in manasket account funds, which are
generally of a short-term duration based upon diperaequirements. Income earned on these investigenrecorded to interest income in the
consolidated statements of operations. For thesymadled December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, iniecshe was $43, $123 and $584,
respectively.

Restricted Cas

Restricted cash consists of cash down patgyEertaining to certain contracts under whichube of such cash is restricted as per the
terms of the agreement as well as for collateraktmure vendor services. As of December 31, 20d@&609, the Company had restricted cash
in the amounts of $170 and $2,010, respectively.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue when thergg process is complete and when persuasiveraads an arrangement exists, transfer
of title has occurred or services have been rexdéne selling price is fixed or determinable, eothbility is reasonably assured and delivery
has occurred per the terms of the contract. Custdeygosits, deferred revenue and other receiptdefezred and recognized when the revenue
is realized and earned.

In some instances, products are sold uteders included in bill and hold sales arrangem#rasresult in different timing for revenue
recognition. The Company recognizes revenue utgsetarrangements only when the buyer requestsitlaed hold arrangement, a fixed
schedule for delivery exists, the ordered goodseageegated from inventory and not available tofilers and the goods are complete and
ready for shipment. Assuming these required reveacegnition criteria are met, revenue is recoghizgon completion of product
manufacture and customer acceptance.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales represents all direct andesticosts associated with the production of potsléor sale to customers. These costs include
operation, repair and maintenance of equipmergctiand indirect labor and benefit costs, insuraagaipment rentals, freight in and
depreciation.

Accounts Receivab

The Company generally grants uncollateedlieredit to customers on an individual basis bageh the customer's financial condition .
credit history. Credit is typically on net 30-da&yrnhs and
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

customer deposits are frequently required at vargtages of the production process to minimizeicrist.

Historically, our accounts receivable aighly concentrated with a select number of cust@mBuring the year ended December 31, 2
our five largest customers accounted for 78% ofammnsolidated revenues and 79% of outstanding atceaeivable balances, compared tc
year ended December 31, 2009 when our five la@estbmers accounted for 73% of our consolidatedmegs and 65% of outstandi
account receivable balances.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Based upon past experience and judgmentCtimpany establishes an allowance for doubtfuld@us with respect to accounts receive
Our standard allowance estimation methodology clamsia number of factors that, based on our callesexperience, the Company believes
will have an impact on our credit risk and the iility of our accounts receivable. These factoctude individual customer circumstances,
history with the Company and other relevant criteri

The Company monitors our collections andeanff experience to assess whether or not adgistento our allowance estimates are
necessary. Changes in trends in any of the fatiatehe Company believes may impact the realiggglif our accounts receivable, as noted
above, or modifications to our credit standarddiection practices and other related policies nmagact our allowance for doubtful accounts
and our financial results. Bad debt expense foy#ars ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 Wa%1$ $1,438 and $1,196, respectiv

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket. Any excess of cost over market valuadiided in the Company's inventory
allowance. Market value of inventory, and managefagmdgment of the need for reserves, encompassesderation of other business factors
including physical condition, inventory holding pt, contract terms and usefulness. Inventorievaliged based on a weighted average cost
method that approximates the first-in, first-outH®) basis.

Inventories consist of raw materials, workprocess and finished goods. Raw materials coasisomponents and parts for general
production use. Work-in-process consists of lalmat @verhead, processing costs, purchased subcomsared materials purchased for
specific customer orders. Finished goods consisbofponents purchased from third parties as wetbagponents manufactured by the
Company that will be used to produce final custopreducts.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are stated at egstdccumulated depreciation. Depreciation is r@zed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets f@aritial reporting purposes and an accelerated midétindncome tax reporting purposes.
Expenditures for additions and improvements aréalged, while replacements, maintenance and replhat do not improve or extend the
useful lives of the respective assets are expeasatturred.

59




Table of Contents

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company capitalizes interest costs incurrethdebtedness used to construct property and equipi@apitalized interest is recorded as
part of the asset to which it relates and is amedtiover the asset's estimated useful life. Intems capitalized was $74, $465 and $230 fo
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 ctesge. Property or equipment sold or disposeésaEmoved from the respecti

property accounts, with any corresponding gainslasses recorded to other income or expense isansolidated statement of operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment on ekt an annual basis by applying a fair value beestdin evaluating the recoverability of the
carrying value of goodwill, the Company must maksuenptions regarding the fair values of our repgrtinits. Our estimate of the fair value
of each of our reporting units is based primaritypojected future operating results and cash flamg other assumptions. The failure of a
reporting unit to achieve projected future opexatiesults and cash flows, or adjustments to othkration assumptions, could change our
estimate of reporting unit fair value, in which eahe Company may be required to record an impaiticlegarge. The Company's remaining
goodwill was fully impaired at June 30, 2010, atiehhtime the carrying value was reduced to zero.

Intangible and Other Lor-lived Intangible Assets

The Company reviews intangible and othagtived assets for impairment whenever eventdhanges in circumstances indicate that the
asset's carrying amount may not be recoverableo\Reability is measured comparing the assets' iceygmounts to their expected future
undiscounted net cash flows. If such assets areidemed to be impaired, the impairment recognizadeasured based on the amount by which
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds thedaie.

Warranty Liability

The Company provides warranty terms thaegaly range from one to seven years for varicasipcts relating to workmanship and
materials supplied by the Company. In certain @usy, the Company has recourse provisions for iteatsvould enable recovery from third
parties for amounts paid to customers under warnaravisions. The changes in the carrying amounhefCompany's total product warranty
liability for the years ended December 31, 201@28nd 2008 were as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 91€ $ 89C $ 24z
Warranty expens 1,11 591 64¢
Warranty claims (957) (563 —
Balance, end of ye: $ 1,071 $ 91€ $ 89C
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes baped an asset and liability approach. Deferrecatsets and liabilities represent the future
tax consequences of the differences between thadial statement carrying amounts of assets ahiliti@s versus the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Under this method, deferred tax assetsrecognized for deductible temporary differsnead operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recagp for taxable temporary differences. Deferredatssets are reduced by a valuation allow.
when, in the opinion of management, it is moreljikban not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. The impact
of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets arititiezbis recognized in the year that the charggeriacted.

In connection with the preparation of oansolidated financial statements, the Companyqgasired to estimate our income tax liability -
each of the tax jurisdictions in which the Compapgrates. This process involves estimating ourahcturrent income tax expense and
assessing temporary differences resulting fromediffy treatment of certain income or expense ittnincome tax reporting and financial
reporting purposes. The Company also recognizesfasred income tax assets the expected futureriadax benefits of net operating loss
carryforwards. In evaluating the realizability afdrred income tax assets associated with net tipgiass carryforwards, the Company
considers, among other things, expected futurebtexiacome, the expected timing of the reversalsxidting temporary reporting differences
and the expected impact of tax planning stratethi@smay be implemented to prevent the potentsd taf future income tax benefits. Changes
in, among other things, income tax legislationtigtay income tax rates or future taxable inconwele could materially impact our valuatior
income tax assets and liabilities and could causeéncome tax provision to vary significantly amaingancial reporting periods.

The Company also accounts for the uncegtamincome taxes related to the recognition amésurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in an income tax return. Téraggany follows the applicable pronouncement guidat derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim pisjalisclosure and transition related to the uaa#st in these income tax positions.

Interest Rate Swap Agreeme

The Company has periodically used derieatimancial instruments in the form of intereseratvaps to minimize the effect of interest rate
fluctuations on certain of our outstanding debeagnents. Our derivative financial instruments asognized on our consolidated balance ¢
at fair value. These derivatives do not qualifytiedge accounting treatment, and accordingly,afigjor losses on the change in the fair value
of these derivative financial instruments are régubin our consolidated statements of operations.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-Based Compensation

The Company grants incentive stock optiamd restricted stock units to certain officersediors, employees and consultants. The
Company accounts for share-based compensatioedelathese awards based on the estimated faie wdlihe equity award and recognizes
expense ratably over the vesting term of the awseé. Note 18 "Share-Based Compensation" of thesmolidated financial statements for
further discussion of our share-based compenspatans, the nature of share-based awards issuedwaratcounting for share-based
compensation.

Net Income (Loss) Per She

The Company presents both basic and dilné¢dncome (loss) per share. Basic net income)lpsr share is based solely upon the
weighted average number of common shares outsiguadith excludes any dilutive effects of options,namats and convertible securities.
Diluted net income (loss) per share is based upemeighted average number of common shares anthoorshare equivalents outstanding
during the year excluding those common-share efgntawhere the impact to basic net income (lossshare would be anti-dilutive.

2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents a reconcitiatof basic and diluted earnings per share foy#daes ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 200
as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Basic earnings per share
calculation:
Net loss to commo
stockholders $ (85,179 $ (110,119 $ (25,28

Weighted averag

common shares

outstanding 106,27: 96,57« 89,89¢
Basic net loss per sha $ (080 % (1149 $ (0.2

Diluted earnings per

share calculation:
Net loss to commo

stockholders $ (85,179 $ (110,119 $ (25,28
Weighted averag

common shares

outstanding 106,27: 96,57« 89,89¢
Common stocl

equivalents

Stock options and n-

vested stock awards( — — —

Weighted average

common shares

outstanding 106,27: 96,57 89,89¢
Diluted netloss persha $ (0.80) $ 119 $ (0.2

() Stock options and restricted stock units grantetlanstanding of 1,630,095; 1,681,314; and 2,197 &0
of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectiaetyexcluded from the computation of diluted eagain
due to the ar-dilutive effect as a result of the Company's nsslfor these respective yee
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3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2010, the Company's Board oé@ors approved a plan to divest Badger Transpuart,("Badger"), which formerly
comprised our Logistics segment. The adverse affgfatail providers entering the heavy haul mafketvind energy components as well as
effects of the global economic downturn have reslih continued operating losses at Badger. Baglgg#€rcompany revenues and expenses
were not significant in the years ended DecembgB10, 2009 or 2008. On March 4, 2011, the Compamypleted the sale of Badger. Refer
to Note 22 "Subsequent Events" for further disaurssif the Badger sale.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Camprecorded an asset impairment charge of apped&iyn$10,020 (pre-tax) to reduce the
carrying value of the net assets held for salestonated fair value. The impairment charge is ideldiin "Loss before benefit for income taxes"
in "Results of Discontinued Operations" below.

Results of Discontinued Operations

Results of operations for Badger, whichrafected as discontinued operations in the Coryipaionsolidated statements of income fo
twelve months ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ang, 28€re as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Revenue:! $ 992 $ 13,03 $ 9,972
Loss before benefit for incon

taxes (15,730 (3,734 (41)
Income tax benefi (30¢) (641) (34)
Loss from discontinue

operations $ (15,429 $ (3,097 $ @)
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3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

Assets and liabilities classified as helddale in the Company's consolidated balance slasetf December 31, 2010 and 2009 includes
the following:

As of December 31

2010 2009
Assets:
Cash $ 53C $ 127
Accounts receivabl 673 43¢
Inventories 29z 214
Prepaid expenses and other current a 352 1,23(
Total current asse $ 1847 $ 2,00¢
Property plant and equipment, | 4,24¢ 6,63(
Goodwill and other intangible asst — 10,00(
Other noncurrent asse 752 1,36¢
Total Asset: $ 6,847 $ 19,99
Liabilities:
Current debt obligation $ 1,37C $ 1,48
Account payable and accrued liabilit 405 497
Total current liabilities $ 1,778 $ 1,98¢
Long-term debi 1,55(C 2,92(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 89¢ 1,48¢
Total Liabilities $ 4221 $ 6,39¢

4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following is a listing of recent accdng standards issued by the Financial Accountitag&ards Board (the "FASB") and their effect
on the Company.

In January 2010, the FASB issued AccounBtandards Update ("ASU") 2010-0&ir Value Measurements and Disclosu(&spic 820)
ASU 2010-06 provides additional disclosure requiats related to fair value measurements. ASU 2@L3-effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@@8ept for the disclosures about purchases,,safemnces and settlements in the roll
forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measuremt® Disclosure requirements applicable to LeviehBsactions are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2010 and for interériquls within those fiscal years, with early adoptpermitted. The portion of ASU 200®&
that was effective beginning after December 15928id not have a material effect on our financiadifion, results of operations or cash flows.
Additionally, the Company does not anticipate thatdisclosure requirements applicable to LevehBdactions that are effective for fiscal
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4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

years beginning after December 15, 2010 will hawgagerial effect on our financial position, resufoperations or cash flow

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2089Revenue Recognitidiiopic 605). ASU 2009-13 provides additional guidamelated to
the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangersdntaccount for products or services (delivergtdeparately rather than as a combined unit
and eliminates the residual method of allocatio8UA2009-13 is effective prospectively for reventramgements entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after &apber 15, 2010, with early adoption permitted. Wendt anticipate that the provisions of
ASU 2009-13 will have a material effect on the Camys financial position, results of operationsash flows.

5. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The activity in the accounts receivablewhnce from continuing operations for the yearsdndecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
consists of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of ye $ 1631 $ 1,38° $ 2,98:
Bad debt expens 1,011 1,43¢ 1,19¢
Write-offs(1) (2,125 (395) (2,899
Other adjustment (28) (795) 10¢
Balance at end of ye: $ 48C $ 1631 $ 1,38t

6. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket value and primarily consist of raw miemwork-in-process, and finished goods.
Work-in-process consists of labor and overhead;gasing costs, purchased subcomponents and mafri@hased for specific customer
orders. Finished goods consist of components paethtom third parties as well as components matufad by the Company that will be
used to produce final customer products.
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6. INVENTORIES (Continued)
The components of inventories from contigubperations as of December 31, 2010 and 2008uanenarized as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Raw material $ 935¢ $ 4,74
Work-in-proces: 5,86¢ 2,921
Finished good 3,481 3,33¢

18,70¢ 11,00:
Less: Reserve for excess and obsolete
inventory (970 (2,177)

Net inventories $ 17,73¢ $ 8,82t

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The cost basis and estimated lives of ptg@d equipment from continuing operations aBetember 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2009 Life
Land $ 4191 $ 4,01¢
Buildings 23,57¢ 23,50: 39 years
Machinery and equipmel 100,15 95,22} 2-10 years
Office furniture and equipme! 2,31¢ 2,46¢ 3-7 years
Leasehold improvemen 2,457 2,611 Asset life or life of leas
Construction in progres 11,65( 26,51

144,34 154,33t
Less-accumulated depreciatic (38,02)) (24,71°)

$ 106,31° $ 129,61

In the first quarter of 2010, the Companynpleted construction of a third wind tower mantifising facility in Brandon, South Dakota,
but has not commenced production at this facikgllowing the Company's strategic planning meetiigs took place in fourth quarter of
2010, the Company concluded it would be difficulirapossible to operate this facility in a profitlator costeffective manner at the Compar
current expected production levels. The Compamyigently exploring alternative uses for the buifiand equipment comprising this facility.
In connection with this determination, during tleeifth quarter of 2010, the Company recorded an immeat charge of $13,326 to reduce the
carrying value of the assets to fair value. Thedimpent charge is included in impairment chargebéiconsolidated statements of operations.
The Company estimated the fair value of these sipsirharily based on independent appraisals.
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7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Company conducted an impairment analylits Services segment during the fourth quat®010. The analysis indicated an
impairment of long-lived assets, $3,554 of whichsvallocated to property and equipment. The impaitrobarge is included in impairment
charges in the consolidated statements of opegatidee Note 8 "Goodwill and Intangible Assets'hafsie consolidated financial statements for
further discussion of impairment charges.

8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Changes in the carrying value of goodwiltidg the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2@0&safollows:

Technical and

Engineering
Gearing Services Total
Goodwill balance as o
December 31, 2008 $ 21,23¢ $ 4,561 $ 25,80(
Purchase accountir
adjustment: 3,03( — 3,03(
Impairment charg (24,269 — (24,269
Goodwill balance as o
December 31, 2009 — 4,561 4,561
Impairment charg — (4,567) (4,567)
Goodwill balance as o
December 31, 2010 $ — $ — 8 —

Goodwill represents the excess of cost éaiemarket value of identifiable net assets acepithrough business purchases. The Company
performs an annual impairment test through theiegbn of a fair-value based test as of Octobeof3dach year, or more frequently when
events or circumstances indicate that the carryaige of its assets may not be recoverable. Thepaagis estimate of fair value for each of
Company's operating segments is based primarijyrojected future results, cash flows and otherrapsions. The first step involves a
comparison of the estimated fair value of a repgrtinit to its carrying amount, including goodwih. performing the first step, the Company
determines the fair value of our reporting unitsigss combination of an income approach by prepgagidiscounted cash flow analysis and a
market-based approach based on our market captiahz If the estimated fair value of the reportingt exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill
of the reporting unit is not impaired, and the setstep of the impairment test is not necessathelfcarrying amount of a reporting unit
exceeds its estimated fair value, then the sectmmdd$ the goodwill impairment test must be perfednThe second step of the goodwill
impairment test compares the implied fair valuéhef reporting unit's goodwill with its carrying aomd to measure the amount of impairment
loss, if any. The implied fair value of goodwilldetermined in the same manner as the amount afvgthoecognized in a business
combination. As a result, the estimated fair valfithe reporting unit is allocated to all of thesets and liabilities of that unit (including any
unrecognized intangible assets) as if the repouimghad been acquired in a business combinatidrttze fair value of the reporting unit was
the purchase price paid. If the carrying amourthef
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied faatue of that goodwill, an impairment loss is regizgd in an amount equal to that excess.

The increase in goodwill in 2009 in the Gregsegment relates to purchase accounting ad@mof $3,030 recorded in connection with
an escrow settlement agreement with the former oswofeour wholly owned subsidiary Brad Foote Geanrkg, Inc. ("Brad Foote") in May
2009. The Company did not identify a triggering reveuring 2009 which would indicate an early assesg of goodwill impairment, howeve
upon the completion of our annual impairment arialgs of October 31, 2009, the Company determinatthe goodwill balance attributable
to our Gearing segment was impaired due to a de&tidon in financial performance during 2009 anéassult of the subsequent revision in
our projection of future operating results and déshs in light of the effect of the continued econic downturn on the wind gearing industry.
Accordingly, the Company's analysis indicated firajected fair value of the Gearing segment asfidtaot exceed the carrying value of these
net assets. As a result, the Company recorded dnglbonpairment charge of $24,269 during the féuguarter, and the impairment charge
recorded to operating expenses in the Companysotidated statements of operations for the yeae@mecember 31, 2009.

During the second quarter of 2010, the Camyddentified a triggering event associated wittoatinued deterioration in financial
performance within its Services segment. This &gty event required a subsequent revision in th@@ny's projection of future operating
results and cash flows for this segment in lighthef continued economic weakness in the wind eniedystry. The Company's analysis
indicated that the projected fair value of the 8#% segment assets did not exceed the carrying wdlthese assets. The method used in
determining the fair value was based upon the Coyipastimate of the projected future discountest dbows of its reporting unit. As a rest
the Company recorded a goodwill impairment chafg®4c661 during the second quarter and the impaitrolearge was recorded to operating
expenses in its consolidated statement of opeation

Intangible and Other Long-lived Assets

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the loasis, accumulated amortization and net book vallurgtangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Accumulated Impairment Net Amortization Accumulated Impairment  Net Amortization
Book Book
Cost Amortization _ Charge  Value Period Cost  Amortization ~ Charge  Value Period
Intangible assett
Customer relationshi| $28,67¢ $ (7,529%  (17,790$ 3,35¢ 10.£ $102,25¢ $ (20,759%  (57,835$23,66¢ 10.1
Trade name 9,78¢ (1,530 (1,540 6,71¢ 20.C  9,90¢ (1,069) (107) 8,73: 20.C
Intangible asset $38,46¢$ (9,059%  (19,336$10,07% 17.($112,16'$ (21,829%  (57,94,)%$32,40: 12.€

The Company reviews intangible and othaglbived assets for impairment whenever eventdanges in circumstances indicate that the
asset's carrying amount may not be recoverable t®thee revision in our projections of operatinguks and cash flows within our Gearing
segment during the fourth quarter of 2009, the Camypleemed this a triggering event, and subsequtestied our
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

intangible assets for impairment. The completioowfimpairment analysis indicated that the custorakationship intangibles associated with
our Gearing segment were impaired. The declinaimestimates of future operating results and cpmeding discounted cash flows indicated
that the fair value of these customer relationshigs less than the carrying value of these asadtstionally, the Company determined that
RBA trade name was impaired as a result of the eme@fRBA's operations into our Towers segment @c@&@nber 2009 and that RBA's
customer relationship intangible was impaired dua tevision in projected revenues and cash flegs@ated with this customer relationship.
Accordingly, the Company recorded an intangibleampent charge of $57,942 to properly reflect tagying value of these assets.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Camyp identified triggering events associated with @ompany's current period operating los:
history of continued operating losses and its exVigrojections of operating results and cash fldexseloped as part of the strategic planning
process. As a result, we tested our intangibleadher long-lived assets for impairment. The deciineur estimates of future operating results
and corresponding cash flows indicated that thevidue of these assets was less than the carvgilng. Accordingly, the Company recorded
an impairment charge of $22,890 related to theiBeswsegment. The impairment was allocated aswWslicustomer relationships $17,796:
trade name $1,540; and property and equipment $3|65he future, if our projected discounted cistvs associated with our operating
segments do not exceed the carrying value of tietinssets, the Company may be required to recllitianal write downs of the carrying
value of our intangible and other long-lived assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a strdiige basis over their estimated useful livesjolthrange from 10 to 20 years. Amortization
expense was $2,992, $9,524 and $10,645 for the wealed December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, resplgcihs of December 31, 2010,
estimated future amortization expense is as follows

2011 $ 85¢
2012 85¢
2013 85¢
2014 85¢
2015 85¢
2016 and thereafte 5,77¢
Total $ 10,07
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9. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2@h@ 2009 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2010 2009
Accrued payroll and benefi $ 2,84F $ 2,22¢
Accrued property taxe 387 26¢
Income taxes payab 401 22k
Accrued professional fet 211 1,067
Accrued warranty liability 1,071 91¢&
Accrued environmental reser 67% —
Accrued othe 92t 1,972
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 6,51t $ 6,67¢

10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS
The Company's outstanding debt balance$ Becember 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of theviatig:

December 31

2010 2009
Lines of credi $ — $ 10,60
Term loans and notes paya 8,92¢ 18,97«
Related party not 2,32( 2,32(

11,24¢ 31,89:
Les<—Current portior (1,577) (18,499

Long-term debt, net of current maturiti  $ 9,671 $ 13,39¢

As of December 31, 2010, future annualgpal payments on our outstanding debt obligativase as follows:

2011 $ 1,577
2012 4,55(
2013 1,33(
2014 1,17¢
2015 1,17¢
2016 and thereafte 1,437
Total $ 11,24¢
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10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Credit Facilities
Bank of America Debt (Repai

In connection with the Company's acquisitid Brad Foote in October 2007, the Company asdwnéstanding debt and available line
credit totaling approximately $25,500 under varisasured debt facilities (the "BOA Debt Facilitipw/ith Bank of America. As of
December 31, 2009, the total principal amount anding under the BOA Debt Facilities was approxahe$15,964, and the effective per
annum interest rate was 7%. On January 22, 2082 Boote repaid all of the outstanding principal arterest under the BOA Debt Facilities
in the aggregate amount of $16,076, and the BOA Batilities were terminated.

Investors Community Bank Credit Line (Expired Matéh 2010)

In October 2007, Tower Tech obtained a gatiine of credit (the "ICB Line") from Investo@mmunity Bank ("ICB") in the amount of
$2,500, which was subsequently increased to $580@arch 21, 2008. On March 13, 2009, ICB agreeektend the maturity date of the ICB
Line to March 13, 2010. Pursuant to a Master Amesmitndated as of December 30, 2009 among ICB, Tdweh and Broadwind (as
guarantor) (the "Master Amendment"), the amourtheflCB Line was increased to $6,500, subject todwing base availability. Tower Tech
repaid all of the outstanding indebtedness undet@B Line in the amount of $3,066 on January 28,& and allowed the ICB Line to expire
on March 13, 2010. The effective interest rateteeldo the ICB Line was 6% at December 31, 2009.

Investors Community Bank Not

On April 7, 2008, the Company's wholly owrsubsidiary R.B.A. Inc. ("RBA") executed four (@pomissory notes with ICB (the "ICB
Notes") in the aggregate principal amount of apjmaxely $3,781, as follows: (i) a term note in theximum principal amount
approximately $421, bearing interest at a per anratenof 6.85%, with a maturity date of Octobe2®12; (ii) a term note in the maximum
principal amount of $700, bearing interest at agrerum rate of 5.65%, with a maturity date of AgB| 2013; (iii) a term note in the maximt
principal amount of $928, bearing interest at agrerum rate of 5.65%, with a maturity date of Ag8| 2013; and (iv) a line of credit note in
the maximum principal amount of $1,732, bearingriest at a per annum rate of 4.48% until May 1828 thereafter at the London
Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus 1.75%, witmmeturity date of April 5, 2009 (the "Line of Crédlote"). The Line of Credit Note was
subsequently modified on March 13, 2009 to extéedmaturity date to March 13, 2010 and to changértterest rate to the greater of (A) 5%
or (B) prime. The ICB Notes provide for multiplevaces, and were secured by substantially alleftsets of RBA.

Pursuant to the merger of RBA into Towectien December 31, 2009, Tower Tech became thessacby merger to RBA's interest in
the loans from ICB to RBA evidenced by the ICB Notether than the Line of Credit Note, which wasaid in full in January 2010). Pursuant
to the Master Amendment, Tower Tech agreed to raiairst minimum debt service coverage ratio in additd certain other requirements. The
Master Amendment was amended as of December 30, @D1o
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10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)

delete the requirements that Tower Tech maintaiollateral account as security for the obligatiander the ICB Notes and that no additional
loans or leases would be entered into by Tower Téttiout the prior approval of ICB, and (ii) to tape the requirement that Tower Tech
maintain its primary deposit accounts with ICB wiitle requirement that Tower Tech maintain with I€Bepository relationship of not less
than $700, with such funds to be deposited intaaay market account or certificate of deposit byater than January 7, 2011. As of
December 31, 2010, (i) Tower Tech was in compliamitk all covenants under its credit facilities WwICB, (ii) the total amount of outstandi
indebtedness under the remaining ICB Notes was/$1a8d (iii) the effective per annum interest rateler the remaining ICB Notes was
5.81%.

Great Western Bank Loan

On April 28, 2009, Tower Tech entered iatGonstruction Loan Agreement with Great WestemkBaGWB"), pursuant to which GWB
agreed to provide up to $10,000 in financing (tBeristruction Loan") to fund construction of Towexch's wind tower manufacturing facility
in Brandon, South Dakota (the "Facility"). Pursumé Change in Terms Agreement dated April 5, 28dtiveen GWB and Tower Tech, the
Construction Loan was converted to a term loan '(@reat Western Term Loan") providing for monthigyments of principal plus interest,
extending the maturity date to November 5, 2016uceng the principal amount to $6,500, and changiegpoer annum interest rate to 8.5%.
Tower Tech was required to pay a 1.0% originatemdpon the conversion.

The Great Western Term Loan is secured fingtamortgage on the Facility and all fixturesdgoroceeds relating thereto, pursuant to a
Mortgage and a Commercial Security Agreement, éativeen Tower Tech and GWB, and by a Commerciat&iafrom the Company. In
addition, the Company has agreed to subordinatataicompany debt with Tower Tech to the Great hesTerm Loan. The Great Western
Term Loan contains representations, warrantieccamdnants that are customary for a term financirgngement and contains no financial
covenants. As of December 31, 2010, the total antbhg indebtedness under the Great Western Tean was $5,750.

Wells Fargo Account Purchase Agreements

On September 29, 2010, the Company's dacrgstsidiaries ("Subsidiaries") entered into actqurchase agreements (the "AP
Agreements") with Wells Fargo Business Credit\asiin of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Wells Fargo")nder the AP Agreements, Wells Fargo
will advance funds against certain receivablesragifom sales of the Subsidiaries' products amdices. In connection with the entry into the
AP Agreements, the Company and each Subsidiary ésee@uted guaranties (including cross-guarantievor of Wells Fargo. With respect
to the Subsidiaries, the AP Agreements containipiavs providing for cross-defaults and cross-getiaization. In addition, each Subsidiary
has granted to Wells Fargo a security interestragjail financed receivables and related collatéabr to entering into the AP Agreements,
there was no material relationship between the Gompthe Subsidiaries and Wells Fargo.

Under the terms of the AP Agreements, Wedlggo will advance approximately 80% of the faakig of eligible receivables to the
Subsidiaries. Wells Fargo will have full recoursehe Subsidiaries for collection of the financedaivables. The aggregate facility limit of the
AP Agreements is $10,000.

72




Table of Contents

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)

For Wells Fargo's services under the AP AgreemémesSubsidiaries have agreed to pay Wells Fajgof(pating discount fee of the then-
prevailing LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum, (ii) an aahfiacility fee of 1% of the aggregate facility finand (iii) an annual unused line fee of
0.042% on the portion of the credit facility whishunused. The initial term of the AP Agreementdseon September 29, 2013. If the AP
Agreements are terminated prior to this date, aly éermination fee of up to 3% of the aggregatslity limit may apply. At December 31,
2010, no amounts were drawn under the AP Agreemantsthe Subsidiaries had the ability to borrovtai$10,000, subject to maintaining a
month-end minimum total cash balance of $5,000.

Selling Shareholder Notes

On May 26, 2009, the Company entered irgetdement agreement (the "Settlement Agreemaitt)the former owners of Brad Foote
(the "Selling Shareholders"), including J. Camebwacoll, who served as the Company's Chief Exeeufificer and a member of its Board of
Directors until December 1, 2010. The Settlemente&gent related to the post-closing escrow estadalisn connection with the Company's
acquisition of Brad Foote. Under the terms of te&l8ment Agreement, among other terms, the Comizauned three promissory notes to the
Selling Shareholders in the aggregate principalarnof $3,000 (the "Selling Shareholder Notes")e Helling Shareholder Notes mature on
May 28, 2012 and bear interest at a rate of 7%peum, with interest payments due quarterly. THEn§eShareholder Note issued to
Mr. Drecoll in the principal amount of $2,320 angguant to the terms of the Settlement Agreemethi¢ésned by the Company to be a related
party transaction. As of December 31, 2010, prialog $3,000 and accrued interest of $53 were antshg under the Selling Shareholder
Notes. The Company has accounted for the Sellirge®lolder Notes as lo-term debt in its consolidated balance sheets.

11. LEASES

The Company leases various property angbemnt under operating lease arrangements. Leass tgenerally range from 3 to 15 years
with renewal options for extended terms. The Comgpamequired to make additional payments undetageproperty leases for taxes,
insurance and other operating expenses incurreédgltire operating lease period. Rental expensthéyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008 was $4,289, $4,510 and $2,911, respegctivel

In addition, the Company has entered iifgital lease arrangements to finance property goipment and assumed capital lease
obligations in connection with certain acquisitiomie cost basis and accumulated depreciationsetssecorded under capital leases, which
are included in property and equipment, are as\idlas of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

December 31

2010 2009
Cost $ 6,152 $ 6,13¢
Accumulated depreciatic (1,31% (680)
Net book value $ 4837 $ 545¢
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11. LEASES (Continued)

Depreciation expense recorded in connectitim assets recorded under capital leases was $624 and $138 for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, future minimunsepayments under capital leases and operatingsleas as follows:

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total

2011 $ 1,17 $ 427C $ 5,44
2012 1,05¢ 3,66¢ 4,72(
2013 90¢ 2,46¢ 3,37¢
2014 — 2,14 2,14:
2015 — 1,601 1,601
2016 and thereaftt — 3,91t 3,91t
Total 3,13¢ $ 18,06: $ 21,19¢
Less—portion representing interest at a weightexdlame annual

rate of 8.8% (36€)
Principal 2,76¢
Less<—current portior (96€)
Capital lease obligations, noncurrent port $ 1,802

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Purchase Commitments

The Company issued purchase commitmerdasnnection with equipment purchases for its windelomanufacturing facility located in
Brandon, South Dakota, and its drivetrain serviseter located in Abilene, Texas. As of December2®10, outstanding purchase
commitments totaled approximately $1,021 and $1,E5&pectively. The Company expects that these dgoments will be fully satisfied in
2011.

During 2008, the Company issued purchagsmttments to two equipment manufacturers in coraeatith equipment purchases total
$4,888. Under the terms of the purchase orderg;timpany was required to make deposits totalingaqmately $1,324. In the second
quarter of 2010, the Company informed one of thaufecturers of the Company's election to cancekthgpment purchase commitment with
such manufacturer, which resulted in the forfeitofra non-refundable deposit in the amount of apiprately $650. In the fourth quarter of
2010, the Company reached an agreement with tlendenanufacturer pursuant to which the Companyeabte purchase a different piece of
equipment in exchange for a credit of the depasiten the original purchase order with such manufactand the trade of two pieces of use
equipment. As of December 31, 2010, there wereutstanding purchase commitments associated widethguipment purchases.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is subjedetal proceedings or claims arising from its naroourse of operations. The Company
accrues for costs related to loss contingencieswsheh costs are probable and reasonably estimfsblef. December 31, 2010, the Compar
not aware of any material pending legal proceedorghreatened litigation that would have a matexitverse effect on the Company's finar
condition or results of operations, although naiemsce can be given with respect to the ultimateaue of pending actions. Refer to Note 22
"Subsequent Events" for further discussion of lgateedings.

Environmental Compliance and Remediation Liabilities

The Company's operations and productsudjest to a variety of environmental laws and ragjahs in the jurisdictions in which the
Company operates and sells products governing, gmotrer things, air emissions, wastewater disclsathe use, handling and disposal of
hazardous materials, soil and groundwater contaimimeemployee health and safety, and product canperformance and packaging. Also,
certain environmental laws can impose the entist goa portion of the cost of investigating anebacling up a contaminated site, regardless of
fault, upon any one or more of a number of partreduding the current or previous owners or opsabf the site. These environmental laws
also impose liability on any person who arrangegte disposal or treatment of hazardous substataesontaminated site. Third parties may
also make claims against owners or operators @ sihd users of disposal sites for personal ir§uaie property damage associated with
releases of hazardous substances from thoseR&é=.to Note 22 "Subsequent Events" for furthecdssion of environmental compliance i
remediation liabilities.

Warranty Liability

The Company provides warranty terms thaegaly range from one to seven years for varicasipcts relating to workmanship and
materials supplied by the Company. In certain @uots, the Company has recourse provisions for iteatsvould enable recovery from third
parties for amounts paid to customers under warnaravisions.

Sale-Leaseback Transactions

During 2009, the Company entered into $sdseback agreements whereby certain owned equipmasrsold to a third party financing
company in exchange for cash and the Company sués#y entered into an equipment lease agreemehttiagé purchaser. The primary
purpose of these arrangements was to provide additliquidity to meet working capital requiremeriiepending on the terms of the lease
agreement, the lease may be classified as an opgeaatcapital lease. In addition, the sale ofdkeets may result in a gain or loss, which must
be amortized to other income or loss in the Comisastatement of operations over the life of theratieg lease. As of December 31, 2010, the
minimum monthly payments due under these leaseagets totaled $85.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Other

Collective bargaining agreements have batfied by collective bargaining units in placeoatr Cicero and Neville Island facilities and
expire in February 2014 and October 2012, respagtivAs of December 31, 2010, our collective bamgeg units represented approximately
23% of our workforce.

13. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

As part of our acquisition of Brad FooteOntober 2007, the Company assumed two interessmap agreements. These swap agreel
were intended to minimize the impact of interest fauctuations on certain debt instruments. Irgerate swap agreements involve exchanges
of fixed or floating rate interest payments pergadly over the life of the agreement without theleange of the underlying principal amounts.
Derivatives are measured at fair value and receghés either assets or liabilities on the Comparaiance sheet. The accounting for changes
in the fair value of a derivative is dependent uffamuse of the derivative and its resulting desligm. Unless specific hedge accounting cri
are met, changes in the fair value of the derieathust be recognized currently in earnings. The fizoy's interest rate swaps did not qualify
for hedge accounting, and therefore, the Comparsusired to recognize the swap agreements atftieimarket value and record the
fluctuations in the fair value of the swap agreetaém current earnings.

In February 2010, the Company settled u#rest rate swap agreements for $270 in conrmeetith the repayment of all outstanding
indebtedness to Bank of America in January 2010irQuthe year ended December 31, 2009, the Compgported a gain related to the cha
in the fair value of these instruments of $330 caref to a loss of $194 for the year ended DeceBihe2008. The fair market value of the
interest rate swaps of $253 was recorded as atemgtiability in our consolidated balance sheet®fiDecember 31, 2009. The fair values of
our interest rate swap agreements were calculaied level 2 assumptions, and the corresponding galioss was recognized as other inc
(expense) in our consolidated statements of opersti

14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures its financial assetdiabilities at fair value. Fair value is definad the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., exiicg) in an orderly transaction between marketipiaants at the measurement date. Additionally,
the Company is required to provide disclosure atdgorize assets and liabilities measured at &irevinto one of three different levels
depending on the assumptions (i.e., inputs) uséaeivaluation. Level 1 provides the most reliahkasure of fair value while Level 3
generally requires significant management judgmeniancial assets and liabilities are classifiethigir entirety based on the lowest level of
input significant to the fair value measuremente Téir value hierarchy is defined as follows:

Level 1—Valuations are based on unadjugtested prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.
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14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Level 2—Valuations are based on quotedegrfor similar assets or liabilities in active metek or quoted prices in markets that are not
active for which significant inputs are observalgligher directly or indirectly.

Level 3—Valuations are based on pricesabuation techniques that require inputs that ath boobservable and significant to the overall
fair value measurement. Inputs reflect managembastestimate of what market participants wouklinssaluing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's faferinstruments, which include cash and cash edgits, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and customer deposits approximate thegeotive fair values due to the relatively shortrierature of these instruments. Based upon
interest rates currently available to the Compamydebt with similar terms, the carrying value lné Company's long-term debt is
approximately equal to its fair value.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company haditterest rate swap agreements totaling $253,wlvere required to be measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. In February 2010, thegany settled both interest rate swap agreemesnnection with the repayment of all
outstanding indebtedness to Bank of America. Sde W® "Interest Rate Swap Agreements"” of thesedatmlaged financial statements for a
discussion of these interest rate swap agreements.

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring bés

The Company reviews its goodwill balana@sifnpairment on at least an annual basis basedeocarrying value of these assets as of
October 31 and tests its intangible and long-ligesets whenever events or changes in circumstartdieate that its carrying value may not be
recoverable. Due to the continuing effects of tbenemic downturn on the wind energy industry, tleenpany tested goodwill and intangible
assets for impairment using a fair value measurémggproach. The fair value measurement approalibastia number of significant
unobservable inputs or Level 3 assumptions. Thesenaptions include, among others, projections ofaure operating results, the implied
fair value of these assets using an income approagneparing a discounted cash flow analysis améiket based approach based on our
market capitalization, and other subjective assionpt Upon completion of our impairment analysie €Company determined that the carr
value of its goodwill and intangible assets excedtie fair value of these assets. Accordingly,Geenpany recorded goodwill and intangible
impairment charges of $4,561 and $19,336, respaygtito properly reflect the carrying value of taessets. In addition, the Company reco
an impairment charge to fixed assets of $13,326a4dlto its Brandon, South Dakota tower manufaogufacility, and $3,554 related to
property and equipment at its Services segmentN®&=7 "Property and Equipment" of these constdiddinancial statements for further
discussion of this impairment charge.
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14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents the fair valneasurements of our nonrecurring assets for agntjroperations as of December 31, 2010 and
2009:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Other Significant
Year Ended Identical Assets Observable Unobservable Total Gains
Description 12/31/10 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) (Losses)
Goodwill $ — % — $ — 3 — $ (4,56)
Intangible assets,
net 10,07: — — 10,07: (19,33¢)
Property and
equipment, ne 106,31 — — 106,31 (16,880
$ (40,77)
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Other Significant
Year Ended Identical Assets Observable Unobservable Total Gains
Description 12/31/09 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) (Losses)
Goodwill $ 4561 $ — 3 — 3 4561 $ (24,269
Intangible asset:
net 32,40: — — 32,40 (57,947
Property anc
equipment, ne 129,61¢ — — 129,61¢ —
$ (82,21)

15. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes baped an asset and liability approach. Deferrecatsets and liabilities represent the future
tax consequences of the differences between thadial statement carrying amounts of assets ahiiitiies versus the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Under this method, deferred tax assetsrecognized for deductible temporary differsnead operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recagp for taxable temporary differences. Deferredatssets are reduced by a valuation allow.
when, in the opinion of management, it is moreljikban not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. The impact
of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets arititiezbis recognized in the year that the charggeriacted.
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15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The provision for income taxes for the geanded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 consists fmllowing:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Current provisior

Federa $ — $ — 3 —

Foreign 4 — —

State 62 (37 554

Total current provisiol 66 (37 554
Deferred credi

Federa (23,87) (38,149 (7,666

State (6,07€) (5,617) (410)

Total deferred cred (29,94") (43,759 (8,07¢)
Increase in deferred t:

valuation allowanc: 29,72 42,84t 8,61¢
Total (benefit) provision for

income taxe: $ (260) $ (947 $ 1,09¢

The increase in the deferred tax valuatibmwance was $29,721, $42,845, and $8,618 foy#laes ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. The change in the deferred/i¢dixation allowance in 2010 was the result of amease to the deferred tax assets in
connection with the impairment of goodwill and imgigble assets, and additional federal and statepextating losses. The change in the
deferred tax valuation allowance in 2009 was tlsalteof a significant increase to deferred tax esgeconnection with the impairment of

goodwill and intangible assets, and additional fatlend state net operating losses.
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15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of the temporary differenaad net operating losses that give rise to sagmif portions of deferred tax assets and

liabilities are as follows:

Current deferred income tax ass!
Accrual and reserve

Total current deferred tax ass
Valuation allowanct

Current deferred tax assets, net of
valuation allowanc:

Noncurrent deferred income tax ass
Net operating loss carryforwar
Intangible assei
Other

Total noncurrent deferred tax ass
Valuation allowanct

Noncurrent deferred tax assets, ne
valuation allowanc:

Noncurrent deferred income t
liabilities:
Fixed asset
Intangible assei

Total noncurrent deferred tax liabiliti

Net deferred income tax liabilit

The Company has indefinite long-lived irgdate assets consisting of goodwill, which are awmiortized for financial reporting purposes.
However, the expense related to the amortizatichede assets is tax deductible, and thereforasbets are amortized for income tax purpt
As a result, deferred income tax expense and agféncome tax liabilities arise as a result oftdpedeductibility of these indefinite long-lived
intangible assets. The resulting deferred taxlitsthivhich is anticipated to continue to increaser time, has an indefinite life, resulting in
what is referred to as a "naked tax credit." Thafedred tax liability would remain on our consotield balance sheets indefinitely unless there is
an impairment of the related assets for finan@pbrting purposes, or the businesses to whichgbetarelate are to be disposed of. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company has fully impaiteiddefinite long-lived intangible assets. Thenefpthe Company no longer recognizes

As of December 31
2010 2009

$ 259 $ 257
2,59¢ 2,57¢
(2,599 (2,579

$ 45387 $ 30,90(
40,248  29,29¢
10C 73t
85,73¢ 60,93
(80,619 (47,70

5,11¢ 13,22}

$ (511¢ $ (13,630

(5,116 ~ (13,63()
$ — 3 (409

any deferred tax liabilities arising from the anmation of these items.
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15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Valuation allowances of $83,217 and $50,2d@ve been provided for deferred income tax a$setshich realization is uncertain as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. A retiation of the beginning and ending amounts ofvakiation was as follows:

Valuation allowance as of December 31, 2 $ (50,27
Gross increase for current year actiy (32,940
Valuation allowance as of December 31, 2 $ (83,21)

As of December 31, 2010, the Company hddri net operating loss carryforwards of approxaétya$112,292 expiring in various years
through 2030. The majority of the net operatingloarry forwards will expire in 2028, 2029, and @03

As of December 31, 2010, the Company happartioned state net operating losses in the ggtgef approximately $112,292 expiring
in various years from 2021 through 2030 based waoious net operating loss periods as designateleoglifferent taxing jurisdictions.

The reconciliation of the tax (benefit) pision computed at the statutory rate to the efffediax rate is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Statutory U.S. federal income tax ri 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State and local income taxes, ne

federal income tax bene 3.2 3.4 (0.4
Permanent difference (0.5) (0.3 (5.0
Change in valuation allowan (37.5) (37.9 (34.9)
FIN48 change — (0.2 —
Other 0.1 0.3 0.t
Effective income tax rat 0.3% 0% (4.60%

The Company accounts for the uncertainip@éome taxes by prescribing a minimum recognittmeshold for a tax position taken, or
expected to be taken, in a tax return that is reguo be met
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15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

before being recognized in the financial stateméltte changes in the Company's uncertain incompdaitions for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the fotigwi

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2010 2009

Beginning balanc $ 34 $ 19¢
Tax positions related to current ye

Additions — —

Reductions — —

Tax positions related to prior yea
Additions 33 19¢
Reductions — —
Settlement: — (40
Lapses in statutes of limitatio — —

Additions from current yee

acquisitions — —
33 15€
Ending balanci $ 382 % 34¢

It is the Company's policy to include irtstrand penalties in tax expense. During the yesaded December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
Company recognized and accrued approximately $8246, respectively, of interest and penalties.

The Company files income tax returns intth8. federal and state jurisdictions. As of Decenfi, 2010, open tax years in the federa
some state jurisdictions date back to 1996 dubddaxing authorities' ability to adjust operatiogs carryforwards. No changes in settled tax
years have occurred through December 31, 2

The Company does not anticipate therehweila material change in the total amount of unneizegl tax benefits within the next
12 months. However, the Company is currently urdelit for its federal income tax returns for pes@hded December 31, 2008 and 2009.
The Company believes that it has appropriate sufpothe positions taken on its tax returns asdaitnual tax provision includes amounts
sufficient to pay any assessments. Nonethelesgntioeints ultimately paid, if any, may differ sigoéntly from the amounts currently accrued.

16. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On January 21, 2010, the Company completeuablic offering of its common stock, par valueGR per share, at an offering price of
$5.75 per share. In the offering, the Company $6l@00,000 newly issued shares of its common starcipproximately $54,625 in proceeds
after deducting underwriting discounts, but befdeducting other offering related costs. In conmectvith the
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16. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)

offering, the Company incurred $1,278 in costs eissed with professional and other offering relagegenses, which have been netted against
the proceeds received in additional paid-in cajitahe Company's consolidated balance sheet Beagmber 31, 2010.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On May 26, 2009, the Company entered imoSettlement Agreement with the Selling Sharehs]decluding J. Cameron Drecoll, who
served as the Company's Chief Executive Officeranmtember of the Company's Board of Directors ugitember 1, 2010. The Settlement
Agreement related to the post-closing escrow estaddd in connection with the Company's acquisitbBrad Foote. The post-closing escrow
fund was created to provide a source of funds l&nts for indemnification made by the Company aedain other indemnified persons
against the Selling Shareholders under the Stoch@ee Agreement executed in connection with thegamy's acquisition of Brad Foote. On
October 19, 2007, the date the Company consumnitatadquisition of Brad Foote, the Company depdsitgortion of its total purchase price
for Brad Foote (in the amount of $5,000 in cash 24880,000 shares of its common stock) into theogsfund. The consideration deposited
into the escrow fund was to be held by an escraantgntil five business days after the eighteentmanniversary of the Brad Foote
acquisition. Under the terms of the Settlement &grent, the Company received the entire cash edzatamce of $5,000 plus accrued interest
income of $82, which was recorded as other incdmexchange, the Company agreed to cause the edieéise Selling Shareholders of
2,500,000 shares of the Company's common stockumeldr the escrow agreement in proportion to theinership interest in Brad Foote prior
to its acquisition by the Company. In addition, @empany agreed to make a cash payment of $30at&eling Shareholder and issued the
Selling Shareholder Notes to the three Selling &halders in the aggregate principal amount of B,0@e cash payment and Selling
Shareholder Notes were recorded as an increake fmtchase price through goodwill as these amaueits calculated in accordance with the
purchase agreement. The Company also paid to Mcdlircertain tax refunds in the aggregate amofiapproximately $2,212 related to our
acquisition of Brad Foote and tax payments in respkthe period prior to the acquisition to whitie Company believes the Selling
Shareholders are entitled (or to which the Compamntitled on their behalf). The Selling Shareleoldotes mature on May 28, 2012 and bear
interest at a rate of 7% per annum, with interaghpents due quarterly. The Selling Shareholder Mstged to Mr. Drecoll in the principal
amount of $2,320 and pursuant to the terms of #tgenent Agreement is deemed by the Company toretated party transaction. As of
December 31, 2010, principal of $3,000 and accmiedest of $53 was outstanding under the Sellingr&holder Notes. The Company has
accounted for the Selling Shareholder Notes as-teng debt in our consolidated balance sheets Beoémber 31, 2010.

During the years ended December 31, 20009 2nd 2008, interest expense of $210, $128 aja261respectively, was incurred on
shareholder and related party notes.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Overview of Share-Based Compensation Plan

The Company grants incentive stock optiamd other equity awards pursuant to the Broadwimer@y, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP™), which was approved by the Company'afmf Directors in October 2007 and by the Comfsastpckholders in June 2008. The
EIP was subsequently amended in August 2008 bgtimepany's Board of Directors to include certain-nmaterial amendments to clarify the
terms and conditions of restricted stock awardstarpfovide that the administrator of the EIP Hesduthority to authorize future amendments
to the EIP. The EIP was further amended by the Gmyip stockholders in June 2009 to increase théaupf shares of common stock
authorized for issuance under the EIP. As amerttiedkIP reserves 5,500,000 shares of our commaR &o grants to officers, directors,
employees, consultants and advisors upon whosg®ffe success of the Company and its affiliatiisiepend to a large degree. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company had reserved 91%[188s for the exercise of stock options outstadi12,902 shares for restricted stock
unit awards outstanding and 3,514,040 additionateshfor future stock awards under the EIP. Aseddnber 31, 2010, 355,865 shares of
common stock reserved for stock options and résttistock unit awards under the EIP have beendsisuhe form of common stock.

Stock Options. The exercise price of stock options grantedeutide EIP is equal to the closing price of our own stock on the date of
grant. Stock options generally become exercisabléne anniversary of the grant date, with vestargs that may range from one to five years
from the date of grant. Additionally, stock optiomepire ten years after the date of grant. If a plarticipant's employment is terminated dui
the vesting period, he or she forfeits the rightnwested stock option awards.

Restricted Stock. The granting of restricted stock units is pded for under the EIP. Restricted stock units gahyevest on the
anniversary of the grant date, with vesting terhad tange from immediate vesting to five years ftomdate of grant. The fair value of each
unit granted is equal to the closing price of cammon stock on the date of grant and is expengsetlysover the vesting term of the restricted
stock award. If a plan participant's employmertieisinated during the vesting period, he or shiefizrthe right to any unvested portion of the
restricted stock units.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

Stock option activity during the years esh@@ecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 under the EtPaw#ollows:

Weighted Average  Aggregate Intrinsic

Weighted Average Remaining Value
Options Exercise Price Contractual Term (in thousands)
Outstanding as of
December 31, 200 950,000 $ 7.92
Granted 1,165,000 $ 14.5¢
Exercisec — —
Forfeited (85,0000 $ 11.3¢
Cancellec — —
Outstanding as of
December 31, 200 2,030,000 $ 11.6(
Granted 209,19: $ 7.6€
Exercisec (91,940 $ 7.34
Forfeited (723,25) $ 12.0¢
Expired (21,83) $ 10.2:
Outstanding as of
December 31, 200 1,402,16. $ 11.0¢
Granted 464,82¢ $ 3.6
Exercisec — $ 0.0C
Forfeited (647,766 $ 9.31
Expired (302,03) $ 10.3i
Outstanding as of
December 31, 201 917,190 $ 8.7¢ 8.4 years $ 11¢
Exercisable as of December
2010 223,79¢ $ 12.51 7.5 years $ 0

The following table summarizes informatisith respect to all outstanding and exercisablekstiptions under the EIP as of December
2010:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Number of options Weighted Average  Contractual Number Weighted Average

Exercise Price Range outstanding Exercise Price Term Exercisable Exercise Price

$1.77- $7.78 437,69 $ 3.8¢ 9.4 year 14,41 $ 7.7¢€
$8.00- $12.85 294,50( 10.21 7.5 year 135,38« 9.9¢
$17.80- $18.20 185,00( 18.0: 7.6 year 74,00( 18.0:¢
917,197 $ 8.7t 8.4 year 223,79¢ $ 12.5]

85




Table of Contents

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The following table summarizes informatieith respect to outstanding restricted stock uast®f December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

Number of Shares Per Share

Outstanding as of

December 31, 200 15,000 $ 10.9C

Granted 120,00 $ 10.7¢

Vested (7,500 $ 10.9(

Forfeited — —
Outstanding as of

December 31, 200 127,50C $ 10.71

Granted 367,21" $ 6.8€

Vested (176,66 $ 5.7¢

Forfeited (38,90) % 9.6%
Outstanding as ¢

December 31, 200 279,15. $ 8.7¢

Granted 709,370 $ 3.12

Vested (143,48) ¢ 5.71

Forfeited (132,13) $ 6.9
Outstanding as of

December 31, 201 712,90: $ 4.0¢

The fair value of each stock option awardstimated on the date of grant using the BBaheles option pricing model. Our determina
of the fair value of each stock option is affedtgdour stock price on the date of grant, as weldlssimptions regarding a number of highly
complex and subjective variables. These varialleside, but are not limited to, our expected stmige volatility over the expected life of the
awards and actual and projected stock option esektmhavior. The weighted average fair value paresbf stock option awards granted dui
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 200&ssumptions used to value stock options, af@las/s:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2010 2009 2008

Dividend yield — — —
Risk-free interest rat 25% 2.6% 3.1%
Weighted average volatilit 91.5% 85.(% 65.5%
Expected life (in years 6.3 6.5 6.5
Weighted average grant date fair val

per share of options grant $ 275 $564 $7.1¢

Dividend yield is zero as the Company cotlgedoes not pay a dividend.

Risk-free rate is based on the impliedd/mirrently available on U.S. Treasury zero couigsnes with a remaining term equal to the
expected life of the award.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

During the years ended December 31, 2082809, the Company utilized a standard volatdggumption of 91.5% and 85.0%,
respectively, for estimating the fair value of #t@ptions awarded based on comparable volatilisrages for the energy related sector.

The expected life of each stock option agranted is derived using the "simplified meth@m"estimating the expected term of a
"vanilla-option" in accordance with Staff AccourgiBulletin ("SAB") No. 107, "Share-Based Paymeat"amended by SAB No. 110, "Share-
Based Payment." The fair value of each unit ofrietstd stock is equal to the fair market valuelef Company's common stock as of the da
grant.

During the years ended December 31, 2082809, the Company utilized a forfeiture rate 8%®2and 10%, respectively, for estimating
the forfeitures of stock options granted. During #iecond quarter of 2010, the Company reviseadifsifure rate to 25% based upon the
Company's historical forfeiture rates. The revisgiothe Company's forfeiture was applied to stogtiams and restricted stock units outstant
as of June 30, 2010 and on a prospective basis.

The following table summarizes share-basedpensation expense included in our consolidatgdraents of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2010 2009 2008

Share-based compensatiol
expense:
Selling, general and
administrative $ 166¢ $ 2,808 $ 1,99¢
Income tax benefit(1 — — —
Net effect of shar-based
compensation expense on r
loss $ 1,666 $ 2,80t $ 1,99¢

Reduction in earnings per
share:
Basic and diluted earnings p:
share(2! $ 00z $ 0.0: $ 0.0z

() Income tax benefit is not illustrated because tbe@any is currently operating at a loss and anactu
income tax benefit was not realized for the yeaed December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. The refsult o
the loss situation creates a timing differenceyltey in a deferred tax asset, which is fully mesel for in
the valuation allowance.

2) Diluted earnings per share for the years ended mkeee31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 does not include cor
stock equivalents due to their anti-dilutive natasea result of the Company's net losses for tresgective
periods. Accordingly, basic earnings per sharediluled earnings per share are identical for afiqus
presented

As of December 31, 2010, the Company estiménat pre-tax compensation expense for all uadeshare-based awards, including both
stock options and restricted stock units, in the@am of approximately $4,093 will be recognizedtigh the year 2015. The Company expects
to satisfy the exercise of stock options and futlistribution of shares of restricted stock by isguinew shares of common stock.
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19. SEGMENT REPORTING

In December 2009, the Company revisecepp®rting segment presentation into four reportaplerating segments: Towers, Gearing,
Technical and Engineering Services, and Logistit®ecember of 2010, the Company's Board of Dinscapproved a plan to divest its
Logistics business segment; consequently, thigieasiunit is now reported as a Discontinued Operatnd the Company has revised its
segment presentation to include three reportaldeatipg segments: Towers, Gearing, and Servicevifarsly Technical and Engineering
Services). All current and prior period financiesults have been revised to reflect these changes.

The Company's segments and their produttarvice offerings are summarized below:
Towers

The Company manufactures towers for wimblites, specifically the large and heavier windeosvthat are designed for 2 MW and larger
wind turbines. Production facilities, located in ht@awoc, Wisconsin and Abilene, Texas, are situattetlose proximity to the primary U.S.
wind resource regions. The two facilities have mlbimed annual tower production capacity of appratety 500 towers, sufficient to support
turbines generating more than 1,200 MW of powers Phoduct segment also encompasses the manufadtspecialty fabrications and heavy
weldments for wind energy and other industrial oorstrs.

Gearing

The Company manufactures high precisiomiggaystems for wind turbines and custom-engirgtgearing systems and gearboxes for
energy, mining and other industrial customers. Thenpany uses an integrated manufacturing procdsshvuncludes machining processes in
Cicero, lllinois, heat treatment in Neville IslarRennsylvania and a finishing process in the Citactory.

Services

The Company offers technical and precisepair and engineering services to developers padators of wind farms and manufacturers
of wind turbines. Technical services offerings u# construction support, and operations and nreaniee services for wind farm developers
and operators. Precision repair and engineeringcgsrinclude repair and refurbishment of complestams and components of wind turbines,
including control systems, drivetrains and bladdgse Company's primary service locations are indil§, California, South Dakota and Texas.
During 2010, the Company approved an investmeappfoximately $7 million to develop a dedicated/eriain service center in Abilene,
Texas, focused on servicing the growing installasebof MW wind turbines as they come off warrafftye drivetrain service center was
dedicated and put into operation in February 2011.

Corporate and Other

"Corporate and Other" is comprised of afijents to reconcile segment results to consolidasalts, which primarily includes corporate
administrative expenses and intercompany eliminatio
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19. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Summary financial information by reportabgment is as follows:

Operating (Loss) Profit

Revenues For the Years Ended For the Years Ended
Segments: 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Towers $ 76,15C $ 9331« $ 72,56 $ (11,43 $ (499 $ 5.81:
Gearing 48,99¢ 64,51¢ 104,55: (13,67%) (97,05%) (6,619
Services 12,09( 27,57" 31,24¢ (34,74) (610 (1,822
Corporate ani
Other(1) (340) (611) (1,012 (9,36¢€) (14,089 (19,25

$ 136,89¢ $ 184,79t $ 207,34¢ $ (69,227) $ (11225) $ (21,879

Depreciation and Amortization Capital Expenditures
For the Years Ended For the Years Ended
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Segments:
Towers $ 3,41¢ $ 3,39¢ $ 1,62¢ $ 2,11¢ $ 10,29t $ 47,52«
Gearing 9,97( 15,92¢ 15,34( 1,39¢ 262 26,56¢
Services 2,90¢ 3,25(C 3,02¢ 3,28: 48t 3,267
Corporate ani
Other(1) 16€ 124 101 99 22¢ 1,73¢

$ 16,460 $ 22,69¢ $ 20,09C $ 6,89 $ 11,277 $ 79,09:

Total Assets as o

December 31,
2010 2009

Segments:
Towers $ 76,937 $ 80,14¢
Gearing 81,33¢ 92,66"
Services 10,48( 36,417
Assets held for sal 6,841 19,99;
Corporate and Other(: 7,91 2,26:

$ 183,50¢ $ 231,48t
@ "Corporate and Other" includes corporate admirtisggexpenses and intercompany eliminations.

Corporate selling, general and administrative egpsnincludes corporate salaries and benefits, $tzaed
compensation, and professional fees.

2 "Corporate and Other" includes assets of the catpdreadquarters and intercompany eliminations.

The Company generates revenues entirefy fransactions completed in the U.S. and its llivegd assets are predominantly located in
U.S. During 2010, two customers each accountedhfire than 10% of total net revenues. During theésyeaded December 31, 2010, 2009,
and 2008, five customers accounted for 78%, 73%7&A6l, respectively, of total net revenues.
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20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Retirement Savings and Profit Sharing Plans

Prior to January 1, 2009, the Company awt ®f its business units had defined contributioprofit sharing 401(k) retirement savings
plans with varying levels of contributions.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Companyaegd all of its 401(k) retirement savings planswite defined contribution 401(k) safe harbor
plan covering substantially all of the Company's-naion employees. Under this plan, an eligible erygéomay elect to contribute a portior
salary on a pre-tax basis, subject to federal tatlimitations. The plan requires the Companynake basic matching contributions equal to
100% of the first 3% of the eligible participargisan compensation contributed as elective defepatributions and 50% of the next 2% of the
eligible participant's plan compensation contribiuis an elective deferral contribution. Under ttaa pelective deferrals and basic company
matching will be 100% vested at all times. Effeetin the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all subsggUCompany matching contributions, the
Company began funding these contributions in shafrdse Company's common stock in lieu of a casttrdaution. For the Company's union
employees, the Company continued its discretiongatch in an amount up to 50% of each participdinss4% of compensation contributed,
per the collective bargaining agreement.

Effective January 1, 2010, based on thkective bargaining agreement with the Brad Fooieemployees in Pennsylvania, the
discretionary match changed to 100% of the first@%he eligible participant's plan compensationtdbuted as elective deferral contributions
and 50% of the next 2% of the eligible participeptan compensation contributed as an electiverdgdfeontribution.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 80822008, the Company recorded expense under phaseof approximately $636, $721
and $368, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains a deferred compesrsatan for certain key employees and nonemployeetdrs, whereby certain wages
earned, compensation for services rendered, aotetlznary company-matching contributions may bieiled and deemed to be invested in
the Company's common stock. Changes in the fairevat the plan liability are recorded as chargesredits to compensation expense.
Compensation expense associated with the defeoragensation plan recorded during the years endedrbleer 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008,
was ($154), $64 and ($90), respectively. The falug of the plan liability to the Company is inchatlin accrued liabilities in our consolidated
balance sheets. As of December 31, 2010 and 208%air value of plan liability to the Company w&&l and $215, respectively.

In addition to the employee benefit plapsatibed above, the Company patrticipates in cecizgtomary employee benefits plans,
including those which provide health and life iresure benefits to employees.
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY (UNAUDITED)

The following table provides a summary elested financial results of operations by quédiethe years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 as follows:

2010 First Second Third Fourth
Revenue! $ 21,747 $ 33,58( $ 34,02: $ 47,55
Gross (loss) profi (3,49¢) 214 (221) 5,44¢
Operating los: (12,06¢) (12,199 (7,799 (37,169
Loss from continuing operations, net of (11,99) (13,200 (7,26() (37,309
Net loss (14,129  (14,18)) (8,299)  (48,57)
Loss from continuing operations per she

Basic and Dilutec (0.13) (0.12) (0.07) (0.36)
Net loss per shar

Basic and Dilutet $ 01H)$ (019 $ (0.08 $ (0.45
2009 First Second Third Fourth
Revenue! $ 50,37( $ 47,72¢ $ 54,54¢ $ 32,15!
Gross profit (loss 4,68( 2,68¢ 5,86¢ (2,329
Operating los: (6,18%) (9,849 (4,59)) (91,62¢)
Loss from continuing operations, net of - (6,24¢) (4,54¢) (5,005 (91,229
Net loss (7,150 (5,426 (4,949 (92,599
Loss from continuing operations per she

Basic and Dilute( (0.0¢) (0.05) (0.05) (0.95)
Net loss per shar

Basic and Dilutet $ (0.07) $ (006 $ (0.09 $ (0.9¢)

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Legal Proceedings

On February 11, 2011, a putative clas®aatias filed in the United States District Court tlee Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division, against Broadwind and certain of its emtror former officers and directors. The lawsslipurportedly brought on behalf of
purchasers of the Company's common stock betweeohM&, 2009 and August 9, 2010. The complaintséelllege that the defendants
violated Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchangedt 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), arlé R0Ob-5 promulgated thereunder, and
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act by issuing aeseuf allegedly false and/or misleading statemeotgerning the Company's financial resi
operations, and prospects, including with respethé January 2010 secondary public offering of@Gbenpany's common stock. Between
February 15, 2011 and March 9, 2011, three putatieeeholder derivative lawsuits were filed in thdted States District Court for the
Northern District of lllinois, Eastern Division, drone putative shareholder derivative lawsuit viles in the Circuit Court of Cook Count
lllinois, Chancery Division, against certain of tBiempany's current and former officers and direx;tand certain Tontine entities, seeking to
challenge alleged breaches of fiduciary duty, waétorporate assets, and unjust enrichment, inefuith connection with the January 2010
secondary public offering of the Company's comntooks One of the lawsuits also alleges that cedéiectors violated Section 14(a) of the
Exchange Act in connection with our Proxy Statenfenbur 2010
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22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Because of theimieary nature of these lawsuits, the Company isatde to estimate a loss or range of |
but it expects, based on currently available infation, that any liability resulting from these o& would be substantially covered by its
insurance policies.

Environmental Compliance and Remediation Liabilities

The Company is aware of an investigatiomiee@nced by the United States Attorney's Office,thenn District of Illinois, for potential
violation of federal environmental laws. On Febyua$b, 2011, officials from the United States Enuimental Protection Agency conducted a
search of one of the Company's facilities in Ci¢dltimois. During the search, officials intervied@& number of the Company's employees and
seized documents relating to the facility's commqgl@with certain environmental laws and regulatiéiso on February 15, 2011, the Comp.
received a subpoena requesting production of cediméuments relating to the facility's compliandthwertain environmental regulations
relating to the generation, discharge and dispafsahstewater from certain of the Company's praegefom 2004 to the present. The Comj
is in the process of responding to this subpoehé;hwesponse is currently due on March 24, 20X1F€bruary 23, 2011, the Company also
received an additional subpoena requesting praatucti certain documents relating to certain of @mnpany's employees and environmental
and manufacturing processes. The Company is ipribeess of responding to this subpoena, and hagsesf an extension of the time allotted
to respond. Such extensions are generally grastedhaatter of routine, but the Company has notgegived a new date by which such
response will be due. The Company does not cuyréatte information as to when the investigation rhayoncluded, and it is also conduc
an internal investigation of any possible noncoamudee. At this time, the Company has not been fdynmaltified that it is a subject or target of
the investigation and no fines or penalties hawentsiggested. There can be no assurances thatrtiesion of the investigation will not res
in a determination that the Company has violatqaliegble laws. If the Company is found to have atet such laws, it could be subject to
fines, civil penalties and criminal penalties. T@mpany has recorded a liability of $675 at Decan3ie 2010, which represents the low end
of its estimate of costs and expenses which hage lmeurred, or which are expected to be incurtgthd 2011 in connection with this matter.
Due to the preliminary nature of the Company's dtigation, it is reasonably possible that the estinof the obligation may change in the near
term.

Sale of Logistics Business

On March 4, 2011, the Company completedsttie of its logistics business, through the shlessd@adger subsidiary, to BTI Logistics,
LLC ("BTI Logistics"). Proceeds from the sale ingkd $1.0 million in cash, a $1.5 million securedrpissory note and 100,000 shares of
Broadwind common stock held by the buyer. In additBT| Logistics assumed approximately $2.9 millaf debt and capital leases, plus
approximately $1.6 million of operating lease obtigns. The purchase price is subject to final waylcapital adjustments. In connection with
the sale, the AP Agreement between Badger and Waityo, and the guaranty provided by Badger to $\Fedirgo with respect to the other AP
Agreements were each terminated, pursuant to anlibimAmendment to Account Purchase Agreements arsaid@ties dated as of March 4,
2011, by and among the Company, the Subsidiariéd\&lls Fargo.
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filed November 21, 200¢
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2007 among the Company, Energy Maintenance Setvige, Joseph A. Kolbach and the
members of Energy Maintenance Service, LLC (inotafed by reference to Exhibit 2.1
the Company's Current Report on For-K filed January 14, 200¢

Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 4, 2011 aBoyapwind Energy, Inc., Badger
Transport, Inc. and BTI Logistics, LLC (incorpordtey reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed March 10, 2011

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorgted by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2(

Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended and cettedeigh November 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther(Pany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed November 5, 201(C

Form of Irrevocable Proxy of each of ChristopheliedlRaymond L. Brickner, Ill, Terence
P. Fox and Daniel P. Wergin, each dated March @7 2pursuant to the Securities Purct
Agreement by and among Tontine Capital Partnef,, Montine Capital Overseas Master
Fund, L.P. and Tower Tech Holdings Inc. dated Mdrch007 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 5 to Schedule 13D filed by Tontine CapRartners, L.P., Tontine Capital
Management, L.L.C., Tontine Capital Overseas Mdsterd, L.P., Tontine Capital
Overseas GP, L.L.C. and Jeffrey L. Gendell on M&rc2007)

Proxy Agreement between Tontine Capital Partnei,, Tontine Capital Overseas Master
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Lease Agreement dated December 26, 2007 betwasarTTech Systems Inc. and City
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Form 1(-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Purchase Agreement Addendum effective Februarg@a8 between Brad Foote Gear
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Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed February 21, 200¢

Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreemeat®&fe February 11, 2008 between
Brad Foote Gear Works, Inc. and 1309 South Cicemnie, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's CurReport on Form 8-K filed February 21,
2008)

Purchase Agreement effective February 11, 2008dmtvBrad Foote Gear Works, Inc. ¢
BFG Pittsburgh LLC (incorporated by reference ttibi 10.3 to the Company's Current
Report on Form-K filed February 21, 200¢

Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreemeettfe February 11, 2008 between
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Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report omir€-K filed February 21, 200¢

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 28@ngthe Company, Tontine Capital
Partners, L.P. and Tontine Capital Overseas M&sted, L.P. (incorporated by referenci
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report om#€é-K filed March 5, 2007

Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 22, @8hg the Company, Tontine
Capital Partners, L.P., Tontine Capital OverseastbtaFund, L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P.,
Tontine Overseas Fund, Ltd. and Tontine 25 Overéaster Fund, L.P. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's CurReport on Form 8-K filed August 24,
2007)

Amended and Restated Securities Purchase Agreefatd January 3, 2008 by and am
the Company, Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., TenBartners, L.P., and Tontine 25
Overseas Master Fund, L.P. (incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Formr-K filed January 4, 200¢

Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 22, 2@@8een Broadwind Energy, Inc.,
Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., Tontine PartnerB, LTontine Overseas Fund, Ltd., and
Tontine 25 Overseas Master Fund, L.P. (incorporbjedeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed April 28, 2008)

Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 22, 28@&een Broadwind Energy, Inc. and
Charles H. Beynon (incorporated by reference tailiikh0.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form -K filed April 28, 2008)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 1, 208@ry the Company, Tontine Capital
Partners, L.P., and Tontine Capital Overseas M&ated, L.P. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current ReporfForm &K filed March 5, 2007

Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement dateti@sr 19, 2007 among the
Company, Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., Tontinpi@aOverseas Master Fund, L.P.,
Tontine Partners, L.P., Tontine Overseas Fund,ard. Tontine 25 Overseas Master
Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibi6lid the Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed October 24, 2007

94




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

Description

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:1

10.2.1

10.2:F

10.2¢t

Amendment No. 2 to Registration Rights Agreenaenbng the Company, Tontine Capital
Partners L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P., Tontine Ghfiverseas Master Fund, L.P., Tontine
25 Overseas Master Fund, L.P., and Tontine OverSead, Ltd. dated July 18, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therpany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed July 23, 2008

Amendment No. 3 to Registration Rights Agreemendrgrthe Company, Tontine Capital
Partners L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P., Tontine @&flverseas Master Fund, L.P., Tontine
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(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlerpany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed September 12, 200:
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March 1, 2007 and amended October 19, 2007, Jylgd@8 and September 12, 2008,
among Broadwind Energy, Inc., Tontine Capital Fens, L.P., Tontine Capital Overseas
Master Fund, L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P., Ton@werseas Fund, Ltd. and Tontine 25
Overseas Master Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reterém Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Formr-K filed November 4, 200¢

Waiver relating to Registration Rights Agreementtedl January 9, 2009, by Tontine
Capital Partners, L.P., Tontine Capital Overseastbta-und, L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P.,
Tontine Overseas Fund, Ltd. and Tontine 25 Overbsster Fund, L.P. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's CurReyort on Form 8-K filed January 15,
2009)

Registration Rights Agreement dated October 197 20080ng the Company, J. Cameron
Drecoll, Pat Rosmonowski, Dennis Palmer and Noeli®@ncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report omi-€-K filed October 24, 2007

Registration Rights Agreement dated January 163 20@ong the Company, EMS, Inc.,
Fagen, Inc., Joseph A. Kolbach and Daniel A. Yar@mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report omi-é-K filed January 23, 200¢

Registration Rights Agreement dated April 24, 26@8veen Broadwind Energy, Inc. and
Charles H. Beynon (incorporated by reference toiliikh0.3 to the Company's Current
Report on Form -K filed April 28, 2008)

Registration Rights Agreement dated June 4, 2068d®sn Broadwind Energy, Inc. and
shareholders of Badger Transport, Inc. (incorparatereference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on For-K filed June 10, 200¢

Employment Agreement dated as of August 1, 200&dxt the Company and Jesse E.
Collins, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exh@#t2 to the Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed January 14, 201(

Employment Agreement dated as of June 30, 2008dagtthe Company and J.D. Rubin
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thempany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed March 16, 2009

Employment Agreement dated as of July 29, 2009 éetvthe Company and Stephanie K.
Kushner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed August 3, 2009

Employment Agreement dated as of November 15, d@t@een Broadwind Energy, Inc.
and Peter C. Duprey (incorporated by referencextolit 10.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form -K filed November 15, 201(
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l\lférr:ggr Description
10.27t Consulting Agreement dated as of November 15, 2@t@een Broadwind Energy, Inc. ¢
J. Cameron Drecoll (incorporated by reference thiltik10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form-K filed November 15, 201(

10.2¢T  Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by refaréo Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Forrr-K filed October 26, 2007

10.2¢t 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended through 9u8609 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Registration Statenoenform -8 filed June 17, 200¢

10.3(f  Form of Executive Incentive Stock Option Agreem@ntorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report omf10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 201

10.317  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorpiecsby reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2010)

10.3:F  Form of Nonqualified Option Agreement (incorporabsdreference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Forr-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2(

10.3:7  Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2010)

10.3<F Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (ipmwated by reference to Exhibit 1
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qterquarterly period ended June 30,
2010)

10.3tT  Form of Performance Award Agreement (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Forr-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2(

10.3¢T Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (inargted by reference to Exhibit 10.7
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2010)

10.377 Broadwind Energy, Inc. Executive Short-Term InceatPlan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omi-€-K filed March 16, 2009

10.3¢ Commercial Security Agreement dated October 4, 28Ween Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Investors Community Bank (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.38 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

10.3¢  Guaranty dated October 22, 2008 by the Compangvestors Community Bank for Tow
Tech Systems Inc. (incorporated by reference taki#xh0.57 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

10.4C Agreement Governing Extensions of Credit dated |&#j 2009 between Investors
Community Bank and R.B.A. Inc. (incorporated byerehce to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Forr-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

10.41 Master Amendment dated as of December 30, 2009 gutmeestors Community Bank,
Tower Tech Systems Inc., and Broadwind Energy, (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.63 to the Company's Registration Statgmoa -1 filed on January 5, 201

10.4Z Construction Loan Agreement, dated April 28, 208©and between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporaya@ference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed May 1, 2009
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10.4:

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.47

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.5(

10.51

10.52

10.5:

10.5¢

10.5¢

10.5¢

Promissory Note, dated April 28, 2009, from Towech Systems Inc. to Great Western
Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h® Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed May 1, 2009

Letter Agreement, dated April 28, 2009, by and agnBroadwind Energy, Inc., Tower
Tech Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incotpoiay reference to Exhibit 10.96 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statg on Form -1)

Commercial Security Agreement, dated April 28, 2d9pand between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed May 1, 2009

Mortgage, dated April 28, 2009, from Tower Techt8yss Inc. to Great Western Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to tlerpany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed May 1, 2009

Assignment of Deposit Account, dated April 28, 20069 and between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporageéference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company's Current Report on Fori-K filed May 1, 2009

Subordination Agreement, dated April 27, 2009, bg between Broadwind Energy, Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referemé&exhibit 10.7 to the Company's
Current Report on Form-K filed May 1, 2009’

Commercial Guaranty, dated April 27, 2009, from &lwind Energy, Inc. to Great
Western Bank (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi8 to the Company's Current Report
on Form K filed May 1, 2009

Change in Terms Agreement, dated December 22, 2008nd between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporageéfierence to Exhibit 10.69 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement, dated December 22, 2009, by amezhg Broadwind Energy, Inc., Tow
Tech Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incotpoiay reference to Exhibit 10.70 to
the Company's Annual Report on Forn-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Change in Terms Agreement, dated February 16, 2818nd between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.71 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement, dated February 16, 2010, by amoing Broadwind Energy, Inc., Tower
Tech Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incotpoiay reference to Exhibit 10.72 to
the Company's Annual Report on Forn-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement, dated April 5, 2010, by and amBramadwind Energy, Inc., Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

Amendment to Mortgage, dated April 5, 2010, by batleen Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referemé&exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2

Business Loan Agreement, dated April 5, 2010, iy lz@tween Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referemé&exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
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10.57

10.5¢

10.5¢

10.6(

10.61

10.62

10.6:

10.6¢

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Change in Terms Agreement, dated April 5, 2030aitd between Tower Tech
Systems Inc. and Great Western Bank (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

Amended and Restated Lease for Industrial/ManufexgfiBpace, dated as of May 1, 2010,
by and between Tower Tech Systems Inc. and Citytr€geln.L.C. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 1@ for the quarterl
period ended March 31, 20.

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

Form of Account Purchase Agreement, dated as akS8dper 28, 2010, between Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association and each of Badgansport, Inc.; Brad Foote Gear
Works, Inc.; Energy Maintenance Service, LLC; amivér Tech Systems Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thempany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, !

Form of Continuing Guaranty, dated as of SepteriBe2010, executed by each of Badger
Transport, Inc.; Brad Foote Gear Works, Inc.; Egevaintenance Service, LLC; and
Tower Tech Systems Inc. in favor of Wells Fargo IBasational Association (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's QuiriReport on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 2(

Continuing Guaranty, dated as of September 28, 28druted by Broadwind Energy, Inc.
in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Associati@mcorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report omfr 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 30, 20!

First Amendment to Master Amendment, dated as eebBwer 30, 2010, by and among
Investors Community Bank, Tower Tech Systems bed Broadwind Energy, Inc. (filed
herewith)

Omnibus Amendment to Account Purchase Agreememt$Gararanties dated as of
March 4, 2011 by and among Badger Transport, Brag Foote Gear Works, Inc.,
Broadwind Services, LLC (f/k/a Energy Maintenanesv&e, LLC), Broadwind
Towers, Inc. (f/lk/a Tower Tech Systems Inc.), Broexl Energy, Inc., and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (filed herewit

Subsidiaries of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (filed heiténv

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP (filed herewi

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer @il herewith
Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer @itl herewith

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 of Chief Executive Officer (fildterewith)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 of Chief Financial Officer (filuerewith)

T Indicates management contract or compensationgularrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigre thereunto duly authorized, on the 16" day of March, 2011.

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

By: /sl PETER C. DUPREY

PETER C. DUPREY
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exadnge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldyw the following persons or
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities anan the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ PETER C. DUPREY President and Chief Executive Offic
and Director March 16, 2011
Peter C. Dupre (Principal Executive Officer

/s/ STEPHANIE K. KUSHNER Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and March 16, 2011
Stephanie K. Kushne Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ DAVID P. REILAND
Director and Chairman of the Board March 16, 2011

David P. Reilanc

/sl TERENCE P. FOX

Director March 16, 2011
Terence P. Fo
/s/ CHARLES H. BEYNON
Director March 16, 2011
Charles H. Beyno
/s/ WILLIAM T. FEJES, JR.
Director March 16, 2011

William T. Fejes, Jr
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Exhibit 10.63
FIRST AMENDMENT TO MASTER AMENDMENT

This First Amendment to the Master Amendment (fhiest Amendment”)dated as of December 20, 2010 is by and betweessiors
Community Bank (the “Bank”), Tower Tech Systems.|rcWisconsin corporation (“Borrower”), and Brodadd/Energy, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Guarantor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Bank, Borrower, and Guarantor entéremla Master Amendment Agreement dated Decembe2(@®I®, wherein
various modifications were made to numerous Loaaubeents affecting all parties hereto, with such ficetions intended to address the
merger between R.B.A. Inc. and Borrower, and taesklother changes and clarifications of the Loaauments ; and

WHEREAS, since the execution of the Master Amendirgorrower has paid off the LOC Note in full; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to further amend the LDasuments to reflect that Borrower now has a printenking relationship
with Wells Fargo Bank; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to modify the Master Arh@ent as more particularly set forth herein;

AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The representations, determinations and statisngentained in the Recitals set forth above are and correct in
all material respects and form a part of this Fsstendment.

2. Definitions. Any capitalized terms not otherwise defined hreege defined in the Master Amendment.

3. LOC Note. The LOC Note has been paid in full and all odligns of Borrower and Guarantor with respect ttoeage
satisfied. The LOC Note has been terminated.

4, Banking Relationship Section 4(c) of the Master Amendment is deléteits entirety and replaced as follows:

4(c) Bank Relationship Establish and maintain with Bank a depositotsitienship of not less than Seven Hundred

Thousand Dollars ($700,000), and such deposits neelde in a demand deposit account and insteadmobiyde a money
market or certificate of deposit.

5. Debt. Section 4(f) of the Master Amendment is deleteitis entirety.




6. Collateral Account Section 4(j) of the Master Amendment is deleteids entirety.

7. Guarantor Consent Guarantor hereby ratifies and affirms its olfiiglas under the Guarantor Documents and consetiteto
terms and conditions of this First Amendment.

8. Loan Documents Borrower and Guarantor each acknowledge thagmgbas expressly modified herein and in the Master
Amendment each such parties’ obligations undett@ Documents exist and are enforceable in acocedwith their terms and shall remain
in full force and effect.

9. Amendment This First Amendment may not be amended withioeifprior written consent of each of the partieste
10. Governing Law. This First Amendment shall be governed by antstraed in accordance with the laws of the State of

Wisconsin without giving effect to applicable priples of conflict of laws to the extent that thephpation of the laws of another jurisdiction
would be required thereby.

11. Counterparts This First Amendment may be signed in any nunobeounterparts, each of which shall be an origiwéh
the same effect as if the signatures thereto aretdevere upon the same instrument.

12. Severability. In case any provision in this First Amendmerglisbe invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the vildlegality
and enforceability of the remaining provisions shat in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

13. Assignment All agreements of the parties hereto shall ldadh of their respective successors and assigns.
[SIGNATURE PAGE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thist Bimendment to be duly executed as of the dayyaad first written.

INVESTORS COMMUNITY BANK

By: /s/ David J. Diedricl

Name: David J. Diedrict

Its: Sr. Business Banking Offic

TOWER TECH SYSTEMS INC

By: /s/ Peter C. Dupre

Name: Peter C. Duprey
Its: Authorized Signator

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

By: /s/ Peter C. Dupre

Name: Peter C. Dupre

Its: President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 10.64

OMNIBUS AMENDMENT TO
ACCOUNT PURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND GUARANTIES

THIS OMNIBUS AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”), dated as March 4, 2011, is entered into by and among BAR
TRANSPORT, INC., a Wisconsin corporation (“BadgeBRAD FOOTE GEAR WORKS, INC., an lllinois corpoiat (“Brad Foote”),
BROADWIND SERVICES, LLC, f/k/a/ Energy Maintenan8ervice, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compa(i¥nergy Maintenance”),
BROADWIND TOWERS, INC., f/k/a/ Tower Tech Systenmel, a Wisconsin corporation (“Tower Tech”) (Badd&rad Foote, Energy
Maintenance and Tower Tech are each referred &irhas a “Customer” and collectively as the “Custost), BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.
a Delaware corporation (“Broadwind”), and WELLS FBR BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“WFBC"), acting thragh its Wells Fargo
Business Credit operating division.

RECITALS

A. Each Customer and WFBC are parties to an Accourth@ge Agreement, each dated September 28, 20ahgwded from
time to time, each an “Account Purchase Agreemand’ collectively, the “Account Purchase Agreements”

B. Each of Broadwind and each Customer has execuBmhtinuing Guaranty in favor of WFBC, each dategt8mber 28,
2010 (as amended from time to time, each a “Gugtamd collectively, the “Guaranties”).

C. Each of Broadwind and each Customer has requdsa¢ddrtain amendments be made to the Account Bsechgreements
and the Guaranties, which WFBC is willing to makeguant to the terms and conditions set forth herei

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises aiithe mutual covenants and agreements heretaioed, it is agreed as
follows:

1. Defined Terms Capitalized terms used in this Amendment whighdefined in an Account Purchase Agreement slaak h
the same meanings as defined in such Account Psgchgreement, unless otherwise defined herein.

2. Termination of Badger Account Purchase AgreemedtGuaranty Badger and WFBC agree that (a) the Final Tertiuina
Date (as defined in the Account Purchase Agreelmgeand between Badger and WFBC dated as of Septe28b2010 (the “Badger Account
Purchase Agreement”)) of the Badger Account Pueidageement is the date hereof and (b) the GuatanBadger is hereby terminated and
cancelled.

3. Waiver. WFBC hereby waives the notice requirements §igeldn Section 3.11 of the Bader Account Purchageement.
This waiver shall be effective only in this specifistance and for the specific purpose for whidh given, and this waiver shall not entitle
Badger or any other Person to any other or furtf@@ver in any similar or other circumstances.




4, Amendments to Account Purchase Agreements

(@) Each Account Purchase Agreement (other than thgd&allccount Purchase Agreement) is hereby amengled b
replacing “the Account Purchase Agreement by arddsen Badger Transport and WFBC,” in Section 2t@B {lefinition of ‘Affiliate Account
Purchase Agreements”) with “[Intentionally Omittéd]

(b) Each Account Purchase Agreement (other than thgdaiiccount Purchase Agreement) is hereby amengled b
replacing “Badger Transport” in Section 2.25 ort®er2.26, as applicable (the definition of “Guatat), with “[Intentionally Omitted].”

() Each Account Purchase Agreement (other than thgdakiccount Purchase Agreement) is hereby amengled b
amending and restating Section 3.08(e) to reats iaritirety as follows:

“(e) Termination Fee. If the Termination Date occurs on or before 8ayiier 29, 2013, the Customer shall
pay WFBC on the Termination Date a fully earnedhiaation fee equal to: (i) three percent (3.0%dhaf Facility Maximum, if this
Agreement is terminated on or before the first earsiary of the Closing Date; (ii) two percent (2)08bthe Facility Maximum, if this
Agreement is terminated after the first anniversarihe date hereof but on or before the secondrarsary of the Closing Date; and
(iif) one percent (1.0%) of the Facility Maximunfhthis Agreement is terminated after the secondvemsary of the date hereof but on
or before the third anniversary of the Closing Ddtmtwithstanding the foregoing, the Customer lstial be required to pay any
termination fee in the event this Agreement is teated after the first anniversary of the date b&(@ as a result of or in connection
with refinancing or replacement financing with Véelargo Bank, National Association or any affiliatedivision of Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association or (ii) by the Custorafter demand by WFBC for a payment under Sectio@8L&f this Agreement.”

5. Customer Name Changes

(@) Energy Maintenance acknowledges that it has chaitgedme from “Energy Maintenance Service, LLC" to
“Broadwind Services, LLC".

(b) Tower Tech acknowledges that it has changed iterfaom “Tower Tech Systems Inc.” to “Broadwind
Towers, Inc.”

(c) Each Account Purchase Agreement (other than thgd@aliccount Purchase Agreement), each Guaranter(¢tian
the Guaranty by Badger) and each Related Docurasrddfined in each Account Purchase Agreement titharthe Badger Account Purchase
Agreement) is hereby amended by replacing (i) eafdrence to “Energy Maintenance Service, LLC" vdtheference to “Broadwind Services,
LLC” and (ii) each reference to “Tower Tech Systdms” with a reference to “Broadwind Towers, Inc.”

6. No Other Changes Except as explicitly amended by this Amendmehipf the terms and conditions of each Account
Purchase Agreement (other than the Badger Account




Purchase Agreement) and each Guaranty (other bieaBadger Guaranty) shall remain in full force afféct.

7. Amendment Fee The Customers agree, jointly and severally,ap WFBC as of the date hereof a fully earned, non-
refundable fee in the amount of $25,000 in consitien of WFBC'’s execution and delivery of this Andement and in lieu of any termination
fee otherwise due on the date of this Amendmeraamount of the termination of the Badger AccountRase Agreement pursuant to Section
3.11 of the Badger Account Purchase Agreement.

8. Conditions Precedent This Amendment shall be effective when WFBC lshale received an executed original hereof, in
substance and form acceptable to WFBC in its redderdiscretion, and payment of the fee describdRbiragraph 7 of this Amendment.

9. Termination of WFEBC Security InterestUpon WFBC's receipt of the items required unéaragraph 8 of this Amendment,
(a) WFBC shall release, terminate and satisfydtugty interest in the Collateral (as definedria Badger Account Purchase Agreement) of
Badger, and execute and deliver such releasesnggion statements or directions to terminate adg@amay reasonably request, which must
be prepared and filed by Badger at Badgietle cost and expense, and (b) Badger is augtbbig WFBC to file UCC termination statement
terminate WFBC's security interest in the Collatées defined in the Badger Account Purchase Agesejrof Badger.

10. Representations and Warrantiegach of Broadwind and each Customer hereby septe and warrants to WFBC as
follows:

(@) Each of Broadwind and each Customer has all reguisiwer and authority to execute and deliver Amgendment
and any other agreements or instruments requineglhder and to perform all of its obligations he@er and thereunder, and this
Amendment and all such other agreements and instrtgthave been duly executed and delivered by @a@8foadwind and each
Customer and constitute the legal, valid and bigdibligation of each of Broadwind and each Customeforceable against it in
accordance with its terms, subject to applicablkha#ptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratoriund ather similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights generally and equitable principté general application (regardless of whetheomsiment is sought in a proceeding
at law or in equity).

(b) The execution, delivery and performance by eadBroAdwind and each Customer of this Amendment agd a
other agreements or instruments required hereurader been duly authorized by all necessary corpa@etion and do not (i) require
any approval or consent of, or any notice to andilwith, any governmental authority or agency hgvurisdiction except such as has
already been obtained, (ii) result in a violatidrBooadwind’s or such Customer’s certificate oiicdess of incorporation or bylaws or
any resolutions passed by Broadwind’s or such Quetts directors or shareholders, (iii) result imi@lation of any applicable law,
rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, advar decree, or (iv) result in a breach of, or ¢itue a default under, any loan
agreement, indenture, trust deed or any other agreeor




instrument to which Broadwind or such Customer ety or by which it is bound which could reasdgdi® expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

(c) All of the representations and warranties containezhch Account Purchase Agreement and each Gyaen
correct on and as of the date hereof as though waded as of such date, except to the extenstidt representations and warranties
relate solely to an earlier date.

11. References

€)) All references in each Account Purchase Agreentefthts Agreement” shall be deemed to refer to sicbount
Purchase Agreement as amended hereby; and anyl aeféences in any of the Related Documents éimed in each Account Purchase
Agreement) to any Account Purchase Agreement blealleemed to refer to such Account Purchase Agmgemseamended hereby.

(b) All references in each Guaranty to “this Guararsiyall be deemed to refer to such Guaranty as arddreteby;
and any and all references in any of the Relateclbents (as defined in each Account Purchase Agrneprto any Guaranty shall be deemed
to refer to such Guaranty as amended hereby.

12. No Waiver. The execution of this Amendment and the acceptafhall other agreements and instruments relaeeeito
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any defauivent of Termination (as defined in the applieahAtcount Purchase Agreement) under any
Account Purchase Agreement or a waiver of any tredefault or event of default under any other Reldocument (as defined in each
Account Purchase Agreement) or other documentiineM/FBC, whether or not known to WFBC and whethenat existing on the date of t
Amendment.

13. Release Each of Broadwind and each Customer hereby atepland unconditionally releases and forevertdisges
WFBC, and any and all participants, parent entisebsidiary entities, affiliated entities, insue@ndemnitors, successors and assigns thereof,
together with all of the present and former direstofficers, agents and employees of any of thegiming, from any and all claims, demand
causes of action of any kind, nature or descriptramether arising in law or equity or upon contraictort or under any state or federal law or
otherwise, which Broadwind or such Customer has had has or has made claim to have against aryerson or entity for or by reason of
any act, omission, matter, cause or thing whatsoavsing from the beginning of time to and incliglithe date of this Amendment, whether
such claims, demands and causes of action are edatutunmatured or known or unknown.

14. Costs and Expensestach Customer hereby reaffirms its agreemengwutie: Account Purchase Agreement to which it is a
party to pay or reimburse WFBC on demand for adts@nd expenses incurred by WFBC in connection svith Account Purchase
Agreement and the Related Documents (as defineddh Account Purchase Agreement), including withicuitation all reasonable fees and
disbursements of legal counsel. Without limitihg generality of the foregoing, each Customer $igatly agrees to pay all fees and
disbursements of counsel




to WFBC for the services performed by such coumsebnnection with the preparation of this Amenditreamd the documents and instruments
incidental hereto. Customers acknowledge and abet&VFBC may charge such fees and disburseniantsding the fee required under
Paragraph 7 of this Amendment, to the CollecteceResAccount (as defined in the applicable Accdeuntchase Agreement) of one or more
Customers.

15. Miscellaneous This Amendment may be executed in any numbepohterparts, each of which when so executed and
delivered shall be deemed an original and all attvlcounterparts, taken together, shall constibute and the same instrument. Manually
executed counterparts of the signature pages®ftmendment may be delivered by the parties elpictadly so long as transmitted pages are
reproducible on paper medium upon receipt. Eacly igduly authorized to print any executed signafpage so received and attach it to this
Amendment, whereupon this Amendment shall be ded¢mbdve been duly executed and delivered by #resinitting party and the paper
copy of this Amendment assembled by the recipietit such signature page attached shall be deemedginal for all purposes, absent
manifest error or bad faith. This Amendment shallgoverned by and construed in accordance witluhstantive laws (other than conflict
laws) of the State of Colorado. The parties hef@pygonsent to the personal jurisdiction of theesaind federal courts located in the State
of Colorado, and any appellate court from which appeals therefrom are available, in connectioh aity controversy related to this
Amendment; (b) waive any argument that venue inargh forum is not convenient; (c) agree that &rgation initiated by WFBC or any of
Broadwind or any Customer in connection with thimé&ndment may be venued in the state or federatstogated in the City and County of
Denver, Colorado; and (d) agree that a final judginie any such suit, action or proceeding shaltdeclusive and may be enforced in other
jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in anyetmanner provided by la

16. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL . EACH OF BROADWIND, EACH CUSTOMER AND WFBC HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN AN Y ACTION AT LAW OR IN EQUITY OR IN ANY OTHER
PROCEEDING BASED ON OR PERTAINING TO THIS AMENDMENT

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be duly executed as of the degedbove written.

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL BADGER TRANSPORT, INC.
ASSOCIATION, acting through its Well
Fargo Business Credit operating divis

By: /s/ Martine E. Trac By: /s/ Stephanie Kushn
Name: Martine E. Tracy Name: Stephanie Kushne

Its: Authorized Signator Its: Authorized Signator:
BRAD FOOTE GEAR WORKS, INC. BROADWIND SERVICES, LLC,

f/lk/a/ Energy Maintenance Service, LI

By: /s/ Stephanie Kushni By: /sl Stephanie Kushn:
Name: Stephanie Kushne Name: Stephanie Kushne
Its: Authorized Signator Its: Authorized Signator
BROADWIND TOWERS, INC., BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

flk/al Tower Tech Systems In

By: /s/ Stephanie Kushni By: /sl Stephanie Kushn:
Name: Stephanie Kushne Name: Stephanie Kushne
Its: Authorized Signator Its: Authorized Signator

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION*

By: /s/ Michael Bromfielc
Name: Michael Bromfield
Its: Senior Vice Presider

* With respect to Paragraph 5 of this Amendment|I¥#eargo Bank, National Association in its capaeis lockbox processor and depository
bank

Signature Page to
Omnibus Amendment to Account Purchase Agreement$Gaaranties




Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries State of Incorporation/Formation
Badger Transport, Ini Wisconsin

Brad Foote Gear Works, In Illinois

Broadwind Services, LL( Delaware

Broadwind Towers, Inc Wisconsin

Broadwind Energy Europe Gmkt Germany







Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our reports dated March 16, 201h,re@spect to the consolidated financial statemandsinternal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Broadwignergy, Inc. on Form 1R-for the year ended December 31, 2010. We hecehgent tc
the incorporation by reference of said reporthRegistration Statement of Broadwind Energy, émcForm S-8 (File No. 333-160039,
effective June 17, 2009).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLF
GRANT THORNTON LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 16, 201:
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Peter C. Duprey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KBabadwind Energy, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-(f)) for the registrant hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's Board of Direct(ws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2011

/sl PETER C. DUPRE’

Peter C. Duprey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stephanie K. Kushner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KBabadwind Energy, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-(f)) for the registrant hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's Board of Direct(ws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2011

/s/ STEPHANIE K. KUSHNEF

Stephanie K. Kushner
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdt0K of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (the "Company") for thear ended December 31, 201C
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Peter C. DypRresident and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 90éhefSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) the Report fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) efSkbcurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

March 16, 2011

/sl PETER C. DUPREY

Peter C. Duprey
President and Chief Executive Offic

This certification accompanies this Regantsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 and shall not be deemed filed by the
Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Secsriechange Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statemeadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdt0K of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (the "Company") for thear ended December 31, 201C
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionhe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Stephanie Kskher, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) the Report fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) ef3kcurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

March 16, 2011

/s/ STEPHANIE K. KUSHNEF

Stephanie K. Kushner
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies this Regntsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 and shall not be deemed filed by the
Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Secsriechange Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statemeadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.
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